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AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LlMITEDI 

Notice is bereby giver.l that the 291h Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the Members of Martin and 

Harris Laboratories Limited ("the Company") wHl be held on Friday, 291h day of September, 2023 at 

NH-8, Delhi Joipur Highw"y, Village Paehgaon (Fazalw,s), Dislt. Gurgaon, Haryana at 09:00 A.M. to 

transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To receive, consider and adopt: 

(a) 	 The Audited Standalone Fiuancial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended on March 

31,2023, together with the Reports of Board or Directors and Auditors thereon. and 

(b) 	 The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the company for the financial year ended March 31, 

2023, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon. 

2. To declare Divjdend on Equity Shares. 

3. 	 To appoint a Director io place of Mr. Harnam Singh Thakur (DIN: 07665807) who retires by rotation and 

being e ligiblc, offers himself for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

4. 	 TO CONSJDER AND APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF MR. ASHOK CHANDRA SEN, 

(DIN: 09764909), INDEPENDENT, NON-EXECUTIVE DDlECTOR OF THE COMPAi'o/Y:­

To conside( and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinaty 

Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, 160, 161 read with Schedule IV 

and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) and the Companies (Appointment 

and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 201 4 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof 

for the time being in force), the appointment of Mr. Ashok Chandra Sen, (DIN: 09764909) who was 

appointed by the Board as an Additional Director in the category of Non- Exe\;"tive Independent Director 

w.eJ. 30'" March, 2023 and whose appointment as an Independent Director is recommended by the Board of 

Directors of the Company, be aod is hereby appointed as an independent Dir~ctor of the Company for a 

period of five years with effect fwm 30lh MarCh, 2023 to 291h March, 2028, not subject to retirement by 

rotation. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Harnam Thakur Singh, Director and Mr. Nasim Uddin, Director be and 

are hereby severally authorized to sign and execute ali such documents and papers (including appointment letter 

etc.) as may be required for the purpose and file necessary e-rolm with the Registrar of Companies and to do all 

such acts, deeds and things as may considered expedient and necessary in this regard . 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Harnam Thakur Singh, Director and Mr. Nasim Uddin, Director be and 

are hereby severally authorised to sign tbe certified true copy of the resolution of tho resolution to be given as 

and when required" 
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5. To ratify tbe remllneration of Cost Auditors of the Company. 

To consider and, if thought fit , to pass with or without modificalion(s), the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED that pursuanl to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 ("Ihe Act") and Rules thereunder (including any slatulory modification or re-enactment 

thereof for the time being in force) and all other applicable provisions, if any, approval oLthe members of 

U,e Company be and is hereby accorded to Ihe remuneralion payable 10 Mis Sourabh Jain & Associates, Cost 

Accountants, appointed by the Board of Direclors as Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct the audit of 

the Cost Records of tbe Company for the financial year ending On March 31 , 2024, amounting to lNR 

50,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand only) plus reimbursement of out of pocket expenses at aCl1mls." 

"RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, man'ers and 

things as may be deemed necessary, proper or desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolutlon." 

6. To consider any other resolution on the approval of the Chairman. 

By Order of the Ooard 

For Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited 

Nasim Uddiu 

(Director) 

DIN: 09670604 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 01" September, 2023 

I 
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I . A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is also entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote 
on a poll instead of him and the proxy need not be a Member of the company. The instrument ofproxy in 
order to be effective should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not later than 48 hours 
before the commencement of the meeting Blank Proxy Form is annexed. 

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding in the aggregate 
not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. A member holding more than 10% of the 
total share capital of the Company may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as 
a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if be so desire. 

2. 	 Route map of the venue oftbe meeting (including prominent land mark) is annexed. 

3. 	 Keeping in view the convenience of the Members, documents relating to shares will continue to be 
accepted at the Registered Office of the Company. 

4. 	 Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative(s) to attend the meeting are 
requested to send a certified copy of Board Resolution authorizing tbeir representative(s) to attend and 
vote on their behalf at the meeting. 

5. 	 The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 
23'd day of September, 2023 to Thursday, 28th day of September, 2023 (both days inclusive) for 
determining eligibility for payment of Dividend, if declared at the meeting. 

6. 	 Statutory registers are open for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company on 
all working days, between 14:00-16:00 hours upto the date of the meeting and shall also be available for 
inspection at the Annual General Meeting. 

7. 	 Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank 
mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change in address and e-mail address etc. , to the Company 
under the signatures of frrstJjoint holder(s). 

8. 	 The dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors, if declared at the meeting, will be paid within 
a period of 30 days from the date of declaration, by the members in the AGM to those members whose 
name appear on the Register of Members as on Friday 22,d day of September, 2023. 

9. 	 Reserve Bank of India has initiated National Electronic Clearing services (NECS) for credit of Dividend 

directly to the Bank Account of the Members. Members are requested to register their Bank Account 
details (Core Banking Solutions enabled account nu!"ber, 9 digi t MICR and II digit lFS Code). 

10. Members are requested to note that dividends that are not claimed within seven years from the date of 
transfer to the Company's Unpaid Dividend Account, will as per Section 124 ofthe Act, be transferred to 
the Investor Education and Protection fund (lEPF). 

11. Members are requested: 
a. 	 To bring Attendance Slip duly completed and signed at the meeting and not to carry briefcase or bag 

inside the meeting venue for security reasons; 

h. To q\lole their folio No.IDP ID - Client ID and e-mail ID in all correspondence; and 
c. 	 To please note that no gift/gift coupon/refresbment coupon will be distributed at the meeting. 

3 



12. Disclosure relating to Directors pursuant to Secretarial Standards on General Meeting 

Re-appointment of Mr. Rarnam Thakur (DIN: 00105650) who retires by rotation 

Name 


Age 


Date of first appointment on the Board 

Qualifications 

Experience 

Terms and conditions of appointment or re­
appointment along with details of 
remuneration sought to be paid 

~ Last drawn remuneration, if applicable 
f---

Shareholding in the company 

Relationship with other Directors, Manager 
and other Key Managerial Personnel of the 
company 

The Number of Meetings of the Board attended 
during the year 

Other Directorship, membership/ 
Chairmanship of committees of other Boards 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 01" September, 2023 

Mr. Rarnam Thakur Singh 

72 Years 

26-11-2016 

B.A I 
40+ Years 

- ­ --: 
NA 

NA 

NIL 

NA 

11 

Other Directorship -3 
Membership - 2 
Chairmanship -0 

By Order of the Board 
For Martin and Rarris Laboratories Limited 

Nasim Uddin 
(Director) 

DIN: 09670604 
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2013 

ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 

ITEM NO. 4: 

APPOINTMENT OF MR. ASHOK CHANDRA SEN, (DIN: 09764909), NON-EXECUTIVE & 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY:­

In terms ofSection 149 ofthe Companies Act, 20[3, read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification 
of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to appoint Independent Directors, who shall hold office 

for a period ofupto five consecutive years and shall not be liable to retire by rotation. An Independent Director 

may be appointed for a maximum of two consecutive terms ofupto five years each. Accordingly in terms of 
Sections 149, 161 read with Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), 
the Board ofDirectors of the Company in its meeting held on 30th March 2023 , appointed Mr. Ash'ok Chandra 

Sen, (DIN: 09764909) as an Additional Director in the category of Non - Executive Independent Director of 
the Company. The proposed resolution seeks the approval of shareholders for the appointment of Mr. Ashok 

Chandra Sen, as an Independent Director for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years from 30th March, 2023 to 

29th March, 2028, not liable to retire by rotation. 

Mr. Ashok Chandra Sen is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the 
Act and has given his consent to act as Director. The Company has also received declarations from him that 

he nleet with the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 201 3. 

In the opinion ofthe Board, he fulfill the conditions as specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 

thereunder for the appointment as Independent Director .of the Company and he is independent from the 
management. 

Except this Director, being appointees or their relatives, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Pcrsonnel 
of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolutions set 

out at item No. 4. 

The Board recommends the resolution in relation to the appointment of his as Independent Director, for the 
approval by the shareholders of the Company. 

ITEM NO. 5: 

TO RATIFY THE REMUNERATION OF COST AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY 

The Board has approved the appointment and remuneration of Mis Sourabh Jain & Associates, Cost 

Accountants, as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year 

ending on March 31,2024 at remuneration as specified in the resolution and reimbursement of out-of-pocket 

expenses at actnals. 

In accordance with the provisions ofSection 148 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit 

and Auditors) Rules, 2014, and other applicable provisions, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors 

has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company. Your Board recommends the passing of Ordinary 
Resolution set out at Item No.5 ofthe Notice for approval by the shareholders in the interest of the Company. 

Non~ of the Directors amj/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company andlor their relatives is concerned 
or interested fmancially or otherwise in the resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice. 



Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited 
NH..a. OELH' JAIPUR I-iIGHW,A.V. VILLAGE. PACHGAON 
(FAZALWAS), DISTT. GURGAON, HARVANA 

Clfoi: U24239HR1993PlC033630 

ROUTE MAP 

Drawing nt...: LOCATION MAP INcx1lI 

Scale: ! Nl S ID<>1. 

Draw By. C.M.SHARMA -I C....k.d It, 
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PROXY FORM 

MGT-ll 


(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014) 


29" Annual General Meeting - Friday, 29'h September, 2023 at 09:00 A.M. 
Name of the member(s): e-mail ld: ] 
Registered address: Folio No./Client [d': 

DP rd': 
-~~~~ 

I1We being the member(s) holding ...... shares hereby appoint: 
I. Name. . .....Address.. .. .e-mail id.. . .or failing him; 
2. Name....... .. .Address.. .. .e-mail id.... .. ........ or failing him; 

3. Name.... .. ... .. . ... Address.. . ... e-mail id .. or failing him; 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 29'h Annual 
General Meeting (AGM) of the company, to be held on Friday, 29'h September, 2023 at 09:00 
A.M. at Delhi Jaipur Highway, Village, Pachgaon (Fazalwas), Distt. Gurgaon,.Haryana and at 
any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below. 

Res!. No. Resolution 	 For# Against#_. 
r-'I. 	 (a) Adoption of Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the 

~-. 


Company for the Financial Year ended March 31,2023, together 

with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 


1. 	 (b) Adoption of Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company 

for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023, together with the 

report of the Auditors thereon. 


- 2. To declare dividend on equity shares. 

3. 	 Re-appointment of Mr. Hamam Singh Thakur (DIN : 07665807) 

who retires by rotation. 


4. 	 To Consider and Approve the appointment ofMr. Ashok Chandra 
ISen, Independent and Non-Executive Director of the Company 

5. 	 To ratify the remuneration of Cost Auditors ofthe Company 
L-. L----~ 

*Applicable for shares beld in electronic form. 

SIGNED tbis ........... .... . .. .... . day of.. .... , 2023 


Affix Re.! 
revenue 
stamp 

Signature 

Signature of Proxy bolder(s) 
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(To be printed at the back oftbe Proxy Form) 

Notes: 

(\) This form of proxy in order to be effective shonld be duly completed and deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company not later than 48 hours before the meeting. 

(2) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company. 
(3) A person c&n act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in tbe 
aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A 
member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may 
appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or 
shareholder. . 

(4) This is only optional. Please put 'X' or ,-/, in the appropriate column against the resolutions 
indi cated in the Box. If you leave 'For/or' Against ' colwnn blank against any or all the resolutions, 
your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she deems appropriate. 
(5) Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so 
desire. 
(6) [n the case of joint holders, the signature of anyone holder will be sufficient, but names of all 
the joint holders should be mentioned. 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 

_~cc-=--,---_2_9_th_A_n_n_ _u_a1 General Meeting - Friday, 29th September, 2023 at 09;00 A.M 

DP-ID* ~=____ ____~ Name and Address . of the 1I
L ~;;;;~~=[~~~=~==-=-_-~~~l_~egistered Shareholder/proxy __ _ I 

IfWe certify that I1We am/are registered shareholder/proxy of the Company. 

I1We hereby record my/our presence at 29th Annual General Meeting - Friday, 29th September, 

2023 at 09;00 A.M. at NH-S, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Village, Pachgaon (Fazalwas), 


Distt.Gurgaon, Haryana. 


Signature 

NOTE: Please complete this and hand it over at the entrance of the hall. 

*Applicable for shares held in electronic form. 

r--- No Gift/~ift_CouponlRefreshment Coupon will be distribute~_a_t! he-meetinL __ __ _ _ ~ 1____ 

9 



To 	 Date: 01" September, 2023 

The Shareholders 

Subject: Dematerialization of Shares and Updation of Shareholders details. 
Reference: ISIN No. INE03VV01015 

Dear sirlMadam, 

With reference to the subject, your company has initiated steps for registering the PAN' details of all the 
shareholders (including joint holders, ifany) of the registered shareholders. We ~ould like to register other 
KYC details such as email id,mobile number and specimen signature. Inihis context, we request you to 
kindly fill in the details as mentioned in KYC form and forward the same along with all the supporting 
documents considering the below mentioned points: ­
J. 	 Self-attested legible copy of PAN card for updating PAN of the first registered and/or joint 

shareholders. 
2. 	 Self- attested legible copy of Aadhar/passportJutility bill (not older than 3 months). 
3. 	 Specimen Signature Certificate duly attested from the Bank. 
4. 	 Email-id of the first registered shareholiler for all future communication in electronic mode. 
5. 	 Mobile no. of the first registered shareholder for hlture direct communication. 

This is to further inform that the NSDL has allotted ISIN No. INE03VVOI015 to the company. The MeA 
vide amendments in Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 dated September 10th, 
201 8 has mandated that w.e.f. October 2nd, 20 18­

Every holder of securities of an unlisted public company­
'. '\ 

(a) who intends to transfer such securities on or after 2nd October, 2018, shall get such securities 
dematerialized before the transfer; or 
(b) who suhscribes to any securities of an nnlisted public company (whether by way of private placement Or 
bonus shares or rights offer) on or after 2nd October, 2018 shall ensure that all his existing securities are 
held in dematerialized before such subscription. 

With reference to the above and for your own interest, we request you to dematerialize your securities to 
enable yourself to transfer such shares of the company or further subscribe to any shares of the company. 
We also request to kindly forward the duly filled in KYC form along with self-attested copies of supporting 
documents as soon as possible. 

Thanking you and assuring you of our best cooperatiun at all times. 
Thanking You 

Yours Faithfully 

For Martin and Harris Lahoratories Limited 

Nasim Uddin 
(Director) 
DIN No. : 09670604 
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To 

Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited 
NH-8, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Village Pachgaon (Faza1was), 

Distt. Gurgaon, Haryana 

Subject : Updation of shareholders details as required by the company 

Dear Sir, 

Vwe request you to record the following infonnation, being shareholder of the company, having folio/for 

records purposes:-

Sr. Particulars r-netaiis 

No. 
c--­
, ­
c--­ -

Name of Shareholder(s) 

Address of shareholder(s) 

Folio No. 

---~ --

C---­
PAN No. 

--1--.------ ­ - - ­ ----- ­ - ­
Mobile No. 

----
Email ID 

No. of Shares 

Distinctive No. From To 

Whether you have dematerialized your 

shares? (Yes or No) 

Vwe request to kindly update the same in your records communication purposes. 


Thanking You, 


Yours Faithfully 


(Shareholder) 
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I/MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED] 

DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

The Members, 
MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 29th Annual Report on the business and 
operations of the Company and the accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31 , 2023. 

1. 	FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE 
COMPANY 

Amount in lakhs 
.r-------2022-23I~--Standalone Financial Results: 	 2()21-22

I Profit! (Loss) before depreciation and interest ---1-------- 7536~05 --~ 7173 .97 
1 Less: Depreciation (269.90) (217.82) 

Less: Interest ( 11.05) (1 2.20) 
Profit! (Loss) before tax 7255 .10 6943.95 

Less: Provision for tax (including Deferred Tax) ( 1875~85) (1729.40)t
1-- Profit! (Loss) after tax ~----- ----- ­ 5379.25 5214.55 
~ ~_______________ _ 	 . I 

--~------------

The performance of the Company on consolidated basis for the year ended March 31 st, 2023 

is as under: 
Amount in lakhs 

Cons-;;WatedFiDanciai-Res~ills: - ----- --~ -----r -------2m-iS 2021-2~ 

Profit!(Loss) before depreciation and interest _____ 9612.59 --- - --- 9,698.71 I+­
Less: Depreciation (392.85) (344.80) I 
Less: Interest --------------------t-~ (11.05) (1 2.20) 
Profi t! (Loss) before tax --- -1 --------- 9 20g 69 ----9,341.71 

Less: Provision for tax (inciuding Deferred Tax) ~_±_------ (2~0 1.~1 ) _________ 2 ,325 .90 

Profit! (Loss) after tax J _ __ ______ ~8~~88~_ 7,015 .81 

2. BUSINESS OUTLOOK AND OPPORTUNITIES/ FUTURE PROSPECTS 

During the year under review, Your Directors has continued its unwavering commitment 
to innovation, quality, and t:x.cellence in the pharmaceutical industry. 
We are pleased to inform our shareholders that your Company is actively exploring 
opportunities to expand its presence in the domain of contract manufacturing of generic 
pharmaceutical formulations. The Indian pharmaceutical industry is undergoing 
significant transformation in this direction, influenced by the govermnent's increased 
emphasis on generics and the consequent regulatory environment. 
Your Directors recognizes the growing importance of contract manufacturing as a 
strategic avenue for collaboration and growth. 

12 
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3. SHARE CAPITAL 

The paid up Equity Share Capital as at March 31, 2023 stood at Rs 399.60 Lakhs (Rupees 

Three Crore Ninety Nine Lakh Sixty Thousand and Four Hundred Only). During the year 


under review the Company has not issued any fresh share capital. 


(a) BUY BACK OF SECURITIES 

The Company has not bought back any of its Securi ties during the year under review. 


(b) SWEAT EOUITY 

The company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review. 


(c) BONUS SHARES 

No Bonus shares were issued during the year under review. 


(d) EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN 

The Company has not provided any stock scheme to the employee. 


4. DIVIDEND 

Your directors are happy to recommend dividend of Rs . 5.201- per Equity Share, and pay, 

pursuant to shareholder's approval at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 


5. RESERVES: 

Out of the total profi t after tax of Rs. 5,379.25/- Lakhs for the fmancial year under review 


and unlike previous financial year, nothing is proposed to be transferred this year to the 

General Reserve. 


6. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR I<:DUCATION AND 
PROTECTION FUND 

Since there was no unpaid 1unclaimed dividend declared and paid last yearls, the provision 

of section 125 of the companies Act, 2013 does not apply. 

7. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS 

There is no change in nature of business as compared to last financial year. 


8. CHANGE IN THE NAME AND REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY 

There is no change in the name ofthe Company and registered office address of the Company. 


9. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING FINANCIAL 
POSITION 

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the 
company which has occurred between the end of the fmancial year i.e. March 31 " 2023 and 

the date of the Directors' Report. 

10. SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 
COURTS 

During the year under review, no significant and material order had been passed by the 
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Regulators or Courts. 

11. SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
As at March 31, 2023, the Company has one (0 I) subsidiary company in terms of the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"). There are no associate companies or joint 

venture companies within the meaning of ~ection 2(6) of the Act. There has been no material 
change in the nature of the business of the subsidiary. 

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary prepared in 
accordance with the applicable accounting standards, specified under Section 133 of the Act 

as applicable, forms part of this Annual Report. The audited annual accounts of the Company 
will also be kept open for inspection at the registered office of the company and respective 
subsidiary of the companies. 

A separate statement as required in terms of Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 is annexed to this report. 

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Statement containing salient features of the fmancial statements 
of the Company' s Subsidiary in Form AOC- l is attached to the consolidated fmancial 
statements. 

12. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
The information required pursuant to section 197(1 2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 5 ofthe Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014 in respect of the employees ofthe Company is not required. 

13. DEPOSITS 
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the financial year under 

review. 

14. EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON OUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS 
OR ADVERSE REMARKS OF DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS 
AND PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORT 

The observations of the auditors in their report are self- explanatory and therefore, in the 
opinion of the Directors, do not call for any further explanation. The Auditors' Report does 

not contain any qualification, reservation, disclaimer or adverse remark. 

The provisions relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report are not applicable to the 
Company. 

15. STATUTORY AUDITORS 
MIs. Krishan K. Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 000009N) 

were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 25th AGM of the Company 
for a period of 5 (five) years i.e. from the conclusion 25th AGM till date conclusion of 
Thirtieth (30th) AGM of the Company. 
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16. FRAUD REPORTING 
There was no fraud reported by the Statutory Auditors under Section 143(12) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 to the Board of Directors during the year under review. 

17. CONSERVATION 	 OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, 
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO 

Information pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 20 14 during the year under review. 

18. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH· AND DEVELOPMENT, 
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

Information pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 during the year under review. 

Conservation of Energy 

Current Year Previous Year 
A. 	 Power & fuel consumption: 

1. 	 Electricity 
(a) Purchased unit 	 2,66,53 1 2, 12,31 3 

Total Amount (In Lakh) 25.13 19.76 
Rate / unit 9.41 9.31 

(b) Own Generator 

(i) Through Diesel Generator 
Unit (K. litre) 89.5 1 88.25 
Units per lit of Diesel Oil 5.85 5. 80 

Cost /Unit 	 15.30 15.21 

(ii) Through Steam Turbine/Generator Unit 
Units per lit of Fuel Oil/ Gas NIL NIL 
Cost / Unit 

2. 	 Coal (Specify quality and where used) 
Quantity (Tones) 
Total Cost NIL NIL 

3. 	 Furnace Oil 
Quantity (Kilos) NIL NIL 

4. 	 Otherllnternal Generator (please give details) 
Quantity 
Total Cost NIL NIL 
Rate / Units 
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B. 	 Consumption per unit productions: 
Standard Current Year Previous Year 
(If any) 

Particulars (With details Unit) 

Production (Tabs & Caps Strip in ODD' s pack) 16,880 16,090 

Electricity (OOO's pack) 	 0.67 0.64 

Diesel Oil (OOO' s pack) 	 0.12 0.14 

Furnace Oil 	 NIL NIL 

Coal 	 NlL NIL 

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 


Research and Development (R & D) 

I . 	 Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the company: 

-Value-added new dosage formulations, and 

- Applying new technology for better processes 


2. 	 Benefits derived as a result of the above R &D 

- Improved Formulations 

- Cost optimization 

3. 	 Future plan ofaction: 

- Continue Development work on the above. 

4. 	 Expenditure on R & D (Rs. In lakh): 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 
a. 	 Quantity (Tones) Nil Nil 

b. 	 Recurring 69.66 48.65 

c. 	 Total 69.66 48.65 
d. 	 Total R&D Expenditure as a 

Percentage of total turnover 0.34% 0.28% 

Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation: 

a) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation 


- Efforts have been made for development offormulation of indigenous material 


b) Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts e.g. product improvement cost 

reduction, product development, import substitution etc. 

- Production improvement 

c) Imported technology (imported during the last six years reckoned from the beginning of 

the financial year) : 

- Does not apply. 
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Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo Current year Previous year 

Foreign Exchange Earned Nil Nil 
Foreign Exchange Outgo Rs 758.49 Lakh Rs.1869.99Lakh 

19. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

During the year, the Board of the Company is duly constituted with Mr. Ashok Chandra Sen, 
Mr. Vivek Manohar Padgaonkar, Mr. Nasim Uddin, Mr. Shanker Laxman Laad and Mr. 
Harnam Singh Thakur. 

However, after the closure of financial year 2022-2023, Mr. Nasim Uddin (DIN: 09670604) 

was appointed as an Additional Director, Non-executive of the Company with effect from 
18th June, 2022 and his appointment was regularized in the 28th Annual General Meeting of 

the Company by the shareholders held on November 28, 2023 . Further, In terms of Section 

149, 150, 152 read with schedule IV and Section 161(1) read with Companies (Appointment 

and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, ' Mr. Ashok Chandra Sen was appointed as 

Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 30th March, 2023 for a term of 5 (five) 

consecutive years till 29th March, 2028, not liable to retire by rotation. The Company has 

received consent from Mr. Ashok Chandra Sen to act as a Director and declaration to the 
effect that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and also a declaration under Section 164 of the Act that he is not 

disqualified from being appointed as a Director. In the opinion of the Board and on the basis 

of the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board believes 

that he is a person of integrity and possesses the relevant expertise and experience and fulfils 

the conditions specified in the Act and the Rules made thereunder and he is independent of 

the management and his appointment as an Independent Director would be beneficial to the 
Company and this will enable the Board to discharge its functions and duties effectively. 

During the year under review, Mr. Hamam Singh Thakur (DIN: 07665807), Director retires 

by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself 

for reappointment. 

20. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, the 
Board constituted and formed various ComriIittees, as follows: . 

(i) Audit Committee:­
During the year under review, the Committee comprises the following Members 

S. No. I Name oftbe Committee(s) Members 

I Audit Committee* 	 Mr. Vivek Padgaonkar 
Mr. Ashok Chandra Sen 
Mr. Harnam Singh Thakur 
Mr. Nasim Uddin 

- *Committee reconstituted on 30th Marcb, 2023 
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(ii) Stakeholders Relationship Committee:­

During the year under review, the Committee comprises the following Members 


S. No. Name of the Committee(s) Members 

I Stakeholders Relationship Committee' Mr. Vivek Padgaonkar 

I 	 Mr. Ashok Chandra Sen 


Mr. Shanker Laxman Laad 

I 

* CommIttee reconstituted on 30th March, 2023 

(iii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee:­

During the year under review, the Committee comprises the following Members 


S. Name of the Committee(s) Members I 
No. 

1 Nomination and Remuneration Mr. Vivek Padgaonkar 

Committee' 	 Mr. Ashok Chandra Sen 

Mr. Hamam Singh Thakur 

Mr. Shanker Laxman Laad I 
*Commlttee reconstituted on 30tb March, 2023 

(iv) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:­

During the year under review, the Committee comprises the following Members 


S.No. Name of the Committee(s) 	 Members 

Corporate Social Responsibility Mr. Vivek Padgaonkar 

Committee 	 'vlr. Nasim Uddin 

Mr. Shanker Laxman Laad 

21. 	 NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES & DETAILS OF 
ATTENDANCE 

During the current financial year, the Board of Directors of the Company duly met 11 (Eleven) 

times on the dates as mentioned below. In respect of such meetings proper notices were given and 

the proceedings were properly recorded and got signed as required by the Articles of Association 

of the Company and the provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013. The requisite quorum was present 

in all the meetings . 

DATE OF BOARD MEETINGS 

I 	 S. No. Date of Meeting I 

I. 13-04-2022 
2. 18-06-2022 I 

I 3. 09-07-2022 

~ 
4. 22-07-2022 
5. 08-08-2022 

I 6. 22-08-2022 

I 7. 01-09-2022 
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8. 17-09-2022 

f------'9"--. - 01-11-2022 


10. 30-11-2022c::J::C=r 30-03-2023 

Attendance Particulars 

Last AGM held Board MeetingsN'~'fDi~ Category on 28/1112022 

Held Attended 

I Mr. Nasirn Uddin 
I 

IN.E.D 10 10 Yes(DIN: 09670604) 
I I I -I Mr. Shanker Laxman 


Laad N.E.D II II Yes

I(DIN: 00105650) I I 


Mr. Hamam Singh Thakur II I I 

N.E.D I I Yes(DIN: 07665807) 

--~-r-
Mr. Vivek Maaohar 
Padgaonkar N.E.1D 6 6 Yes I 

N.E.1D NA 

Attendance of Directors of the Company at the Committee Meetings held during the Financial Year 
2022-23 are given below:­

Attend ance ParticularsI 

Audit Committee I NominatIOn & Stakeholders I CSR Committee 
Meetings Remuneration Relationship Meetings 

Conunittee Meetings Committee 
Meetings I 

I Name of Di rector- Category 

I I 

I 
I 

Held Attended Held1Attended Held I Attended Held Attended 

i iI 
3 3 3 3 I I I I 


(DIN: 09670604) I 

Mr. Shanker NA NA 3 I 3 1 1 1 1 

Laxman Laad N.E.D 


I (DIN: 00105650) I I 

I Mr Hamam Singh 

~~Uddin NED 

4 4 NA NA NA NA 

TIlakur N.E.D 
 I 
(DIN: 07665807) 

I Mr. Vivek Manohar 3 3 3 1 1 I I I ~ 
Padgaonkar ~ N.E.ID I 


JDIN: \OOOO~ I 

Mr Asbok Chandra I I NA NA NA NA NA NA 

Sen N.E.UJ 

(DIN: 09764909) I I 
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S.No. 

1 
2 
3 
4 -

DATE OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

Date of Audit Date of Nomination & Date of Date ofCSR 
Committee Meeting Remuneration Stakeholders Committee 

Committee Meeting Relationship Meeting 
Committee 

Meeting 
18-06-2022 18-06-2022 01-09-2022 01-09-2022 
01-09-2022 22-07-2022 
30-11-2022 30-03-2023 
30-03-2023 I 

22. 	 PARTICULARS OF LOANS. GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS: 

Loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
fonn part of the notes to the financial' statements provided in this Annual Report. 

23. 	 PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED 
PARTIES: 

The Company has not entered into any contracts/arrangements with the Related Parties other 
than its Subsidiary Company for the year under review which is disclosed in the financial 
statements of the Company. 

24. 	 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM 
AND ITS ADEQUACY: 

The Board of Directors of the Company has a framework to address the risk faced by the 

organization which provides a funnal mechanism for all Directors and employees of the 
Company to promote a pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks 
associated with the business. In order to achieve the key objective, the policy establishes a 
structured and disciplined approach to Risk Management, in order to guide decisions on risk 
related issues. In the opinion of the Board there are no elements of risk which may threaten 
the existence of the Company. 

25. 	 INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND SYSTEMS 

The Company has a proper and robust system of internal controls geared towards achieving 
efficiency of business operations, safeguarding the Company's assets and ensuring optimum 
utilization of resources. Such controls also ensure accuracy and promptness of financial 
reporting and compliance with statutory regulations. The Company has stringent internal 
audit procedures, with the audit being conducted internally by its own team. 

26. 	 DIRECTORS' RESPQNSffiILITY STATEMENT: 

Pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors confirm that: 
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a. 	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

b. 	 the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 

view ofthe state ofaffairs of the company as at March 31't, 2023 and of the profit and loss 
of the company for that period; 

c. 	 the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the 
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d. the ~:\irectors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 
e. 	The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

27. 	 DISCLOSURE ABOUT COST RECORDS & AUDIT 

The Board of Directors of your Company have appointed Mis Sourabh Jain & Associates, 

Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditors for the financial year 2023-24 to carry out an audit of 
cost records of the Company. 

28. 	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

The activities are in accordance with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 . In 

accordance with the provisions of Section 13 5 of the Companies Act, 201 3 read with the 

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 201 4, the annual report on 
Corporate Social Responsibility activities forming part of this report. 

During the year 2022-23, the Company has made the contribution of Rs. 133.16 Lakhs. 

29. 	 OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF 
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

In ·order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place a new act The Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 has 

been notified on 9th December, 2013. Under the ~aid ' Act, every company is required to set 
up an Internal Complaints Committee to look into complaints relating to sexual harassment 
at work place of any women employee. 

Company has adopted a policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace 


. and has set up Internal Complaints Committee for implementatio!J of said policy. No 

complaint pertaining to sexual harassment.at work place has been reported to the Company 


during the year ended March 31, 2023. 

30. 	 INTERNAL AUDITOR 

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies 

http:harassment.at


(Accounts) Rule, 201 4, the Board of Directors have appointed Mr. Prashant Kumar, 
Chartered Accountants, employee of the company as the Internal Auditor of the Company to 

conduct an Internal Audit of the functions and activities ofthe company for the financial year. 

2023-24. 

31. AUDITOR'S REPORT 


The detailed report has been annexed with the Director' s Report. 


32. COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India on meetings of the Board ofDirectors and General Meetings. 

33. WEB ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY 

The web address of the Company is ht1:ps:/Imartinharrislabs.com 

34. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere thanks to all for their continued support 
extended towards your company's activities during the year under review. Your Directors 

also acknowledge gratefully, the shareholders for their support and confidence reposed on 
your Company. 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 

NASIM UDDIN S. L.LAAD 
Director Director 
DIN: 09670604 DIN: 00105650 

PLACE: NEW DELHI 
DATE: 01" September, 2023 
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ANNEXURE INDEX 

I Annexure Content , 
I. AOC-I ~ 

~ II. 
III. 

Annual Report On Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activiti~ l 
Separate Statement on the Performance of Subsidiary -I 

'I IV. _ _ -"---'.A~n:--d",lt:::" ' s Re::.lP'-'o"'rt'----______ _______or ~ 
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Annexure I 
Form AOC-l 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 


Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate 

companies/joint ventures 


Part " A" : Subsidiaries 


(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.) 

P articulars 	 Details
lSI. I 

No. 
1. 	 Name of the subsidiary DeJite Infrastructure Private Limited 

2. 	 The date since when subsidiary was acquired __ _______ 2001_ 
3. 	 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if ­

different from the holding company' s reporting 

: period 


4. 	 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the INR in Lakhs 
last date of the relevant Financial year in the case 

I : offorei~ subsidiaries I - - - ­II 	 5. Share capital 1.00 -
6. 1Reserves & surplus 	 14,088.87 
7. ITotal assets 	 50,855.28 

---- --.- . --- _ .~!E----8. ITotal Liabilities 	 50,855.28 
9. IInvestments 	 20.02 
10. Turnover ­
1L 
12. 

r-- 13 . 

100 

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations Not applicable 
Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year Not applicable 

Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate 
Companies and Joint Ventures 
The Company does not have any Associate Company or Joint Venture . 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMlTED 

NASIM UDDIN S. L.LAAD 
Director Director 
DIN: 09670604 DIN: 00105650 

PLACE: New Delhi 

DATE: OJ,I september, 2023 
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Annexure II 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 

The Company at its Board meeting held on approved the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR) 
Policy. The Company's CSR policy is in terms of the provisions of Section 135 ofthe Companies Act, 

2013 (the Act) read with Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 201 4 and Schedule VII of the Act. The Company 

recognizes and is committed towards creating common good for all and shall implement its CSR activities 
to integrate economic, environmental and socia] objectives with its overall objectives for common good. 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

Sl.No Name of Director 	 Designation / Number of I Number of 
Nature of meetings of CSR meetings of CSR 
Directorship Committee held Committee 

during the year attended during 

the year 

I Mr. Vivek Padgaonkar ~hairman and 01 01 
II.11dependent Director 

2 Mr. Nasim Uddin ~ember and Non- 01 01 
Executive Director 

3 Mr. Shanker Laxman Laad ~ember and Non- 01 01 
Executive Director 

3. 	 ProVide the web-hnk where CompositlOn ofCSR comnuttee, CSR Pohcy and CSR projects approved 

by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: h.\!Rs:l!martinharrislabs.com 

4. 	 Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of 
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, ifapplicable (attach 
the report): Not Applicable. 

5. 	 Details of the amou.nt available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 

(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amou.nt required for set offfor the financial 

year, if any: Not Applicable 

SI.No Financial Year 	 Amount available Amount requiredto be set-off 
forset-off from from preceding financial years, if 
preceding any (in Rs) 

financial years (in 

Rs.) 

Not Applicable 

6. 	 Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): 

-	 YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 


Particulars 
 I 
31.03.2022 I 31.03.2021 I 31.03.2020 I Average Net Profit I 

Net Profit 6,928.85 5,963.28 I 7,081.4] I 6,65 7.85 I 
~--~----~-----

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 133.16 Lakhs 

(b) Surplu£ ariging out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previomfmanciai years: 

Not Applicable 
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(b) Amount required to be set offfor the financial year, if any : NIL 
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c) : Rs. 133.16 Lakhs 

7. (a) CSR amount spent eHIflSj')eHt for the financial year: Rs. 133.16 Lakhs 

,------­
Total Amount Unspent (in 

Amount Rs.) 
Spent for the Total Amonnt transferred Amount transferred to any fnod specified 
Financial toUnspent CSR Account as under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 
Year. (in lakh) persection 135(6) section 135(5). 

Amount IDate of . N arne of the IAmount IDate of 
Transfer Fund Transfer 

Rs. 133.16 
Not Applicable 

(b)Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year' Not Applicable 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
51. Name of Item Local Location of Proje Amo Amou Amount Modcof Modeof 
No. the from area tbe project ct unt fit transfer Implementa Implem entation 

Project. • the list (YeslN durat aUoe spent red to tion ­
of 0) ion. ated in tbe Unspent Direct(YesIN Througb 
activities for curren CSR 0). Implementing 
;n tbe t Account Agency 
Scbedul proje financi for the 

e VII to ct (in al project 

the Act Rs.). Year as per 

(in Rs Section 

135(6) 

On Rs.). 

Sta Distr 	 Nam CSR 
te iet. e 	 Registrati 

on nu wher. 

NA 
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(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year (In INR) 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
~ Nameof tbe ltemfrom Localarea Location of the Amount Mode of Mode of 

Project the listor (YcslNo project spentfor tbe implementa implementation _ 

activities in ) project (in tion - Through 

schedule VU to Rs.) Direct(YeslNo implementingagency 
the Act ) 

State District 	 Name 
I CSR 

registration 

Dumber (NA for 
2020-21) 

(a) \Education Contribution for Yes Haryana 58.16 Apeejay Sty, CSROO025573~o 
trromotion 	 ~romoting Education 

education FOlmdationI 
(b) IEducation Contribution for ~es Haryana 50.00 fNo padri Edueati01 CSROO025657 

trromotion 	 ~romoting rust 


~ducation 
 I I 
(e) ~ea1th Contribution for ~es New 5.00 ,",0 he Neuroa~~ CSROOO15148 

/Promotion 	 ~ea1th / Deihl od Researcl 

lPolio/COVIDIP Foundation l 
~Carc 

TOTAL 	 133.16 l 
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overhead: NIL 

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NIL 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) : Rs.133.16 (In Lakhs) 

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL 

SI.No Particular Amount (in Lakhs) 

(i) 	 Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 133.16 
section 135(5) 

(ii) 	 Total amount spent for the Financial year 133.16 

(iii) 	 Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] No·t Applicable 

(iv) 	 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or Not Applicable 
activities of the previous financial years, if any 

(v) 	 Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years Not Applicable 
[(iii)-(iv)] 

8. a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable 

Sl. 	 Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to any Amount 
No Financial transferred spent in fund specified under &hedule "remaining to 

Year to Unspent The VII as per section 135(6), if be spent in 

CSR reporting any. Succeedi ng 

Account Financial Name Amount Date of Financial 

under Year (in ofthe (in Rs). transfer Years. (in 

section 135 Rs.) Fund 	 Rs.) 

(6)(in Rs.) 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent In the hnanclal year tor ongolDg projects of the preceding 

financial year(s): Not Applicable 
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

Sl. Project Name Financial Year Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of tbe 

No. m. of the in which the Duration amount spent on Amount project ­

Project. project was allocated the spent a t the Completed 

commenced. for the project in eod of tOngoing. 

project the Reporting 

(iu Rs.), reporting Financial 

Financial Year, (in 

Year (in Rs.) 

Rs) 

Not Applicable 

9. 	In case of creation or acquisition o f capital asset, furn ish the details relating to the asset so 

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year : Not Applicable 

(Asset-wise details) 

a. 	 Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) 

b. Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset 

c. 	 Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capitalasset is 
registered, their address etc. 

d. 	Provide details of the capital assetls) created or acquired (including complete address and 

location of the capital asset). 

lO.Specity the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent ofthe average netprofit 

as per section 135(5). 

(Chairman CSR Committee) 
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Annexure In 

Statement containing highlights of performance of Subsidiary as on 31.03.2023 (Pursuant to 
Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

r. NolName of Company Reporting ubsidiary I ~bare Capit !Reserves & Surpl urnover rofi t! (Loss) rofitl (Loss) 
urrency ssociate lBefore Tax fter Tax

II pelite Infrastructure [NR inLakh ubsidiary 100 14,088.87 1,953.59 1,427.63 
!Private Limited 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 

NASIM UDDIN S. L. LAAD 
Director Director 

DIN: 09670604 DIN: 00105650 

PLACE: New Delhi 

DATE: 01S! September, 2023 
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Krishan K. Gupta &Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

As on 31-03-2023 


To the Members of 
MARTIN & HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED, 
Gurgaon, Haryana 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of MARTIN & 
HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED, ("the Company"), which comprise the 
balance sheet as at 3 1st March 2023, and the statement of Profit and 
Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information . 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the 
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31 , 
2023 and profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended 
on that date . 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and th e Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for OL].r opinion . 

.. . .. . . 2 

"VAROAN" A.1~47, SafdiljullR t:ndave, New Delhi - 110029 (InUia) 
Tel.: +91-11-49950420,49935822 

E·mail; speedex3@gmaIl.com, kllgupta2503@gmall.com 
W.b.itn: www.krilhankgupt~m .lc;ai.QflI . in 
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Krishan K. Gupta & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

contd. Audit Report MARTIN &. HARRIS LAB. LTD. 

-:2:-

Kev Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, 
were of most s ignificance in our audit of th e financial statements of the 
current period. Thes e matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the financial statements as a whole, and in fo rming our opinion 
th ereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's 
Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of 
the other information. The ,other information comprises the information 
included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report 
including Annexures to Board's Report , Business Responsibility Report, 
Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but d oes not 
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

In connection with ou r audit of the financial statements , our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is no 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report ill lhis regard. 

Responsibilities of Manal!ement and Those Charged With 
Governance for the Financial Statements 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters sta ted 
in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to 
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance, ch anges in equity 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the a ccounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility 
a lso includes maintenance of adequate accounting r ecords in accordance 
with the provisions of th e Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and' 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls , th at were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material m isstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

. ...... 3
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In preparin g the fmancial statemen ts, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going con cern, 
disclosing, as app licable, matters related to going concern and u s in g the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquida te the Company or to cease operations; or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Th ose Board of Directors a re also responsible for overseeing the 
Com pany's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements as a whole are free from ma terial misstatement , 
whether due to fraud or error, an d to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material m issta tement wh en it exists. Missta tements 
can aris e from fraud or error and are considered material if, in dividually 
or in the aggregate, they could r easonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional scepticism thr oughou t t he audit . We 
also: 

• IdentifY and as sess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to frau d or error, design and per form audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material missta tement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, a s fraud may involve collus ion, forgery, 
intentional omiss ions , misrepresen tations, or the override of internal 
control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that a re a ppropriate in the 
circumstances . Under s ection 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 20 13, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company 
has adequate internal fmancial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such con trols . 

• Evaluate the a ppropriateness of accounting policies u sed and the 
reasonableness of accou nting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management 's u se of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on th e Company's ability to continue as a 
going concern . If we conclude tha t a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if ~mr.h rli ~dosures are 
inadequate, to modifY our opinion. :J:l 
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Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 
of our auditor 's report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue a s a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, s tructure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements 
th at, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable u ser of the financial statements 
may be influ enced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of ou r audit work and in evaluating the 
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the fmancial sta tements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of t he audit and significant 
audit findings, inclu ding any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. ­

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we 
h ave complied with relevan t ethical requirements 'regarding 
in dependence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those m atters th at were of most significance in the audit of the 
financial statem ents of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
com municated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication , 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor 's Report) Order, 2016 ("the 
Order"), issu ed by the Central Government of India in terms of sub­
section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the 
"Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 
of the Order, to the exten t applicable, 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanation s \which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit. 
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b) 	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have 
been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books 

c) 	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with b y this 
Report are in agreement with the books of accoun t. 

d) 	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with Ru le 7 of the Companies (Accounts) "Rules, 2014. 

e) 	 On the basis of th e written representations received from the 
directors as on 3 1st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors , none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) 
of the Act. 

f) 	 With respect to the adequacy of the in.ternal financial controls over 
financial reporting of th e Company and the operqting effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure Boo . Our 
report expresses a n unmodified opinion on the adequacy apd 
operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting. 

g) 	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's 
Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197 (16) of 
the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
.	the explanHtions given to u s, the remuneration paid by the 
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the 
provisions of scction 197 of the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's 
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the b est of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. 	 The Company has made provision as required under the 
applicable law or accounting standards, for m aterial foreseeable 
losses, if any, in respect of long-term . contracts including 
derivative contracts . 

ii. 	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

(K.K. GUPTA) 
Prop. 
M. No. 8311 
For and on behalf of 
KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN' nnnn09N Placc: Ncw Dclhi 
UDIN : 23008311BGVFQW9728 Dated: OIst September, 2023 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report 
AUDITOR'S REPORT AS PER THE COMPANIES (AUDITOR'S REPORT) 
ORDER, 2020: 

1. 	 a) The · company has maintained proper record s showing full 
particulars, including quantitat ive details and situation of property, plant 
and equipment. 

b) 	 As expla ined to us , property, plant and equipment have b een 
physically verified by th e mana gement a t reasonable interval no material 
discrepancies were n09ced on such verification. 

c) Th e company holds immovable property disclosed in the financial 
statements are held in the name of th e company. 

d) The Company has n ot revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment ' 
during the year. 

e) No proceeding has been initiated against the Company for holding 
any Benami property u nder Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act 1988. 

2. 	 a) Inventories have been physically verified during the year by th e 
management at reasonable intervals. No material discrepancy was 
noticed on physical verification of stocks by the management as 
compared to book records. 

b) The Company has borrowing~ from the bank on the basis of 
security of current assets. 

3. 	 The company has granted unsecured loans, but not provided guarantee 
and made investments in its wholly own ed subsidiary i.e related party 
which is covered under register maintained, under section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 

4 . 	 In respect of loans, investments and guarantee~ made provisions of 
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied 
with. 

5. 	 The Company has not accepted deposits within the meaning of Rule 2 (c) 
(xii) (a) of Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 or any such 
amount which are deemed to be deposits. 

6. 	 On the basis of records produced we are of the opinion that prima facie 
cost records and accounts prescribed by the Central Government under 
sub section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of 
products of the Company covered under th e rules under said section 
have been made and maintained. However, we are neither required to 
carry out nor have carried out any detailed examination of such accounts 
and records. 

7. 	 According to information and explanation given to u s, the company is 
regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory 
tlue~ illdutlillg 111uvitlellL [uml, e11111luyee~ ~laLe ill:;ulallce , illl;U111t lax, 
service tax, custom duty, goods cess, other statutory dues and interest/ 
penalty towards delayed payme~ of dues to the extent applicable to It. 



According to the infonnation and explan ations given to us, there were n o 
undisputed amounts which were outstanding as a t 31 March 2023 for a 
period of more than six months from the date of becoming payable. 

8. 	 No transaction has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the 
year in tax assessment u nder Income Tax Act, 1961 which had n ot been 
r ecorded in the books of accou n t of the year:. 

9. 	 a) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information's and 
explanations given to us, we are of the opinion tha t the company has not 
defaulted in repayment of dues to any bank or other quarter on account 
of principal loan or in terest . 

b) Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or 
financial inst itution or oth er lenders. 

c) 	 No t erm loan has been availed by the company from any quarter. 

d) No fund raised on short tenn basis has been found to have been 
utilised for long tenn pu rpose. 

e) Company h as one wholly owned subsidiary company ·in the name 
of Delite Infrastructure Private Limited . 

However, the company has n o other joint venture or associate 
company with consequent non applicability of this clause with th e 
company. 

10. 	 a ) The Company h a s raised n o money by way of IP.o or Further Public 
.offer including debt instruments during the year. 

b ) The COmpal1.Y h as n ot made any preferen tial allotment of shares 
during the year. 

11. 	 a ) No fraud by the company or on the company has been noticed or 
reported durin g the year. 

b) No repor t u nder section 143 (12) of Companies Act 2013 has been 
filed by us during the year. 

c) 	 We have received no whistle-blower complaint during the yea r. 

12 . 	 The Com pany is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly paragraph 3 (xii) of 
the .order is not applicable. 

13. There h as been no transactions with any r elated party covered under 
section 188 of the Companies Act, 20 13. All the transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the details of related party t ransactions have b een disclosed in 
the Financial Statements as required by th e applicable Indian 
Accounting Standards. 

14 . 	 The company is stated to h ave an internal audit system commensurate 
with th e size and nature of its bus iness . 
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IS. The company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with 
directors or persons connected with him. 

16. 	 a ) The company is not required to be registered u nder section 4S-IA 
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

b) The Company has not conducted any non-banking financial or 
housing financial activities during the year. 

c) 	 Company is not a Core Investment Company (ClC). 

d) The company does not belong to any group which has a CIC as its 
member. 

17. 	 The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year 
2022-23 and in the immediately preceding financial year in 2021 -22. 

18 . 	 There has been no instance of any resignation of the statutory auditors 
during the year. 

19 . 	 In our opinion no material uncertainty is observed to exist as on the date 
of the audit report about the ability of the company of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fail due 
within a period of 1 year from the balance sheet date . 

20. 	 No amount remains unspent under section 13S(S) of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

21. 	 The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable to the company. 

(K.K. GUPTA) 
Prop. 
M. No. 831 1 
For and on behalf of 
KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 000009N 
UDIN : 23008311BGVFQW9728 

Place : New Delhi 
Dated: 01,t September, 2023 
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Annexure B referred to in Paragraph (III (f) under the heading of 
"Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of our report 
of even date for the Year Ended 31-03-2023 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 20 13 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reportin g of 
Standalone MARTIN & HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED ("the Company") 
as of March 31st, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial 
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

A. Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls ba sed on "the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guid ance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI)" . These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate interna l financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, induding adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of 
its a sset s, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting rer.ords, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

B. Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opmlOn on the Company's internal 
financial controls over financia l reporting based on ' our audit . ' We 
conducted our audit in a ccordance with the Guidance Note and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
u nder section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to a n audit of 
internal fmancia l controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
a ll material r espects . 
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about 
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting a nd their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtain ing a n understanding of 
in ternal financial controls over financia l reporting, assessing t h e risk 
that a m a terial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating th e design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the a s sessed 
risk. The procedu res selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of m aterial misstatement of the 
financial statemen ts, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we h ave obtained is sufficien t and 
appropriate to provide a basis for ou r audit opinion on t he Company's 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

C. Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a 
process designed to p rovide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financia l reporting and the prepara tion of financial 
statements for external pu rposes in accordance with generally accepted 
a ccounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that: 

a) 	 pertain to the main tenance of records tha t, in reasonable detail, 
accurately a nd fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the Company; 

b) 	 provide reasonable assur ance that transactions an~ r~corded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounling principles , and that 
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
Company; and 

c) 	provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized a cquisition, use , or disposition of the 
Company's a ssets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statem en ts. 

D. Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud. may occur a nd not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
a re subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes 'in conditions , or 
llIal the degree of compliancc with the policies or procedurf's mAy 
deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion , the Company has, in all material respects, an a dequate 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 3 1 March 2023, based on "the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established ·by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
issued by the ICAl". 

(K.K. GUPTA) 
Prop. 
M. No. 8311 
For and on behalf of 
KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 000009N 
UDIN: 23008311BGVFQW9728 

Pla.ce: New Delhi 
Dated: 0 1 st September, 2023 

40 



MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Standalone Balance sheet as on 31 March 2023 
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

As at As a t 

Note 3 I March 2623 31 MaTch 2622 

Non-current assets 
(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 
(e) Financial assets 

(d)Deferred tax assets (net) 

Total non-current assets 

Current nsseb 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investm<:nts 
(ii) Trade receivables 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iv) Bank balances ollll.:[ than (ii) above 

(v) Loans 
(vi) Other financ ial assets 

(e) CWTent tax assets (net) 
(d) Other current assets 

Total current assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

II . EQUITY AND LI ABILITIES 

Elluily 

(a) Equity share capital 

(b) Other equity 


Total equity 


Non-current liabilities 

(a) Provisions 

(b) Other non-current liab ilities 

(e) Deferred Lax liabilities (Net) 


Total non-current liabili ties 


C urrent liabilities 
(a) Financial habilities 

(i) Rormwings 

(ii) Trade payables 

a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

b) tota l outstand ing dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 

small enterprises 

(i ii) Other financial liabilities 


l b) Utber current Uahilit ics 


(e) Provisions 

(d) Income tax Iiahilities (net) 


Total cu rrent liabilities 


Total Ullhilities 

TOTAL EQUI~Y AND LIABILITIES 

Significant accOlmting policies 

Notes to the financ ial statements 

TIle notes referred to above form an integral part oftbe financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN, 000009N 

K.K. GUPTA 
Proprietor 

M.No.8311 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: Ol st September, 2023 
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1,553.31 
340.65 

2,443.50 

36,712.5 8 

1.09 

41 ,051.13 

1,858.00 

136.91 

27.43 
6.30 

3,009.46 

44.86 
146,19 

1,065.6\ 

6,294.77 

47,345.90 

399.60 

44,840.23 

45,239.83 

68 .32 

15 . 16 

83,48 

418.68 

972 .69 

424.54 

168.1 6 

38.22 

2,022.58 

2,1 06.06 

47.345.90 

1,299.62 

39.74 

1,654 .71 

2.778.77 

5,772.83 

2,388.59 

31,793.30 

129.62 

6.30 

166 .20 
142.30 

1,169.69 

35,796.60 

41,568.84 

399.60 

39,671.73 

40,071.33 

65. 32 

17.48 

15.38 

98.18 

393 .94 

514.93 

212.35 

99.72 

23. 93 

154.45 

1,399.3 2 

1,497.51 

4 1:568.84 

For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Martin And Harris Laboratories Limited 

NASIMUDDIN 
Director 
DIN: 09670604 

S.L. LAAD 
Director 

DIN: 00105650 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

Income 
Revenue from operations 

Other income 

Total Income 

Expenses 
Cost of material, operation and incidental cost 
Employee benefits expenses 

Finance costs 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 

Other expenses 

Tot al expenses 

Profit before tax 

Tax expense: 
Current tax 

Deferred tax 
Tax in respect of earlier years 

Profit for the year 

Oth er comprehensive income/(loss} fo r th e year 

(i) Items that will not be reclassifi ed to profit or loss 

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability! (asset) 

Income lax on remeasurements of defmed benefit liability I (asset) 


Equity instruments designated through other comprehensive income 
Lncome tax related to eq uity instruments designated through other 

comprehensive income 

Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 

Total comprehensive income fo r the year 

Ear nings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10 each) 

Basic earnings per share 

Diluted earnings per share 

Significant accounting policies 

Notes 10 the financial statements 

The notes referred to above fonn an integral part of the fi nancial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

fRN, 000009N 

K.K. GUPTA 
Proprietor 
M. No. 8311 

Place: New Dellii 

Dated: 01st September, 2023 

For year ended For year endedNote 
31 Mar ch 2023 31 March 2022 

23 20,5 16.48 17, 192.74 

24 252.78 45. 29 

20,769.26 17,238.03 

25 4,71 3.88 3.753.66 
26 2,462.98 1,864.49 
27 21.60 15.78 

28 269.90 217.82 

29 6,045 .8 1 4,442 .33 

\3,51 4.15 10,294.08 

7,255.10 6,943.95 

30 
1,888.56 1,800,43 

(16.5 9) (71.01) 
3.89 (0.02) 

5,379.25 5,214.55 

3.27 (734) 
(0.82) 1.85 

(6 .10) 178.78 
0.70 (20,45) 

(2.95) 152.84 

(2.95) 152.84 

5,376.30 5,367.38 

31 134.61 130.49 

134.61 130.19 

2-61 

For and on behalf of the board of directors of 


Martin And Harris laboratorie.<; Limited 


NASIM UDDIN S.L. LAAD 

Director Director 
DIN, 09670604 DIN,00105650 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(Currency: Indian Rup ees in Lakbs) 

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 

Number ofSbares Amount Number of Shares Amount 

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year j~,Yo,U4U 399 .60 39,96,040 

Changes in equity share cap ital during tbe year 


Balance althe end afthe reporting year 39,96,040 399.60 39,96,040 399.60 

(b) Olber equity 

Reserves and Surplus Equity instruments 
Total otherParticulars 1-----...,----s,--,,-"-riti.,-·,,-,--------1 o~:~;::::r:~eo~~:e equity 

Retained Earnings Premium General reserve income 

Balance at 1 April 202 1 33,996.22 4.75 410.05 29.19 34,440.21 

Total comprehensive income for the year cnded 31 March 2022 

Addf(Less): 

Profit for the year 5,2[4.55 5,2 14.55 

Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 


- Remcasurements of post employment benefit obligations (549) (5,49) 
- Equity instruments designated through other comprehensive income 158.33 158.33 

Transfer from I (to) other reserves 19.63 (19.63) 
Dividend Paid 135.87 U35.87 
Total comprehensive income 5092.82 138.69 5231.52 

Balance at 31 March 2022 39089.05 4.75 410.05 167.88 39671 .73 

Total comprehensiYe income for the year ended 31 March 2023 

AddJ(Less): 

Profit for the year 5.379.25 5,379.25 

Other comp rehensive income (net of tax) 


- RemeasuremenlS of post employment bene fit obligations 2.45 2.45 
- Equity instruments designated through other comprehensive incomc (540) (5 .40) 

Dividend Paid 207 .79) 207.79 
Total comprehensive income 5 173.91 5.40 5.168.51 

Blllance at 31 Ma rch 2023 44,262.1)5 4.7~ 410.05 162.48 44,840.23 

Nature and purpose of reserves 

i) Securilies premium 

St:(;ulilit:~ pleLU iu[JJ accoutlt is uscd to record th(; premium on issue ofslmrC3. 


iJ) Retained earnings 


Retained earnings comprises of undistributed earnings after taxes 


iii) General reserve 

It is created by setting aside amount from the retained earnings of the compaoy for general purposcs which is freely available for distribution. 


iv) FYOCI equity investmt;nb 

The company has elected to rccognise changes in the fair value ot"certam 11lvestments ill eqUIty seeunl!es mother comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated withIn the 
FVOCI equity investmen.ts reserve within cquity. The company transfe rs amounts from th is reserve to reta ined earnings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised. 

For KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO. For and on behalf of the board of directors of 

CbarteredAccOllIltants Martin And Harris Labo ratories Limited 

FRN: 000009N 


K.K.GUPTA NASIM UDDIN S.L, LAAD 

Proprietor Direc tor Director 

M.No.8311 DIN: 09670604 DIN: 00105650 


Place: New Deihi 

Dated: Olst September. 2023 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Standalone Statement of Cash flows fo r the year cnded 31 March 2023 
(Cu rrency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

Par ticulars F or t he year ended For the year ended 
31 Mardi 2023 31 Marcb 2022 

A. Cash flow from operating activities 
Net Profi t before extraordinary items and tax 7,255. 10 6,94).95 
Adjustmelllsf()I 

I n tere~ t received (137. 85) (2.76) 
C.rran ts written Back (2.32) ( 2 . 3~) 

Gain on sale of investments (77.33) (15.1 0) 
Interest paid 11.08 12.60 
Depreciation and amortisation 269.90 2J 7.82 

63.47 210.24 
Opcrll tin~ profit befor e worki n~ capital Chanl::C5 7,318.57 7,154.19 
Changes in working capital. 

(I n crea~e) in other non-curn:n! fmancial 10 ans (33,933. 81 ) 27,8 07.37 
Decrease I (Increa~e) in inventories 530 .59 (545 .34) 
(Increase) in trade receivables (136.9 1) 12.20 
(Incrt!3se) in cuncn! fmanciallomls (3,009.46) 
Decrease I (lncrease), in other cunent fina ncial as~e ts 12 1. 34 144.4 1 
Decre~~e in other cmTenl assets 104.08 22 4.69 
Increase in non-current provisions 3.00 14.62 
Increase I (Decrease) in trade payables 457 .75 (1 48.7 1) 
Increase in other current fi nancial liabil iti es 212.1 9 (92.6 1) 
(Decrease) IIncrease in other cruTent liabi lities 68, 74 18.49 
Increase in current provisions 16.74 3.00 

.135,565.75 27,438.\1 
C~sh gener~t ed from oper~ ti ons (28,247.18) 34,592.30 
Net income tax (paid) (2,049.96 ( 1,650.34) 
Net eash flow ~enerated from oper:l ting activities (30297.15) 32,941.95 

B. Cash now from investing activities 

Purchase of property, plant and equipml: nt, intangible a~~ets and capital 

work-in-progress 

(833,24) 
(21 385) 

Sale proceeds of property, plant and equipment 8.74 
Bank deposit; placed! matured during the year (0. 58) 
Purchase of inve~tments (32,601.59) (39,600.87) 
Proceeds from sale of investments 63,677. 33 6,990 ,1 6 
Iote rest received 137,85 2.76 
Net cash flow (used in) invest ing activities 30 89.09 32822.3 

C. C ash flow from fin ancing activities 
Long· term borrowing~ (repaid) during the year 
(Repayment) I Proceeds of short-term borrowings (net) 24. 74 79.92 
Interest paid ( 11.08) (1 2.60) 
Fin al dividend paid (207.79) (135.87) 
Net cosh fl ow (used iu) fi unncinp; Il ctivitles 194.13 68.54) 

Net (decrease) in C ash li nd cash equivalents (A+B+C) (102. 19) 51.03 
F ff<,:r! fl f p ~ clmnge dim'rcncc~ on res tatement of foreign eurrenc), Cnah un d 
cash I: quivalents 
Cash and cash equiva lents at the begiIUlrng of the year I 129.62 78.59 
Cash and cash equivalents a t the end of t he year 27.43 ~ 

Noles to cllsh fl ow sliltemene 
(i) The above Cash fl ow Statement has been prepared under the Iodirect method set out in Indian Accotmting Standard (Iud AS) 7 on Statement ofeash 

rtuws. 

(ii) Prior year comparatives ha v~ been reclassified 10 confoml with current year' s presentation, where applicable 
(iii) For the purpose of cash flow, Cash and ca~h equivalents comprise : 

Cash on band 1.99 1.61 
Balances with bank 
- Current accounts 25.44 128.01 

27.43 129.02 

See accompanying note~ fonning integral part of these standalone financia l sta tements 1·61 

As per our report attllched of even date 

For KRISHAN K GUPTA & CO. For a nd on bchaIr or the boa rd or d irectors or 
Charte red Accountants M a rtin And H a r r is Labo ratories Limited 
FRN: 0OO009N 

KK. GUPTA NAS1M UDDIN S.L. LAAD 
Proprietor Director Director 
M.No, 83 11 DIN : 09670604 DIN: 001 05650 

Place: New Delhi 
Dll ted: OIsI September, 2023 



Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

Summary of significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial statements. 

1. Significant accounting policies 

1.1. Basis of preparation of financial statements: 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (lnd 
AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act') read with rule 3 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards), Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued 
thereafter. 

The fillancial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 0 I ,\ September 2023 

Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company' s functional 
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest in Lakhs, as per the requirements of 
Schedule III of the Act, unless otherwise stated. 

1.2. Basis of measurement 


The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 


• certain financial assets and liabilities (inclnding derivative instruments) that are measured at fair 
value; and 

• net defined benefit (asset) / liability that are measured at fair value of plan assets less present value 
of defined benefit obligations. . 

1.3. Use of judgements estimates and assumptions. 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, 
current assets, non-current assets, current liabilities, non-current liabilities, and disclosure of the 
contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. Such estimates are on a reasonable and 
prudent basis considering all available information, however, due to uncertainties about these 
judgments, estimates and assumptions, actual results could differ from estimates. Information about 
each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes. 

Judgements 

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant 
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes: 

Note 38 - classification offillancial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets 
are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 



Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 M arch 2 023 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 

Information about asswnptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in 
a material adjustment is included in the following notes: 

Note 2- Useful life of depreciable assets - Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Note 32 - Recognition of contingencies, key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of 

outflow of resources. 


• Note 30 - Recognition of tax expense including deferred tax. 

1.4. Current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities 

The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-current 
classification. 

An asset is classified as current when it is : 

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 

Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liabili ty is classified as current when it is: 

Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 

Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period 

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in 
cash and cash equivalents. Based on the nature of products/services and the time between acquisition 
of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the company has identified 
twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current / non - CutTent classification of assets 
and liability. 

1.5. Property, plant and eqnipment: 

• Recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, 
if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including 
import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing 
the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in 
arriving at the purchase price. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction of a qualifying 
asset are capitalised as part of the cost. The company identifies and determines cost of each 
component/ part of the asset separately, if the component! patt has a cost which is significant to the 
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Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

1.10. Foreign currency transactions: 

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transactions. 
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss of the year. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are outstanding, as at the 
reporting period are translated at the closing exchange rates and the resultant exchange differences are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured in terms of 
historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a 
foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined. 

1.11. Employee benefits: 

• Short-term employee benefits 

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classifi ed as 
short-term employee benefits. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to 
be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognized during the year. 

• Post-employment benefits 

Defiued contribution plans 

Contributions' to the provident fund which is defined contribution scheme, are recognised as an 
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the contribution is 
due. Contributions are made in accordance with the rules of the statute and are recognised as expenses 
when cmployccs rcndcr service entitling them to the conU·ibutions . 

If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received bdure the balance sheet date exceeds 
the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after 
deducting the contribution already paid. Ifthe contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due 
for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent 
that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund. 

Defined benefit plans 

The employees' gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under 
such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit 
method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit 
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. 

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates 
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the 
market yields on goverrunent securities as at the reporting date, having maturity periods 
approximating to the terms of related obligations. 

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding 
amounts inc1uded in net interest On the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets 
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised 
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immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through 
other comprehensive income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not 
reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods. 

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the planned assets is reduced from the gross obligation under 
the defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on net basis. 

When the benefits of the plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefits 
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the 
statement of profit and loss. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined 
benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises gains/ losses on settlement of a defined plan when 
the settlement occurs. 

• Other long-term employee benefits 

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of 
the reporting period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured 
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by 
employees up to the end ofthe reporting period using the projected unit credit method as detennined 
by actuarial valuation. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting 
period that have terms approximating the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result 
of experience adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity 
does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting 
period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur. 

1.12. Income taxes: 

Iricome tax expenSe comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognised directly in equity 
or in other comprehensive income (OCI). 

• Current tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to 
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are 
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates and 
generates taxable income. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally 
enforceable right to set it off the recognised amounts and it is intended to realise the asset and settle 
the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. 

• Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax 
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the 
reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability 
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither 
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; 

- Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. 
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Defen-ed tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary di fferences, the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that taxab le profit will be avai lable against which the deductible temporary differences, and 
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses (including unabsorbed depreciation) can 
be utilised, except: 

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction tbat is not a business combination and, at the time 
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

The ca rrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and red uced to the 
. extent that it is no longer probab le that sufficienr taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of 
the de ferred tax asse! to be utilised .. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting 
dnte and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future !·axable profits will allow 
the deferred Utx asset to be recovered. 
Defen-ed tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year 
when the asset i~ realised or the liability is settled, based on ta x rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enncted or substant ively enacted at the report ing date. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the .sarne taxable entity 
and the same taxat ion authority. 

Deferred tax rela!ing to items recognised outside profit or lo~s is reco gn ised ou!sid e profit or loss. 
DefelTed tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in ocr or directly 
in equity. 

1.13. Earnings per share (EPS): 

Basic EPS is ca lcu lated by dividing the profit for the year altribuUtble to equi ty holders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding ciuring the financial year, 
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares. 
Diluted EPS acUust tbe figures used in the detelmination of basic EPS to consider 

- The after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with diluti ve potential 
equity shares , and 

- The weigbted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding 
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

1.14. Provision and contingent liabilities I assets: 
/ 

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (l eg~ 1 or constructi ve) as a 
resu lt of a past event, it is probable that arr outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
requiJ"ed to settle the obligation and a reliable esti mate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

[f the effect of the time value of Inoney is material, provisions are discounted using a CUlTent pre-tax 
rate that rellects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the· liabil ity. When discounting is used , the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost in the statement of 
profit and IQss. 

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of: 
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- a presen t obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation. 

- present obligation arising from past events, when no re liable estimate is possible 
- a possible obligation arising from past events where the probabi lity of outflow of resources is not 

remote. 

Contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements. A con tingent asset is disclosed, where 
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 

1.15. Cas It and cash equiva lents: 

Cash and cash equiva lents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-tenn 
deposits with an original maturity of not more than three months, which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in va lue. 

1.16. Cash flow statement: 

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net Profit before tax is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, such as deferrals or accrua ls of past or future operating 
cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing 
cash flow s. For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows , bank overdrafts are 
considered to be part of cash and cash equivalents. 

1.17. Leases 

At inception of a contract, the company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract 
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control. the use of an identified asset for a 
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an identified asset, the company assesses whether: 

the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be spec ified explicitly or implicitly 
and shou ld be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically 
distinct asset. If the supplier has a substan tive substil1ltion right, theu the asset is not identified. 
the CompallY has the right to obtain substa ntia lly all of the econom ic benefIts from use of the 
asset throughout the period of use; and' 
the Company has the right to direct the use of the asse t. The Company has this right when it has 
the decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset 
is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is 
predetennined, the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset if ei ther : 

the Company has the right to operate the asset; or 
the Company designed the asset in a way that predetem'ifnes how and for what purpose it will 
be used. 

At inception or on reassessment ofa contract that co ntains a lease component, the Company allocates 
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the bas is of their relative stand-alone 
prices. 

Company as a lessee 

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. 
The right-of-llse asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 
liabil ity adjusl'ed for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial 
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direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to 
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease ince~tives received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of 
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as 
those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at 
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot 
be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its 
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: 
• 	 fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments. 

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or 
rate as at the commencement date. 
amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and 
the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, 
lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an 
extension option, and penalties for early tennination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably 
certain not to tenninate early. 

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured 
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a 
change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value 
guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment ofwhether it will exercise a purchase, extension 
or tennination option. 

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of­
use asset has been reduced to zero. 

1.18. Fair value measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based 

on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 


- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 


The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of 

an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptivns that market participants would use when 

pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A 

fair value measurement of a non-financial asset considers a market participant's ability to generate 

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another. 


The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 

and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
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• Levell - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 


• l!.evel 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable. 


For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 

Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 

categorisation (baseo on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 

whole) at the end of each reporting period. 


For the purpose offair value di~c1osures, the Company has detennined classes of assets and liabilities 

based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value 

hierarchy as explained above. 


1.19. Financial instruments 

1.19.1. Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 

liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts 

such as foreign currency foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and currency 

options; and embedded derivatives in the host contract. All financial assets are recognised initially at 
 I
fair value plus, in the case of financial assets· not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. I 
Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in one of the three categories: 

a) At amortised cost 

b) At fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (,FVTOCI') 

c) At fair value through profit or loss ('FVTPL') 


(a) Financial assets classified as measured at amortised cost 

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost ifboth of the fo llowing conditions are met: 

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in 
order to collect contractual cash flows and 
the contractual tcrms of the financial asset gi V~ ris~ un specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial mcasurement, such financial assds are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate ('EIR') method, less impairment charge. Amortised cost is calculated by 
considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance expense/ (income) in the statement of profit and 
loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This 
category generally applies to trade receivables, security and other deposits receivable by the 
Company. 

(b) Financial assets classified as measured at FVTOCI 
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Assets that are held for collection ofcontractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where 
the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. 
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through ocr, except for the recognition of impairment 
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit 
and loss. When the fmancial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised 
in OCI is reclassified from equity to retained earnings. Interest income from these financial assets is 
included in other income using the effective interest rate method. 

(e) Financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL 

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through 
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through 
profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net 
in the statement of profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest 
income from these frnancial assets is included in other income. 

De-recognition of financial asset 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flo ws from the 
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in 
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in 
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but 
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards ()f the transferred assets, the transferred 
assets are not derecognised. 

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (EeL) model for 
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk 
exposure: 

- Financial assets that are debt instruments, end are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, deposits 
and bank balances. 

Trade receivables. 

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade 
receivables. 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. 

Rather, it recognises impairment loss alluwance bascd on lifetime ECLs at e~r.h reporting date. right 

from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on uther financial assets and risk exposure, the Company 

determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. 

If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairmenlloss. 


1.19.2. Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as fmancial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised 
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initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable 
and incremental transaction cost. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the 
statement ofprofit and loss. 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 
designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if 
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes 
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging 
instmments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profi t and loss. 

Financial liabilities designated as such upon initial recognition at the initial date of recognition if the 
criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses 
attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognised in OCt These gains/ losses are not 
subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the 
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised 
in the statement ofprofit and loss. 

(a) Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

This is the most relevant category to the Company. The Company generally classifies interest bearing 
borrowings as financial liabilities carried at amortised cost. After initial recognition, these instruments 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and 
losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as we1l 
as through the EIR amortisation process . 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into acconnt any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the ErR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the 
statement ofprofit and loss. 

De-recognition of financial liability 

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from the balance sheet when, 
and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or 
cancelled or expired. 

Wben an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on snbstantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability ond the recognition of a new 
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amolUlts ·is recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and tlle net amount is reported in the balance sheet 
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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Derivative financial instruments 

Derivative s are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are 
measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss. 

1.19.3. Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing 
standards under Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 
March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by 
issuing the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from Apri l 
1, 2023, as below: 

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements 

The amendments require companies to disclose their materia} accounting policies rather than their 
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information, is 
material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general­
purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant 
impact in its financial statements. 

lnd AS 12 - Income Taxes 

The amendments narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it no longer applies 
to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and offsetting temporary 
differences. The Company does not expect this amendment. to have any significant impact in its 
financial statements. 

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

The defmition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting 
estimates and includes amendments to lnd AS R to belp entities distinguish changes in accounting 
po licies from changes in accounting estimates. The Company does not expect this amendment to have 
any significant impact in its financial statements. 
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Notes to thestaodalooe finaocia l ~Ultemeot5(continul!d) 

(Curren(v: Indian Ruoees in Lakbs) 

2 Pf<loerty,plant an d equ'ipment 

Des(riptioo Land VebJcles 
Plaotaod 

equ ipment 
Building 

Funaltureaod 
nxtures Compulet Office 

eq uipment 
Leasehotd 

IropfO\'ement 
Total Owned 
.~. 

Gro" block 
BalaIlCe as at I April 2021 
Additions 
Deletion 
BaJanceasat31 March 2022 

169.37 

169.37 

293.07 

293.07 

1,489.44 
153.77 

1,643.20 

494.38 

494.38 

110.53 
0.77 

111 .30 

88.53 
19.19 

107.72 

1238 
0.38 

12.76 

42 .21 

42.21 

2,699.91 
174.11 

2,874.01 

Balance as at 1Apri l 2022 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance as at 31 March 2023 

169.37 

169.37 

293.07 
125.80 
42.50 

376.37 

1,643.20 
364.00 

2007.20 

4'J4.38 

494.38 

1\ 1.30 
30.99 

142.29 

107.72 
11.30 

119.02 

12.76 
0.24 

13.00 

42.21 

42.2 1 

2.1\74.01 
53233 
42.50, 63.84 

A((umuJateddeprcdlltion 
Balance as alI Apri 12021 
Depreciarion for the ycar 
Depreciation on disposa)s 
Ba)ance as at 31 Marc h2022 

22731 
19.99 

247.30 

631.70 
134.99 

766.69 

389.10 
10.00 

399.10 

24.02 
22.45 

46.47 

77.0] 
9.06 

86.10 

1.07 
5.16 

6.23 

6.35 
16.16 

22.5 1 

1,356.58 
217.82 

1 574.40 

Balance as at 1 April 2022 
Depreciation for the yt:a r 
Depreciation on disposals 
BalaDce as at 31 MilJcb2023 

247.30 
34.26 
33.76 

247.80 

766.69 
181.30 

947.99 

399.10 
9.05 

408. 16 

46.47 
20.78 

67.25 

86.1 0 
12 .68 

98.77 

6.23 
2.95 

9. 18 

22.51 
8.88 

31.39 

1,574.40 
269.90 
33.76 

1810.53 

Net blo(k 
As At 31 Marcb 2023 
AsA t 31 Marcb 2022 

16937 
16937 

128.57 
45.77 

1059.21 
876.5 1 

86.22 
95.28 

75.04,4>, 20.25 
21.63 

3.82 
6.53 

10.82 
19.70 

1,553.31 
1,299.62 

3 Capitalwork-io-progress 

Des(riplion 

Balance as at I Apri l 2021 
Additions 
Capitalisedduriogthe)':ilJ 
Balance as at 31 March 2022 

Plallt& 
Macbinerv 

21.80 

21.80 

Software Lab Equipl1lCRt 

17.94 

17.94 

ToUlI 

39.74 

39.74 

Balance as at 1 Apri12022 
Additions 
Cap itali1.Cd during the)':ar 
Balanceasa131 March 2023 

21.80 
234 .26 

256..06 

54,80 

54.80 

17,94 
11.85 

29.79 

39.74 
300.9 1 

340.65 

a) CWIP Ageinl: sclledule iii on 31st Marth 2023 

C\\1P 

Projectslemporarily 
sus ended 

Amoun t io eWIP for a period of Total 

CWI P Aj!eing schedule as o1l3 1 ~t Marth 2022 

CWIP Amoun t in CWif for a period of Total 

Pro'ctls in TO us 
Projectstcmporarily 
sus nded 

Leu than I ear 1-2 ears 2-3 ean More tha n 3 'ears 

b) There is no Capital-Work-iD Progress, whose completion is overdue or bas exceeded its cos! compared 10 its original plan 
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<lARTlN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
'otes 10 the standalone financial statemcnf5 (coutinucd) 
: urrency: lodi:1n R upecs In Lll khs) 

l'\on-current investments 

Investments in equit)' componcnt of compound financial instruments 

1,15,00,000 (31 March 2022 : 1,15,00,000) NOIl-CWlIulative 

Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of ASG Biochem 
Private Limited 

75,00,000 (31 March 2022 :Nil) Non-Cumulative Optionally 
Convertible Preference Shares of ASG Biochem Private Limited 

Investments in subsidiar ies at cost 

10,000 (3 1 March 2022: [0,000) Fully Paid Equity Shares of 
• Rs. 10/- each of ])elite Infraslnlcture Private Limited 

Investmenl.$ carried at fai r value througb other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Investment in equity shares - Quoted 

5,81,000 (31 March 2022 : 5,&1,000) Fully Paid Equity Shares of 
Rs. 10/- each of Bervin Investment & Leasin~ Limited 

Investment in equity shares - UnQuoted 

1,810 (31 March 2022 ; 1,810) Fully Paid Equity Shares of Rs 

10/- each of Apeejay Stya Education Foundation PriVate Li mited 

2,50,000 (31 March 2022 : 2,50,000) Fully Paid Equity Shares 

ofRs. 10/- each ofWavin India Li mited. 

Investment in preference shares - UnQuoled 

219 Compulsori ly Convertible Preference Sbares ofHousr 

TechnolOgies Pvt Ud (P.Y 1% Compulsory Convertible Non­
Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs. 101- each of Stayabode 
Ventures Private Limited.) 

[uvestments cllrried at amortised cost 

Jovestment in prderence shllres - Uuquoted 

1.1 5,00,000 (~1 M~rch 2022 :1.15,00,000) Non-Cumu[ative 

Optionally Convertible Preference Shares of ASG Biochern 
Private Limited (Face value Rs. iOr- and Premium ofRs. 6/- per 
~h~ r.. Fullv naid un) 

75,00,000(31 March 2022 :Nil) Non-Cumulative Optionally 

Convertible Preference Shares of ASG Biochem Private Limited 
(Face value Rs. 10/- and Premium ofRs. 6/- per share partly paid 
Rs.4 /-) 

(a) Aggregate amount of quoted investmt:nts 
(b) Aggregate market value of quoted invesnnents 
(a) Aggregate amount ofunquoted investments 
(b) Aggn:glllC ll.muuul u[ impailll1ent in value ofinvc~tmcnts 

Non - cunent financial assets - Loans 

(U~ccurcd, con~idcrod good) 


Loan given to related parties 


Refer Note 35 for Related Party Disclosures 

31 Muc b 2023 31 March 2022 

1,262.85 95 1. 54 

209,QI 

1.472.76 951.54 

1 00 1.00 

{.OO 1.00 

209.16 2[5 .26 

209.16 215.26 

0.18 0.[ 8 

25.70 25.70 

20.00 20_00 

45.88 45.88 

624.40 441.0] 

90.29 

714.69 441.03 

2,443.SO 1654.71 

209.[6 21 5.26 
209.16 215_26 

2,2]4.34 1,439.45 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

36,712.58 2,778.77 

36712.58 2778.77 



MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 

Not" to the stndaione financial statements (continued) 
(Currene),: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

6 Inventorie!l 31 March 2023 31 M a rch 2022 

Finished .Iwods 
Stock-in-hand 1,858.00 2,388.59 

1858,00 2388.59 

7 Current investments 3 1 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Investments carried a t fair value throueh profit and IO$S (FVTPL) 
Investment in Mutual funds - Quoted 

Nil (31 March 2022' 3,94,5 1, 178.94) units of Lie Munml fund 

savinJ!,fund 
Nil (31 March 2022 : 17,30,536.06) units ofUe Mutual Fund 

overnight fund 

12,792.3 6 

19,000.94 

31 793.30 

(a) Aggregate amount of quoted investments 
(b) Aggregate market val ue of quoted investments 
(a) Aggregate amount ofunquot~d investlll~ nts 
(b) Aggregate amount of impai rment in value of investments 

31,793.30 
3 1,793.30 

8 T rade receivables 
(Unsecured, consid~red good) 

31 March 2023 31 MQrch 2022 

Trade receivables lJ6.91 

136.91 

Trade Receiva hles ageing for the fin ancial year 2022-23 

Undisput~d Trade re<::eivabl ~s - consideroo good 

Undisputed Trade Rece ivables - considered doubtful 

D is puted Trade Receivables considered good 
Disputed T fade Receivables cnnsidered doubtfu l 

Less than 6 
month~ 

136.91 

O utstanding for foUowing periods from due d ate of pavment 

6 months -I 1-2 yean 2-3 years More than 3 years 
year Total 

136.91 

T rade Receivahles age ing for the financia l year 2021-22 

Undisputed Trade rw:ivabJes ­ considered good 

Undisputed T rade Receiva bles - considered doubtfu l 

D isputed Trade Receivables c{)nsider~d good 
Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful 

Les~ thao 6 
months 

Outs tanding for following periods from due da te of payment 

6 months ·1 1.2 years 2-3 vears More than J yurs Total 

9 Cush aDd cash equivalents 31 N ardi 2023 31 Marchiun 

Cash in hand 

Balancc~ with b.anlui 
In CllfTentaCCQunt 

1.99 

2544 

1.61 

128.0 1 

27.43 129.62 

10 Other bank hlilance5 31 Ma rch 2023 3 1 March 2022 

Fixed depos its with bank.~ 6.30 6. 30 

6.30 6.30 

II Curreot financia l assets Louns 

Loum 

31 MlIrch2023 

3,009.46 

31 M arch 2022 

3,009.46 

12 OthercurrentfinancialasselS 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

BudgeTary support receivable 

in terest accrued 

Secllfity depos its 

0.77 

44.09 

138.72 

0.35 

27. J4 

44.86 166.20 

13 Otbcr curreul assets 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

B~ l ance with gQv~mment authori ties 

Advallccto suppliers 

Adv nnces to staff 

167.55 

RR7.76 

10.30 

143.19 

1,0 16.65 

9.84 

1,065.61 1,169,69 



MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Notes to the 5tl1ndalone financial stlltements (c:ontinued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in L akhs) 

14 Share C:apitlll 

Particulars 31 Marc:h 2023 31 Marc:h 2022 

Authorised: 

50,00,000 (31 March 2022 : 50,00,000) equity shares ofRs .IO each 500.00 500.00 

TOTAL 500.00 500.00 

Issued, sub5Cribed and paid-up: 

399.60 399.60 39,96,040 (31 March 2022 39,96,040) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid-up 

399.60 399.60 

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value ofR;;, 10/- each. each holder of equity share is entitled to vote 

There are no rights, prefereuces and restrictions attached to auy share 

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year : 

Equitysbares: 

31 Marc:h 2023 31 Marc:h 2022 

Number of Shares Nl1m~er of Shares 

Outstanding at the beginning oflbe year 39,96,040 39,96,040 
Equity shares issued during the year 

Outstanding at the eud of the year 39,96,040 39,96,040 

Shareholders holdine more than 5% shares in the Compa ny is set out below: 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Number of Sbares % ~f TotaJ shares Number Qf Shares % of TotaJ shares 

Chang lnvestchem Private Limited 14,99,800 37 .5 3% 14,99,800 37.53% , 

Aessen Private Limited 8,19,400 20 .51% 8,19,400 20.51% 

Acme Network S. A. 8,02,200 20.07% 8,02,200 20,07% 

Shares held b\l Promoters at t.hc end of the \lear are set out below: 
Promoter Name 31 March 2023 31 l\far ch 2012 

Number of Shares % or Total shares Number of Shares % or total Shares % Changes during 
the year 

Shanker Laxman Laad 20 0.0005% 20 0.0005% 0.00% 
PrafuJ Kalidas Gohi! 20 0.0005% 20 0.0005% 0.00% 
Raieodra Bramhadco McI~e 20 0.0005% 20 0.0005% 0,00% 

S. VecraraW1avan 20 0.0005% 20 0.0005% 0.00% 
1'. C. Prabl)akarao 20 0.0005% 20 0.0005% 0.00% 
Mustufe Y. 20 0.0005% 20 0.0005% 0,00% 
Paudit Da adu Jadhav 20 0.0005% 20 0.0005% 0.00% 

15 Other equity 31 March 2023 31 March 202l 

A. Retained earnings 44,262. 95 39,089,05 

B. S«urities premium 4.75 4 .7.'i 

C. General reserve 410.05 410.05 

D. Equity instruments desienated throueh other comprehensi\le income 162-48 167.88 
44.840.23 39671.73 
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J\.1ARTfN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES UMITED 
Notes to the standalone fillilllcial statements (continued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

Retained earnings 


Operung balance 


Add/(Less): 


Profil for the year 

Dividend Paid 

Transfer from I (10) other reserves 

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability / (asset) 


Closing balance 

Securities premium 

()Perun.'!: balance 

Chan~es during the year 

Closin~ balance 


General Reserve 

Openin.g balance 

Changes durinJ< the year 

Closing balance 


Equity instruments dcsie.nated throue;b other comprehensive income 
Opening balance 
Add/(Less): 

Fair value change~ during the year (nel of tax) 


Transfer from I (to) other reserves 

Closin~ Balance 


31 Mar ch 2023 

39.089.05 

5,379.25 
(207 .79) 

2.45 

44 262.95 

4 .75 

4.7S 

4 10 .05 

410.05 

167. 88 

(5.40) 

J62.48 

31 M arch 2022 

33,996.22 

5,214.55 
(135.87) 

19.63 
(5.49) 

39 089.05 

4.75 

4.75 

410.05 

41 0.U5 

29.1 9 

15833 
(19.63) 
167.88 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES UMITIW 
Notes to the standalone fina ncial statements (continued) 
(Currencv: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

16 Provision! _Non-current 

Provision for gratuity 

I'rovisio[J for leave cncashment 


17 Other non-<:urreut liabilities 

Government I!Tnnts 

18 BorrowIngs - Current 

Secured 

Cash-credit from bank ­

31 March 2023 31 Mar ch 2022 

58.28 54.67 
10.04 10.65 
68.32 65,32 

31 March 2023 31 Much 2022 

15.16 17.48 

15,16 17.48 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

418.68 393 .94 

418.68 393,94 

*Secured against hypothecation of finished goods, raw material, packing material , work-in· progrcss. book debts and oollatera1Jy secured by equitable mongagc of pro pc ny, plant and 
equipment 

19 Tnde payables 3 1 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Total outstanding dues to micro ente rprises and small enterprises 

Total Outstanding dues to creditors other than mi cro enterprises and small enterprises 972.69 5 14.93 

Trllde Payable ag<'ing ror the finaJlci:J/ yea r 2022-23 

Particulars 

MSME 


Others 


Disputed dues - MSlv[E 


Disputed dues - Others 


Trade Payable ageln!! for the financial vear 202 1-22 

Particulars 

MSME 


Otbers 


Disputed dues - MS).1E 


Disputed dues - Others 


20 O ther current finallcialliabilities 

Security deposits 
Expenses payable 

2J Other current liabilities 

Statutory dues payable 

Advance from customers 

Government grants 


22 Provisions · Current 

Provision for gratuity 
Pwvi)iu!l for leavc cnclL'l h.mcot 

_ __~97,;,:2~. '~9 . 514,93 

Outstanding ror following periods from due date orpay mcDt 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yean 
More than3 

years 
Tot:11 

972.69 972.69 

Outstanding ror follo~ing periods from due date of payment 

Les5 than I year 1-2 years 2-3 years 
More than3 

Tollil 

51 4.93 514,93 

31 Marcb 2023 31 Mar<, h 2022 

~6.22 11.39 
368.32 200.96 

424.S4 212,35 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

127.44 77.56 
38.70 19.84 

2.32 2.32 

168.46 99.72 

3 1 M arch 2023 31 March 2022 

32.55 20.55 
5.67 3.38 

38,22 23.93 



MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Notes to tbe standalone financial statements (continued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakbs) 

23 Revenue from operations 

Sale of goods 

24 Other income 

Interest on fixed deposits 
Interest received - others 


Interest received - loans 

Capita! gain - others 


Fair value gain through FVTPL 


Gain on sale of Mutual fund 

Income on investments earned at amortised cost 

Grant 'Written back 

Miscellaneous income 

For year ended 
31 March 2023 

20,516.48 

20,516,48 

For year ended 
31 March 2023 

0.43 

0.14 

137.27 

0.36 
(0.30) 

77.63 

34.89 

2.32 

0.03 

252.18 

For year ended 
31 March 2022 

17, 192.74 

11,192.14 

For year ended 
31 M ar ch 2022 

0.08 

2.6 8 

12. 20 

0.30 

15.10 

12.57 

2.32 

0.05 

45.29 

64 

http:11,192.14
http:20,516.48


MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakbs) 

25 Cost of materials consumed 

Opening inventory 
Add: Purchases during the year 

Closing inventory 

26 Employee benefits expense 

Salaries 


Bonus 


Other allowances 


Ex-grati a 


Medical expenses 


Books & periodicals 


Staff welfare 


Provident fund 


Training and recruitemeot cost 


27 Finance costs 

Interest on loans, 
Bank charge~ 

28 Depreciation and amortisation 

Depreciation of p roperty, plant and equ ipment (refer note 2) 

For year ended For year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

2,388 .59 1, 843 .25 
4,183.28 4,299.00 

(1,858 .00) (2,388.59) 

4,713.88 3,753.66 

For year ended For year ended 
31 March 2023 31 Ma rch 2022 

1.973.37 1,356.50 

7.64 6.93 

91.24 112.60 

86.60 139.5 1 

28.19 22.33 

96.60 7045 

134.22 133.85 

25.52 21.60 

19.60 0 .72 

2.462.98 1,864.49 

For year ended For year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

11.05 12.20 
10.55 3.58 

21.60 15.78 

For year ended For year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

269 .90 217.82 

269.90 21 7.82 

65 

http:1,864.49
http:2.462.98
http:1,356.50
http:1.973.37
http:3,753.66
http:4,713.88
http:2,388.59
http:1,858.00
http:4,299.00
http:4,183.28
http:2,388.59


MARTIN AND HARRIS LADORATORIES LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financi al statements (continued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

29 Other expenses 

Manufacturing Expenses 

Loading and unload ing 

Repairs and maintenance 


Plant and machinery 


Computer 


Building 

Freight and cartage 


Power and fuel 

Research and development 


SeUing and Distribution Expenses 
Selling expenses 

Administrative Expenses 

Rent 


Insurance 

Printing and stat ionery 

Travelling and conveyance 


Vehicle run ning expenses 


Postage, telegram and telephone 

Rates and taxes 


Royalty and trademark expenses 


Interest paid on late payment of tax 


Other expenses 


Exchange Loss , 

Contribution towards CSR expenses 


Charity and donation 


Legal and professional fee 


Consultancy charges 

Membership and subscription 

Auditor's Remuneration 


Audit fee 


Tax audit 


For year ended For year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

0.02 0.18 

41.45 20 .1 9 
572 .97 425.29 
203.91 96.42 

35.57 2 1.24 
65.57 35.83 
69 .66 48.65 

1,389.84 1,014.51 

43.69 24.82 
33 .24 22 .66 

34.3 1 81.42 
313.96 145.78 

25.56 20.72 
14.64 12.34 
14.79 16.02 

870.00 795.00 
0.04 0.40 

14.66 9.77 
1.72 

133.16 119.85 
17.00 25.80 

507.98 290.41 
1,626.86 1,184.98 

11.98 26.82 

2.00 2.00 
1.25 1.25 

6,045.81 4.442.33 

66 

http:4.442.33
http:6,045.81
http:1,184.98
http:1,626.86
http:1,014.51
http:1,389.84


MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 

Notes to the standa.lone financial statements (continued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

30 T aus 

a) Statement of profit or loss 

Particula.-s 

Currenttu: 
Current income tax cbarge 
Tax in respect of earlier years 
Deferred tax (including MAT credit 

entitlement) 

Yea r ended 
31 Marcb2023 

1,888.56 
3.89 

(t6.59) 

Income lax expense reported in tbe 

statemeot of orofil or loss 

1,875.85 

b) 	 Otber comprehensive income (OCr) 
Taxes re lated to items recognised in OCI during in the year 

Particulars Yearendcd 
31 Marcb2023 

Current tax: 
Taxes on equity instruments through 
other comprehensive income 

Deferred tax (including M AT credit 

entitlement) 

Remcasurements gains and losses on (0.82) 
post employment benefits 
Taxes on equity instruments through 0.70 

other comprehensive income 

Income tax recoJ!:aised in OCI 0.13 

0) 	 Balancesbeet 
Tax assets 

Year ended 
31 Marcb2022 

1,800.43 
(0.02) 

(71.01) 

1,729.40 

Year ended 

31 Marcb2022 

(2.54) 

(17.92) 

18.61 

Particulars 

Non-current tax assets 
Current tax assets 

Total tax assets 

Current tax liabilities 

Particulars 

Inoomc lOx (net of pro vic ion) 


Total curreot tax liabilities 

d) Deferred tax 
Particulars 31 Marcb2023 
Deferred tax liability (DTL) 

Excess ofdepreciatioo/amortisation 4.49 
on property, plant and equipment 
Wlderincome tax act 

Fair valuation of equity shares 21.24 
Mutual funds designated at fair value 
through profit and loss 

25.73 
Defer red tax asset (DTA) 

Gratuity (22.86) 
Leave encashment (3.95) 

26.81 

Netdeferrcd tax1inbilitvl asset l.09 

31 March 2022 

15.83 

21.93 
0.08 

37.84 

(18.93) 
(3.53) 

22.46 

15.38 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 

Notes to tbe standalone financial statements (continued)
,
(Currency: Indian Ru pees in Lakhs) 

e) 	 Reconciliation of tax expense and tbe accounting profit multiplied by India's 
domestic tax rate lOr j I l't14rc li lUlJ and. J I March lUll ! 

Year ended Year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Accounting profit before tax 7,255.10 6,943.95 
Tax as per IT Act on above @ 1,825.96 1,747.65 

25.168% (Prev. vear · 25.168%) (A) 

Tu expe Dses 
(i) Curre nt tax 1,888.56 1,800.45 
(ii)Deferredtax (16.59) (71.01) 
(iii) Taxation in respect of earlier years 3.89 (0 02) 

(B) 	 1.875,85 l,n 9.42 

Diffe rence 	 (49.89) 18.23 

Tax reconciliation 
Adjustments: 
Taxation in respect of earlier years 3.&9 (0.02) 
Permanent disallowances 53.81 39.62 
Deferred Tax (16.59) (71.01) 
43 8 Disallowance 614 
Others I 2.64 13. 17 

0 (0.00 

0 Movement in temporary differences; 
01 April 21 Recog nised in profit or Recognised in 31 March 2022 Recognis ed in Recognised in 31 March 2023 

loss during OCI during profit or loss OCIduring 
tbeyear the year during the year 

the n ar 
Deferred tax liability (DTL) 
Excess of depre ciationlamonisation on 82.95 (67. 11) 15.83 (11.34) 4.4 9 
prope rty, plant and equipment under 
meome lax act 
Mutual funds designa ted at fair value 0.08 0.08 (0.08) 0.00 
through profit and loss 
Fair valuation of eqwty sbares 4.02 17.92 21.93 (0.70) 21.24 
Gratuity (13.94) (3.15) (L 85 ) (18.93) (J.lO) (0.82) (22.86) 
Leave encasbment (2.7 1) (0.82) (3.5 3) (0.42) (3.95) 

70.32 (71.01) 16.07 15.38 (l4.94} (1.52} (1.09) 

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it bas a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and conent lax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority. 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 

Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

31 Earnings Per Share 

Particulars 

profit I (Loss) attributable to equity sbareholders 


Busic Earnings Per Share 

Weighted average number of equity sbares outstanding during the year 


Basic EPS (Rs. 


Diluted Earnings Per Share 

Weighted avera~e nwnber of equity shares outstandin" for diluted EPS 

Diluted EPS (Rs.' 


32 Contingent liabilities: 

P a rticulars 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to he executed on capital account and not provided 
foc 

For year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

5,379.25 5.2 14.55 

39,96,040 39,96,040 

134.61 130.49 

39,96,040.00 39,96,040.00 
134.61 130.49 

Asat As at 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

900.00 460.00 

900.00 460.00 
Note. The capItal contract rema rnmg to be executed IS Rs 900.00 Lakh(prevlOus year 460.00 Lakh ) towards Non-Cumul ative Optionally Convertlble Preference 
Shares participation obligation 

33 Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

Particulars 

The amount remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of each accounting 

year 

- Principal 


- Interest 


Tbe amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and 

Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 

T he amount of payment made to micro and small supplier beyond the appointed day during 

each accounting year. 

Tbe amouilt of interest due and payable for period of delay in making payment (which have 

been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest 

specified under MSMED Act 2006. 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year. 


TIlt: UIIlUWJt uf fwtht;l i.otell!st remaining due and payable evcn in the succeeding year, until 

such date when the interest dues.as above are actual ly paid to the small enterprises for the 


purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 

2006. 


34 C orporate social responsibilty 

P articulars 

Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year 


Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 


Amount spent during the year on 

a . Construction! acquisition of any asset 

h. On pWposes other than (a) above 


D etails of related party transactions 


Asat As at 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

Nil N il 

Nil Nil 

Nil N il 

For year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2023 31 Marcb 2022 
133 .1 6 119.74 

133.16 119.85 

133.16 119.85 

133.16 119.85 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORJES LIMITED 
Notes to the "t lndtlloo~ fin l oeill statement. (cootinued) 
(Cllrr~O": Indian RU!>N$ln Lakhs) 

35 Rcl~ted Party Olsdosurell 

Sub5idiarycomp~nv 

Ddite !n(rnstructurePrivate Limil.ed 

Key Management Personnel (KMP)/Dindon 

Shanker Laad Luroau 


HarnamThakurSiogb 


NasimUddin 


(hI Rel~ted put:'ltTlR.llction~: 

For year ended J1Marcb2021 

Key MsnagemenJ Entities where Subsidiary Key Management Entilies where Key Su1>!lidiary 
Personnel Key Management Cilmpany Personnel Management Compaoy 

IS._ N""" ofT"..."i"" For Ibe ear ended 31 March 2022 

I"" 
(Kl\fP)lRelltiveof PersonndlRetative (KMJ>)lRel~tiv" of l'ersonnellReI~tive 
Key MlOagement of Key Key Management orKey 

Personnel Management Management 
Pennooel ha~ 

s~gnlflCl nt 

I Loans given (36 ,881 .81) (36,881.81) (3,344.63) 
2 loan Received badl. 2948.00 2948.00• I 31152.00 

33933.81 270131 

(el Balancrson!:]tanding at the end of the year:­

•. Loln~ glveo to rtlaled parties 
De~telnfrasttucture Privatel.irnited 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORlES LIl\UTED 
Notes to the stlDdalone fiUDci1l1 stl temcnlS (continued) 

(Currency: IndilD Rupee! in Lakhs) 

36 Financial risk manageIIJCnt 

The Company's boarrl of directors has ov~ral! responsibi lity for the establishmenl and ovet;ight of th~ Company's risk management framework_ The board of directors is 
responsible for developing and monitoring th~ Company's risk management policies. The board regulady meets to decide its risk management acti vitie~ . 

The Company's risk management policies a r~ established to identifY aod analyse th e risks faced by the Company, to s~t appropriate risk limits and controls to monitor risks and 
adherence to limits. Risk management polici~s and systems are review~d r~gularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, througll its 
training and management standards and procedures, aims to mainta in a disciplined and constructive contro l environment in which an employees understand their roles and 

obligations 
The Company's management monitors compliance with tile Company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in 
re lation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board is also assisted by internal audit. Internal audi t undenakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and 
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board of directors 

The Company has expos ure to the following risks arising 1T0m financial mstrument~· 


- credit risk-see no te (a) below 

-liquidity risk-see note (b) below 

- market risk - see note (e) below 


(a) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to th e Company if a ~ustolller or counterparty to a financia l instrument fai ls to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the 
Company's receivables fro m customers 

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each cu~tomer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence 
the credit ris k of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and country in which customers operate 

Credit risk is managed tllrough credit approvals, establishillg credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit tenns 
in the nOmlal course of business. On account of adoption oflnd AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess impairment loss or gai[J 

(b) Liquidity risk 

is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in mee ting the obligations associated with its fi[Jancialliabilities that are s~ttled by delivering cash or anot11er 
The Company's approach to managing uquidity is to ensure, that it willllave sufficient liquidity to' meet ils liabilities when they are due. under both nonnal and 

stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. 
The Company's treasury department is responsible for liquidity and funding_ In addi tion policies and procedures relating to such risks ar~ overseen by til e management. 
The Company's principal .~ ources ofliqu idi ty are cash and cash equivalents and the casb flow that is generated from operations 

As at As at
Particulars 

31 March 2023 31 Marcb2022 

Totai current assets (A) 6,294.77 35,796.00 


Total current liabilities (B) 2,022 .58 1399.32 

Working ca ital A-B 4,272.19 34,396.68 


Following is the Company's exposure to financialliabililies based on tbe contractual maturity as at reporting date 

Particulars As at 3 t March 2023 

Contractual casb flows 


Carr im!vlIiue Le~s tban 1 More rha ll i Til ial 

Rorrowings '" 418.68
418 6:1Tradepayables 972.69 4186972.69 972.69

11 : 1 Other liabilities 424.54 424.54 424.54 

Particulars A, at 31 Marcb 2022 


Contractual cash n OW1 


Carr iOJ:value Lessthanl More than 1 year Tntal
'" Borrowings 393_94 
393.9: I 393.9: ITrade payables 514.93 514.93 51 4.93 


Otherliabiliries 2!2_35 212.35 I 212_35 


71 

http:34,396.68
http:4,272.19
http:35,796.00
http:6,294.77


MARTIN AND HARRIS LADORATORIES LIMnED 
Notes to the standalone iln:mcial statements (continued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupee~ in Lllkhs) 

(c) 	 In terest rate r is k: 
The company does no t face any int~rest rate risk as aU the borrowings of the company have a fixed interest rate 

(d) 	 Markelrisk 

Market risk is the risk that changes wi th market prices - such as foreign excbangc rates and interest ra tes, will affect the Company's income or Ute value of it> holding~ of financial 
instrument>. Til.: obj.t:ctive of marketrisk management is to manage and control market risk exposOres within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum 

(i) Foreign currency uohedged exposure: 

Financial assets As 1I.t 31 March 2023 
Equivalent Imount Foreign currenq 

As at 3J Much 2022 

Foreign currency Equiva~:teleu;ou nt in I 
Inru eu 

Trade receivablc~ 

USD 

As at 31 March 2023 As a131 March 2022 

Trade payables 

usn 1.63 133.29 050 38 .22 
1.63 133.19 0.50 38.22 

Currency wise Det exposure (assets 
liabi[ities 

Particulars 

USD 	 1.63)1 03.29 0.50)1 38.22 
Total 	 1.63) (133.2~) 0.50 (38.22 

Sensitivi ty ana lysis 

Currency Aroountio INR Sensitivi % 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 


lNR 133.29 38.22 [.00% 

133.29) 38.22 


I act (Ill fofitic ui (l % streo thernll ) 1m act on rofitlc uit 1% weakenin 

Amount in t Amount in f 
31 March 2023 31 March 1022 3} March 2023 31 Marcb 2022 


lNR (1.33) 0.38 1.33 0.38 

Total 1.33 0.38 1.33 0.38 

The exchange rate us~d by tbe Company is that no tified by tbe Rest:rve Bank oflndia 

37 	 Capital 'l1l!Inagement 

Thc Company's cupltu l comprisc~ equity shalt ""pit" l, ~lJ'l' [u~ ill lh~ ~(;jtt:mtnt ofprofh and loss and other equity atlnbutable to eqmty holders. 
The Company's ob)~ctiYes when managing capital are to : 

- safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to proYid~ returns for sbarebolders and benefits for otber stakeholders, aod 
- maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce tho cost of cup ita1 

Th~ Company monitor~ capi talusiog debt-equity ra tio, which is net deb t divided by total equity. These ratios are illustrated below 

Au' Asat
Particulars 

31 March 2023 31 !'\o1arch2022 

Net debt 418.68 393.94 

Tota[c uity 45,239.83 40,071.33 

DebH:quityratio 0 .0 1 0.01 
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MAR11N AND HARRIS LABORATORJES LIMITED 
Nul l's to the~t3ndalonc financial sllltcmcntJ (tOntWlltd) 
(Currency; Indian Rupees in LakbJl) 

l8 Fair value measurements 

(.) Categories of finandal indruments . 


IParticulars As al31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 


FVTPL FYfOCI FV1'OCI Amortised cost FVfPL FVfOCI FVfOCI 
 Amortist:dcost 
Category Le~ell Level 3 Levell Level 2 Levell Level 3 Level l Level 2 
Finanei~lnsets 

Ill v~,tmellt 	 45.88 209.16 2,187.46 31 ,793.30 45.8S 215.26 1,392.57 
Trude receivables 13 6.91 

Cash and cash equ ival ent s 27.43 12 9.62 
Other bank balances 6.30 6.30 
loans 39,722.04 2,778.77 
Other rmancial asscts 44.S6 166.20 

Total fin:l.ncial a!$cts 45.88 209.16 42,125.01 31,793.30 45.88 21 5.26 4473.46 

Finao(iailiabilitioes 
Borrowings 41HS 393.94 
Tradcpaya bies 972.69 514.93 
Olnerfinancial habililies I 424.54 I 212.3 5 

~liabilitics 	 1815.90 1121 .22 

(b) 	 Fair value hie ran:hy: 
As per rnd AS t07 "Financial Instrument: Disclosure", fa ir value disc losmes are not required when the carrying amounts reasunably approximate the fair va lue. As illu<;trated above, all 
financial instruments uf the companywhicb are carried al amurtised cost appruximates the fa ir value. Accordingly fa ir value disclosu.res have not beeo made fn r these fi nancial 
in<;truments. Investments in equity shares and mutu al !wads which are des ignated at FVfPL & invesnne nt in equ ity \hares which are classified as FYTOCI are at fair value. 

(c) 	 investment in subsidiaries is accounted at COSI in accordance with Ind AS"l.7 . "Separale fina ncial Sl:ltemeots". Accordingly such investment.> are nul recorded at fair value 
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MARTrN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Nnt,.'! tn thp dllntblnnp. finantial Matement~ (continued) 
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

39 	 Post-employment benefit plans 
AI; per iDdian Accounting Standard 19" Employee Be nefits", the disclosures as defined are given below-

A. Defined Contribution Plans 
Contribution to dermed contribution plans, recognised as expense for the year is as under 

Particulars 

Employer's contribution to provident fund 

Company's contribution paid/payable during the.year to provident fund are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

B. Defined Benefit Plans 

Gratuity 

The Company has defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years 

of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement age. These benefits are funded 

with an insurance company 


Liability Risks 

\. Asset-Liabili ty mismatch risk- Risk which aris es if there is a mismatch in the duration of the assets relative to the liahilities. By matching duration with the defined 

benefit liabilities, the company is successfully able to neutralize valuation swings caused by interest rate movements. Hence companies are encouraged to adopt asset­

liability management. 


2. Discount rate risk- Variations in the discoWlt rate used to compute the present value of the liabilities may seem small, but in practise can have a significant impact on the 
defl.lled benefit liabilities 

3. Fulurc salary escalalion and inflation risk - Since price inflation and salary growth are linked economical\y, they are combined for disclosure purpcses. Rising salaries 
will often result" in higher future defined benefit payments result ing i.n a higher present value of liabilities especially twexpected salary increases provided at management's 
discretion may lead to uncertainties in estiuiating this increasing risk. 

4. Unfunded Plan Risk ~ l1tis represents unmanaged risk and a growing liability. There is an inherent risk here that th e company may default on paying th e benefits in 
adverse circumstances. FWlding the plan removes volatility in company's financials and also benefit risk through return on th.e funds made available for the plan 

T be foUowing tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in Ihe statement of profit and loss, tbe funded status and amounts re(ognised in 
balance sbeet for the plan. 

Net emnlovee benefit eIvcnse on account of eratuit)' reco nised in em 10 ·ee benefit expenses 

"''' An ' 
31 March 2023 31 l\1arch 2022 

Current service cost 13.70 11.06 
Net interest (Income / Ex cnse 5.36 3.70 
Net benefit eI eose 19.07 14.76 

Chan es in tbe present value of tbe defined benefit obli alion are as fonaws : 

Particulars A>o' 
31 Marcb 2023 

Asat 
31 March 2022 

Projected benefit obligation at the beginning oflhe year 75.22 55.37 
Int erest cost 5.36 3.70 
Cunent service CDS! 13.70 11 .06 
Actuarial (gain)/ lo ss on obligations (3.21) 7.34 
Benefits aid 0.19 2.25 
Present "Va lue of obli ation at the end of tbe ·ear 90.83 75.22 
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 
(Currency: Indian Rupee! in Lakhs) 

Chantes in tbe fair value of plan assets are as follows : 
As at AsatParticulars 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 
Fair value of plan assels at the beginning of the year 
Interest income 
Contri butions 
Mortal ity charges and taxes 
Benefits paid 
Return o~lan assets, excluding amount recognized in Interest Income Gain I Loss 
Fair value of Plan auets at end of the ear 
Actual return on plan assets 

Re-measurements for the year (Actuarial (gain) I loss) 
As at AsatParticulars 

31 March 2023 31 M arch 2022 

Experience adjustments gain I (1oss) on plan liabilities (2 .09) 9.36 
Dernogmphic assumptions gain I (loss) on plan liabilities 
Financial asswnplions gain I (loss) on plan liabilities ( 1.1 9) (2.02) 
Experience (gain) I loss on p lan assets 
Financial ()!,ain 1 loss on plan assets 

Amonnt reeo n ised In tbe statement of other comprehensive income 

As at 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Particulars ''';1 
Re measurement for the year obligation (gain) I loss (3.27) 7~341 
Re-measurement for the year Ian assets ( gain I loss 
Total r e-measurements cost 1 (credit) for the vear reco niscd in other com rehensive income 3.27) 7.34 

Net Defined Benefit Liabilit I(Asset) for the 

Particulars 

Defined benefit obligation 
Fair value of Ian assets 
Closin net defined benefit Iiabili I asset 

Current 32.55 20.55 
Non-Current 58.28 54.67 

The rna· or cate aries of Ian assets as a ercentl! e of the fair value of to tal Ian assets are as follow s: 

Nature of Ian assets 
Funds mana ed b insurer 

The principalllssump tions used in d ete rmining gratuity obliJ;lll tions for the Company's plan are shown below: 

Assumptions 

A5 at Asat 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Particulars 

°/.. % 
Mortality table IALM (2012- 14) lAUvI (2012- l4) 
DiSCOImtrate 7.37% 7.13% 
Rate o f increase in compensation levels 5.00% 5.00% 
Expected rate of return on plan assets 0.00% 0.00% 

- Withdrawal rate # 

!\ go upto 30 ~'limn 0.1 0% 0. 10% 
Age 3 1 - 44 years 0.30% 0.30% 
Age above 44 years 0.60% 0.60% 

I E~pected average remaining working lives of employees (in years) 13.911 14.881 
.. It is actuarially calculated tenu oftbe liabili ty using probabilities of death, withdrawal and ret iremcnt. 
# Asswnption has been revised by the Company based on their past experience and future expectations 

A uantitative sensitivity anal ·sis for si nificant assumption as at 31 Mareb 2023 Is as shown below: 

Defined benefit obli alion 
Asat As at 

Assumptions 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Increase by 50 l>ecrease by 50 Increase by 50 bash Decrease by 50 basis 
basis points basis points pOints points 

~ate 
Discount Rate 7.87"/. 6.87% 7.63% 6.63% 
Amount (2.44) 2.60 (2.23) 2.39 
Salary increment rate 
Salary increment ra te 5.50% 4. 50% 5.50% 4 .50% 
Amount 2 .65 2.50 2.42 2.29) 

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence im pact of change duc to these llot calculated 

Sensitivities as rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy arc not applicable. 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

Sensitivity analysis indicates the inflllence of a reasonable change ill cenain significant assumptions on the outcome of the PreSent value of obligation and aids in 
understanding the uncertainty of reported amounts. Sensitivity analysis is done by varying one parameter at a time and studying its impact. 

Expected contribution (or the next Annual reporting period. 

Particulars 

Service Cost 

Net Interest Cost 

Expected E:>,;pense for the next 


annual reoortin eriod 

Expected ruture benefit payments 

The following benefit payments, for each oflhc TIe:>';! five years and the aggregate five years !her~after, are expected to be paid 


Expected benefit 

Year ending 31 March 2023 

payment 

010 I Year 3Z.55 

I to Z Year 5.19 

Zt03 Year 0.23 

3 to 4 Year 4.37 


~~:~:~;~~:~:;~__~~ _______7~!:!~; 
6 Year onwards 39.87 
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Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

40 Revenue from contracts with customers 

A. Revenue streams 

Particulars 


Revenue from operations 


Sale of goods 

Particulars 

Timing of revenue recognition 


At point in time 


Over the period in time 


Total revenue 


For year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

20,5 16.48 17,192.74 

20,516.48 17,192.74 

For year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

20,516.48 17,192.74 

20,516.48 17,192.74 



MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Notes to tbe standalone fina ncial statements (continued) 
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

41 Leases 

A. Asalessee 

As a lessee, the Company previously classified leases as operating or fmance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease Iransferred significantly all of the risks and 

rewards incidental to owncrship of the underlying asset to the Company. Under lnd AS 116, thc Company recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most leases ­

Le. these leases are on-balance shcet 

The Company decided .to apply recognition exemptions to shon-tenn leases For leases of other assets, which were classified as operating under AS 19, the Company 

recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 


B.As alessor 

The Company is not required to make any adjustments on transition to Ind AS 11 6 for leases in which it acts as a lessor, except for a sub-lease. The Company accounted for its 

leases in accordance with Ind AS 116 from the date of initial application. 


C. Impacts on fi nancial statements 

On transition to Ind AS 116 - Leases, the Company has not recognised any right-of-use asset and lease liabilities, as all the leases are in the nature of short-term leases. 


Expenses on short-term leases I low value assets 

Short-tennlease 
Low value assets 

Amounts recoj!nised in the statement of cash flow 

Total cash outflow for leases 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LADORATORIES LIMITED 
Notes to tbe standalone financial statements (continued) 
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakbs) 

42 DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING RATIOS 

Particulan Numerator Denominator 
As on 

J.ll!. 
M..ru! 
~ 

Variance 

March'B March'22 ~ 

a Current Ratio· Current assets Currenl liabilities 3.11 25.58 87.83 
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio Total debt Shareholder's 0.01 0.0 1 (5.86) 

e uitv 
(e) Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earnings available for Debt Services 18.02 18.22 (1.07) 

debt service 
(d) Return on Equ ity Ratio: (ROE) Net profits after taxes Average 0.126 0.139 (9.42) 

shareholder's equity 

e Inventorv turnover ratio"· Cost ofGoods Sold AveraJ,!;c inventory 2.22 1.77 25 . 14 
(f) Trade Receivables turnover ration. Revenue Average trade 299.70 2818.70 (89.37) 

Receivable 
(g) Trade payables turnover ratio Purchases ofgoods Average trade 13.75 16.85 . (18.37) 

ahd other expenses layables 
h Net ca ital turnover ratio **** Revenue Workingca ital 4.80 0.50 860.78 
i Net profit ratio Net Profit Revenue 26.22 30.33 13.55 

(j) Return on Capital employed (ROCE) Earning before Cap ital employed 0.16 0. 17 (7 .1 6) 
interest and taxes 

(k) Return on investment***** Income generated Cost of 0.03 0.01 402 .1 5 
from investments Investment 

Reasons for variation ID ratios more tha n 25% 
* Due to significant reductioo in inveslment in F.Y 22-23 
** Due to increase- in cost of goods sold io F.Y 2022-23 
*** Due to significant increase in average trade receivable in FY 2022-23 
**u Due to signi ficant reduction in working capital because of sale of current investment in F.Y 22-23 
***** Due to significant reduction in Investment in F.Y 22-23 

43 The company does not have any immovable property whose title deeds are not held in the name of the company. 

44 The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors and KMPs, either severally or jointly with any other 

person. 

4S 	The company does not have any borrowings from banks and financial institutions which was not used for the specific purpose for which it was taken al 
the balance sheet date. 

46 The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. 

47 The company does not have any Intangible assets under development. 

48 	The company does not have any Scheme of Arrangements which has been approved by the Competent Authority in tenns of sections 230 to 237 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 

49 	The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 ofth.e Act read with Companies (Restriction on number 

of Layers) Rules, 2017 . 

50 	No proceeding have been initiated or pending against the Company under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the 

Rules made thereunder 

51 	 The Company has borrowings from the bank on the basis of security of current assets 
The Company filed monthly and quarterly statements which are in agreeement with the books of accounts 

52 The Company has nOI been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any other government authorities. 

S3 Relationship with Struck off Companies - The Company does not have any transactions and balances with companies which are struck off 

54 The company does not have any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with registrar of companies beyond the statutory period. 

55 	No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind offunds) by the 
Company to or in any other person(s) or enllty(ies), including foreign entities ("Tntennediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 

or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on beha lf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Notes to the standalone financial statements (continued) 
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

Further, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the 
understandi ng, whether recorded in writing or otherwi se. that the Company shall, whether, direct ly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfof the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

S6 The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that bas been surrendered or disclosed as income during 
the year in tbe tax assessments under the lucorne Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or surveyor any other relevant provisions oftbe Income Tax Act, 

1961) 

57 Tbe Company has not traded or invested in crypto cWTency or virtual currency during the financ ial year 

58 Advances Recoverable in cash or in land, include Rs. 87.81 lakh due from Rahane Endcon Pvt Ltd against which matter is pending for arbitration. 

59 	Pursuant to Section 135 oftbe C;ompanies Act, 2013 read with rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, Rule 2014). The 
details are as under : 
Particulars Amount 

(a) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 133.16 
(b) AmOimt of expenditure incurred 	 133. 16 
(c) Shortfall at tbe end of the year 	 Nil 
(d) Total of previous years shortfall 	 Nil 
(e) Reason of shortfall 	 Nil 
(f) Nature ofCSR activities Education, Health 


and Environment 

(g) Details of related party transactions 	 NA 
(h) Where a provi sion is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into NA 


a contractual obligation 




MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 

Notes to tbe standalone financial statements (continued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakbs) 

60 Operating Segment 

A. Description of segments and principal activities 

The business activities of the Company from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses; whose operetiug results are regularly reviewed by the chief 
operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its perfonnance, and for which discrete financial 
information is available involve predominantly one segment, i.e . manufacturing of pharmaceuticals, medicinal chemical & botanical products 

B. Information about maj or customers 
Revenues from one cu~tomer of the Company's phannaceutical segments represented approximately Rs. 4,1 07.53 (31 March 2022: Rs. 3,443 .10) ofthe 
Company's total revenues. 

61 	 The company has prepared these financial statements, as per the format, prescribed by schedule III oflhe Companies Act, 2013 (the 
schedule), issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 
Previous year fi gures have been recast/restated and reclassified, wherever necessary to confirm the classification of the current year 

For KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO. For and on bebalf of the board of directors of 

Char tered Accountants Martin And Har r is Laboratories Limited 

FRN: 000009N 

. K.K. GUPTA NASIM UDDIN S.L. LAAD 
Proprietor Direc tor Directo r 

M.No.8311 DIN: 09670604 DIN: 001 05650 

Place: New Delhi 

Dated : Olst September, 2023 
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DELITE INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 


REGISTERED OFFICE: 607, ROHIT ROUSE, 3, TOLSTOY MARG, NEW DELHI-llOOOI 


CIN : U74999DL2007PTC165234 


NOTICE is ber~by given that the 16th Annual General Meeting ("AGM" or tbe "meeting") of the members of 

DELITE INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") will be held at the registered office of 

the Company at 607, Rohit House, 3, Tolstoy Marg, New Delhi- I 10001 on Thursday, 28th day of September, 2023 

at 09:00 A.M. to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

I. 	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the year ended 31 " 

March, 2023 and the reports of the Auditors and Directors thereon. 

2. 	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Satish Kumar MUrgai (DIN: 00040348) who retires by rotation and 

being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

3. 	 TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE THE RE-APPOINTMENT OF MIS. KRISHAN K. GUPTA & 

CO., CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (FRN: 000009N) AS THE STATUTORY AUDITORS OF 

THE COMPANY AND FIXATION OF REMUNERATION. 

To consider and, if thought fit , to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if 

any, of the Companies Act, 20 13 (including any statntory modification or re-enactment thereof for th e time 

being in force) and the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time and 

pursuant to the recommendations of the Board of Directors, the consent of the Members of the Company be 

and is hereby accorded to the te-appointment of MIs. Kr ishan K. Gupta & Co. (Firm Registration No. 

000009N) Chartered Accountants, "VARDAN", A-lI247,Safardarjung Enclave, New Delhi - 110029 as the 

Statntory Auditors of the Company for I (One) Financial Year 202 3-2024 and to hold office from the 

conclusion of 16th Annual General Meeting to the conclusion of 17th Annual General Meeting for the 

Financial Year ending March 31, 2024, at a fixed remuneration as may be decided by the Board of 

Directors of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby severally authorised to 

do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution." 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

4. 	 TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF MR. HARNAM SINGH THAKUR, 

(DIN: 07665807), NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY:­

To consider and if thought fit , to pass, with or without modification, the f~llowing resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1), ISO, 152 read with schedule IV and 

Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 201 4, and other applicable provisions, 

sections, rules of the Companies Act, 20 13 (including any statntory modifications or re-enactment thereof 

for the time being in force), consent of the Shareholders be and is hereby accorded, to appoint Mr. Harnam 

Singh Thakur, (DIN: 07665807) as the Non-Executive Director on the Board ofthe Company. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT nny Dircctor be and are hereby severally authorized to sign and execute 
all such uucwncnls anu papers (including appointment letter etc.) as may be required for t.he purpose and 
file necessary e-form with the Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may 
considered expedient and necessary in this regard. 

RESOLVED FURTHER any Director be and are hereby severally authorized to si&n the certified true 
copy of the resolution of the resolution to be given as and when required" 

5. To consider any other Resolution on the approval of the Chair. 

FOR & ON BEHALF OF 
DELJTE INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE UMITED 

C. M. Chhabra 
Director 

(DIN: 03593180) 

PLACE: New D~lhi 
DATED: 31" August, 2023 
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1. 	 A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is also entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a 
poll instead of him and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. The instrument of proxy in order to 
be effective should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not later than 48 hours before the 
commencement ofthe meeting. Blank Proxy Form is annexed. 

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding in the aggregate not 
more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. A member holding more than 10% of the total 
share capital of the Company may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy 
for any other person or shareholder. 

Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so desire. 

2. 	 Route map of the venue of the meeting (including prominent land mark) is annexed. 

3. 	 Keeping in view the convenience of the Members, documents relating to shares will -continue to be accepted 
at the Registered Office ofthe Company. 

4. 	 Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative(s) to attend the meeting are requested to 
send a certified copy of Board Resolution authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on their 
hehal f at the meeting. 

5. 	 Statutory registers are open for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company on all 
working days, between 14:00-16:00 hours upto the date of the meeting and shall also be available for 
inspection at the Annual General Meeting. 

6. 	 Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank 
mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change in address and e-mail address etc., to the Company under 
the signatures of fi rst/joint holder(s). 

7. 	 Members are r equested: 
a. 	 To bring Attendance Slip duly completed and signed at the meeting and not to carry briefcase or bag inside 

the meeting venue for security reasons; 

b. 	 To quote their Folio No./I;lP ID - Client ID and e-maillD in all correspondence; and 
c. 	 To please note that no gift/gift coupon/refreshment coupon will be distributed at the meeting 

8. Disclosure relating to Directors pursuant to Secretarial Standards on General Meeting 

Re-appointment of Mr. Satish Kumar Murgai (DIN: 00040348) who retires hy rotation 

Name Mr. Satish Kumar Murgai 

Age 75 Years 

Date of first appointment on the Board 14-06-2010 

Fellow Member ofthe 
Institute of Chartered Accountants 

Qualifications 
ofIndia and holds a Degree in 
B.Com (Hons.). 


He possesses rich and varied 
IE~_« experience in Finance, Accounting, 
Tax Planning, Management 
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Consultancy, Business 
Restructuring, Capital Market 
Operations, Banking Operations, 
SEBI-related Matters, Direct and 
Indirect Tax laws and other 
corporate laws. Mr. Mugai has 
served a Nationalised Bank in 
various capacities and have an 
overall experience of more than 50 
years. 

Terms and conditions of appointment or re­
appointment along with details of NIL 
remuneration sought to be paid 

Last drawn remuneration, if applicable NA 

Sbareholding in the Company NIL 

I 
Relationship with other Directors, Manager 
and other Key Managerial Personnel of the NA 
Company 

I 
The Number of Meetings of the Board attended 
during the year 

6 

Other Dircctorship, Othcr Dircctorship -15 
Membership/Chairmanship of committees of Membership - 2 
olhel' Boal'ds Chairmanship - 2 
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
Item No. 4: 

APPOINTMENT OF MR. HARNAM SINGH THAKUR (DIN NO.: 07665807) AS DffiECTOR OF THE 
COMPANY 

It was infonned to the Board of Directors that Mr. Harnam Thakur Singh was appointed as an Additional 
Director on the Board of the Company with effect from May 22,2023 to hold office upto the date of the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules thereunder 
(including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force). 

Thc Company has gaincd cnormously by thc rich cxperience, efficiency & ability of Mr. Haman} Tha1<w Singh 
and it is in the best interest of the Company to keep enjoying the valuable services of Mr. Harnam Thakur Singh 
for the period to come. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives, are in any way 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolutions. 
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DELITE INFRASTRUCTURE PRNATE LIMITED 

REGISTERED OFFICE: 607, ROHIT HOUSE, 3, TOLSTOY MARG, NEW DELHI-UOOOl 


CIN: U74999DL2007PTCl65234 . 


DIRECTORS' REPORT 

The Members, 

DELITE INFRASTRUCTURE PRNATE LIMITED 


Your Directors have the pleasure in presenting their Report on the Company's Business Operations along-with 

the Audited Statement of Accounts for the Financial Year ended on 31 " March, 2023 


1. 	 BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY: 
DELITE INFRASTRUCTURE PRNATE LIMITED is a Private Limited incorporated in India under 
the provisions of the Companies Act. It came into existence on 27 th June, 2007. The Company is primarily 
engaged in the business of contractors, builders, broker, dealers and estate agents. 

2. 	 FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY: 
The Financial Data of Current and Previous year is sununarized as under: 

Amount (Rs.in Lakhs) 
Current Year Previous Year 

Particulars 
(31-03-2023) (31-03-22) 

Total Income 

2,166.40 3,983.62 
Total Expenses 

212.81 1585.86 

Profit / (Loss) before tax 
1953.59 2,397.76 

Less: Provision for Taxation (525.96) (642.1 9) 
Less: Deferred Tax - 34.11 

Less: Provision for Earlier Year 11.58 

Profit for the year 
1,427.63 1,~U1.27 

3. 	BOARD MEETINGS AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: 
The Board met six times in the Financial Year viz. May 30, 2022, July 25,2022, September 01,2022, 
October 24, 2022, December 26, 2022 and March 23, 2023 

The last AGM of the Company held on 29 th September, 2022. 

Further details of Director as on March 31, 2023 till the date of approval of Director Report are as follows: 
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Attendance atAttendance at the Board 
the BoardMeetings held during the 

Names of Meetings heldDIN Category Financial Year 2022-23 
Director during the 

Financial Year 
Held Attended 

2022-23 

Non-Executive
I Mr. S. K. Murgai 	 6 6 Y

00040348 Director 

Mr. C. M. Non- Executive 
 6 6 YLChhabra 03593180 I Director -I Non- Executive I Mr. I. S. Tripathi 	 6 6 Y

00654167 I Director 

Mr. Harnam Non- Executive 


0 0 NA
Thakur Singh 07665807 Director 

Note: Mr. I.S Tripathi resigned from the Directorship ofthe Company after the ciosure ofF.Y 3I" March, 2023 

011 22"" May, 2023 and Mr. Hamanl Thakur was appoil.ted as the Additiollal Director of the Company on 22"d 

May, 2023. 

4. 	 DIRECTORS' RESPONSffiILITY STATEMENT: 

Pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board hereby submits its responsibility 

Statement: ­

a. 	 In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along 

with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

b. 	 The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period. 

c. 	 Tbe Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d. The Directors had prepared tbe annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

e. 	 The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

and that such systems were adequate and operating ef fectively. 

5. 	DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 
The provisions of Section 149 of the Act pertaining to the appointment of Independent Director(s) do not 

apply to our Company. 

6. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS I KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) APPOINTED AND I OR 

RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR: 


There is no change in Directorship during the year under review. 


7. 	 EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE 

REMARKS OF DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING 

COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORT: 

There are no qualifications, reselvations or adverse remarks by the auditors in d,eir report. The provisions 

relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report are not applicable to the Company. 
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8. 	STATUTORY AUDITOR' S REPORT: 
The detailed auditor' s report is annexed. 

9. 	 PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 

OF THE C OMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
During the year under review, the Company has provided loan & Investments under the Section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Further, the particulars of Investments & loans given by the Company during the 
year under review are provided in the financial statements of the Company. 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the compariy Amount of Rate of Term ~rpose of 
to whom the Loan is Loan (in Interest Loan Loan given 

given Lakbs) 


Apeejay Stya Healthcare 44,021.41 5% 


Pvt. Ltd. 

I 

to.PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 
There was no contract or arrangement made with related parties as defined under Section 188 (l) ' the 

Companies Act, 2013 dnring the year under review. 

I1.STATE OF COMPANY AFFAmS: 
Dnring the financial year 2022-23, the Company has achieved income Rs. 2166.40 (in Lakhs) 

(Previous Year Rs. (in Lakhs) 3983.62) and Profit after Tax Rs. (in Lakhs) Rs. 1427.63/- (Previous Year 
Profit after Tax Rs. (in Lakhs) Rs. 1,801.27/-). 

12.TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 
No amount is proposed to be transferred to General Reserves. However profit for the current financial year 

is carried over as surplus under the head "Reserves & Surplus". 

13.DIVIDEND: 

To strengthen the fmancial position of the Company and to augment working capital in the business your 
Directors do not recommend any dividend. 

14.MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSTI'ION OF THE 
COMPANY OCClJRRED WITH THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH TIDS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF REPORT: 

No material changes and commitments affccting the financial pusition of the Company occurred between 
the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate on the date of this report. 

IS. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
The provision of Section 134(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to our Company. There was no 

foreign exchange inflow or outflow during the year under review. 

16.STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK 
MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY: 

The Company does not have any risk management policy as the elements of risk threatening the 

Company's existence is very minimal. 
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17.DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY COMPANY ON ITS 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSffilLlTY INITIATIVES: 
The activities are in accordance with Schedule VU of the Companies Act, 201 3. In accordance with the 

provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the annual report on Corporate Social Responsibility activities forming 
part of this report. 

During the year 2022-23, the Company has made the contribution of Rs. 18.08 Lakhs 

18.TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 
FUND 

The provision of section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no dividend declared 

or paid last year. 

19. 	CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 
There is no change in nature of business in the year under review. 

20.PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARY /JOINT VENTURE/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 
During the period under review, the Company had no Subsidiary/Joint Venture/Associate Company, 
therefore, annexing AOC-1 as part to the Board report is not applicable on the Company. 

21.COMPANIES WIDCH HAVE BECOME / CEASED TO BE COMPANY'S SUBSIDIARY(IES), 
JOINT VENTURE(S) OR ASSOCIATE COMPANY(IES): 
No Company became or ceased to be Company's subsidiary, joint venture or associate Company during the 
year under review. 

22.DEPOSITS: 
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposit during the year under review. 

23.SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 
TRffiUNALS: 
During the year under review, no significant has material order had been passed by the regulators or courts. 

24.APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS: 
Mis. Krishan K. Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN.: 000009N) was re-appointedas the Statutory 

Auditor of the Company at the 16'h AGM of the Company for a period of I(One) year i.e. conclusion 16th 

AGM till the conclusion of 17th AGM of the Company and being eligible offer themselves for 

reappointment. 

25.SHARES: 
During the year under review the Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights as to 
dividend, voting or otherwise including sweat equity, bonus shares or under any scheme. 

26.ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS: 
The Company has in place adequate internal fmancial controls with reference to fi nancial statements. 



27.0BLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place a new act The Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 has been notified on 9th 
December, 2013. Under the said Act every Company is required to set up an Internal Complaints 
Committee to look into complaints relaling to sexual harassment at work place of any women employee. 

Company has not adopted a policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace and has 
not set up Committee for implementation of said policy as there are no women employees in the Company 
dllling the year. 

28.REPORTING OF FRAUDS: 
There are no frauds on or by the Company which were required to be reported by the Statutory Auditors of 
the Company to the Central Government. 

29.COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 
The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India on meetings ofthe Board of Directors and General Meetings. 

30. WEB ADDRESS: 
The Company does not have a web address and annual return referred to in section 92(3) has not been 
placed on any web address. 

31 .ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: 
Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere thanks to all for their continued support extended 
towards your Company' s activities during the year under review. Your 
Directors also acknowledge gratefully the shareholders for their support and confidence reposed on your 
Company. 

FOR ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
DELITE INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 

C. M. CHHABRA S.K. MURGAI 
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR 

(DIN: 03593180) (DIN: 00040348) 

PLACE: New Delhi 
DATE : 31,1 August, 2023 

91 



Krishan K. Gupta &Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

As on :31-03-2023 


To the Members of 
DELITE INFRASTRUCTURE PVT. LTD., 
New Delhi 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of DELITE INFRASTRUCTURE PVT. LTD., ("the 
Company''), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the statement of Profit 
and Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting poliCies 
andother explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in t he manner so 
required and give a t rue and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affai rs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and profit, changes 
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
ilnd . the RuieG thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 
Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate 
Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor's report thereon. 
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon . 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, ih doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. . 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is no material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the 
Financial Statements 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 Cthe Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatem.ent, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relatedto going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intend~ to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion . The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collUSion, forgery, intentional omiSSions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 
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• Obtain an understanding of internal cont rol relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 
(ii) to evaluate, the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report 
unless law or regu lation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
Circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 C'the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we 
give in the "Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 
to the extent applicable. 
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As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

ourknowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) 	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Companyso far as it appears from our examination of those books 

c) 	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and 
the Cash Flow Statement dealt withbythis Report are in agreement with the books of 
account. 

d) 	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the AccountingStandards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 o~ the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. 

e) 	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) 	 With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in "Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting. 

g) 	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended : 

1 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us,the remuneration paid by the Companyto its direGtors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

h) 	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. 	 The Company has made provision as required under the applicable law or accounting 
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, in respect of long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts. 

ii. 	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

(K.K. GUPTA) 
Prop. 
M. No. 008311 
For and on behalf of 
KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 000009N 
UDIN: 23008311BGVFQYS041 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated : 31st August, 2023 



Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report 

AUDITOR'S REPORT AS PER THE COMPANIES (AUDITOR'S REPORT) ORDER, 2020: 


1. 	 a) The company has niaintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment. 

b) As explained to us, property, plant and equipment have been physically verified 
by the management at reasonable interval no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. 

c) The company does not hold any immovable property disclosed in the financial 
statements are held in the name of the company. 

d) 	 The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. 

e) No proceeding has been initiated 'against the Company for holding any Benami 
property under Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act 1988. 

2. 	 a) Inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management at 
reasonable intervals. No material discrepancy was noticed on physical verification of stocks 
by the management as compared to book records. 

b) The Company has not being sanctioned any working capital limit from Bank or 
Financial Institutions. 

3. 	 The company has not granted unsecured loans, provided guarantee and made 
inyestments in its wholly owned subsidiary i.e related party which is covered under register 
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 

4. 	 In respect of loans, investments and guarantees made provisions of section 185 and 186 
of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with. 

5. 	 The Company has not accepted deposits within the meaning of Rule 2 (c) (xii) (a) of 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 or any such amount which are deemed 
to be deposits. 

6. 	 On the basis of records produced we are of the opinion that prima facie cost records and 
accounts prescribed by the Central Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of products of the Company covered under the rules 
under said section have been made and maintained. However, we are neither required to 
carry out nor have carried out any detailed examination of such accounts and records. 

7. 	 According to information and explanation given to us, the company is regular in depositing 
with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, 
employees state insurance, income tax, service tax, custom duty, goods cess, other 
statutory dues and interest/ penalty towards delayed payment of du.es to the extent 
applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no 
undisputed amounts which were outstanding as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more 
than six months from the date of becoming payable. 

8. 	 No transaction has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax 
assessment under Income Tax Act, 1961 which had not been recorded in the books of 
account of the year. 
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9. 	 a) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information's and explanations given 
to us, we are of the opinion that the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to 
any bank or other quarter on account of principal loan or interest. 

b) Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or other lenders. 

c) No term loan has been availed by the company from any quarter. 

d) No fund raised on short term basis has been found to have been utilised for long 
term purpose. 

e) Company has no subsidiary, joint venture or associate company with consequent 
non applicability of this clause with the company. 

10. 	 a) The Company has raised no money by way of IPO or Further Public Offer including 
debt instruments during the year. 

b) 	 The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares during the year. 

11. 	 a) No fraud by the company or on the company has been noticed or reported during 
the year. 

b) No report under section 143 (12) of Companies Act 2013 has been filed by us 
during the year. 

c) 	 We have received no whistle-blower complaint during the year. 

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accord ingly paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

13. There has been no transactions with any related party covered under section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. All the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details of related party transactions have 
been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting 
Standards. 

14. The company is stated to have an internal audit system commensurate with the size and 
nature of its business. 

15. The company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons 
connected with him. 

16. 	 a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934 . 

.b) 	 The Company has not conducted any non-banking financial or housing financial 
activities during the year. 

c) Company is not a Core Investment Company (ClC). 


d) The company does not belong to any group which has a CIC as its member. 


17. The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year 2022-23 and in the 
immediately preceding financial year in 2021-22. 

18. 	 There has been no instance of any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 

97 



19. 	 In our opinion no material uncertainty is observed to exist as on t he date of the audit 
report about the ability of the company of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of 
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a periqd of 1 year from the balance sheet 
date. 

20. 	 No amount remains unspent under section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

21. 	 The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable to the company. 

(K.f(. GUPTA) 
Prop. 
M. No. 008311 
For and on behalf of 
KRISHAN K. GUPTA &. CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 000009N 
UDIN: 23008~11BGVFQY5041 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 31't August, 2023 
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Krishan K. Gupta &Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Annexure B referred to in Paragraph (II)(f) under the heading of "Report on Other 
Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even date 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 C'the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial cont rols over financial reporting of DELITE 
INFRASTRUCTURE PVT. LTD.,C"the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our 
audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on "the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
conSidering the essential components of internal cont rol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financia l Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note'') issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)". These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility . 
Our responsibi lity is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by lCAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the l CAl. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assur dllU:! dbuut whether adequate internal fmanCial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
maleriell re~JJed.s. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that: 
a) 	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; 

b) 	 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and 

c) 	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitat ions of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, materia l misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financia l controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or t hat the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on "the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the l CAI". 

(K.K. GUPTA) 
Prop. 
M. No. 008311 
For and on behalf of 
KRISHAN K. GUPTA &-. CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 000009N 
UDI N: 23008311BGVFQY5041 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 31'1 August, 2023 
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DELlTE INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhsl 


Non-cun't"1I1 ;Ineh 
(a) Investment property 
(b) Financial assets 

(I) Jnvc~tmClit 

(e) Deferred tax assets (net) 

Total non-current assets 

Current assets 
(a) lnventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Cash and cash equ ivalents 
(ii) Other financ ial assets 

(e) Current tax assets (net) 
(d) Other Cllrrent assets 

Total current assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

!!. EOUITY AND L1ABILIIIE..~ 

Equity 
(a) Eq uity share capital 
(b) Other equity 

Total equity 

Non-curreot liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities 

(I) Borrowings 
(ii) Other financial liabilities 

'fotal nOli-current liabilities 

Current liabilities 
(a) Financial liabil ities 

(i) Trade payables 

a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 

(ii) Other financ ial liabilities 
(b) Other CWTent liabilities 
(c) Income tax liabilities (net) 

TotlllllUlTtmt U"biliti9( 

Total liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Si.1,'ll ificant accounting policies 
Noles to the financia l statements 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financia l statements 

A s per our report of even date attached 

For Krishan K. Gupta & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Finn Reg. No.: 000009N 

Krisban K. Gupta 
Proprietor 
Membership No. : 0083 11 

P lace ~ New Delhi 
D ate: 31st August, 2023 

No te 
As at 

31 March 2023 

22 

3.755.64 

20.02 

3.775.66 

22 

22.88 

55.04 
46.986.74 

14.95 

47,079.62 

50,855.28 

1.00 
14.088.87 

14,089.87 

10 
/I 

36,712.5S 
24.00 

36,736.58 

12 

13 

14 
22 

6.23 
L23 

21.36 

as,SA 

36,765.41 

50,855.28 

2-50 

As at 
31 March 2022 

3,S78 .59 

20.02 

3,898.61 

22 .88 

2,003.34 
9,402. 32 

125.46 
14. 69 

11,568.69 

15,467.)0 

1.00 
12.661.24 

12,662.24 

2,778.77 
24 .00 

2.802.77 

0.01 

0.24 
2.04 

1,19 

2,805.07 

15,467.30 

For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Delitc Infrastructure Private Limited 

C. M. Chhabra 
Director 

DIN No. : 03593180 

S. K. Murgai 
Director 
DIN No. : 00040348 
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DELITE INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 
Statement of profit aDd loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

Income 
Revenue from operations 

Other income (net) 

Total Income 

Expenses 
Cost of material, operation and incidental cost 
EmpJoyess Benefits Expenses 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 
Other expenses 

Total expenses 

Profit before tax 

Tax expense: 

Current tax 
Deferred tax 

Tax provision with respect to earlier years 

Profit fo r the year 

Other comprehensive incomeJ(loss) for the year 

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Remeasurements of posl employment benefit obligations 

inveshnen! measured at FVTQCI 

Income tax related to above items 

Other com pl"cbcnsive income (net of tax) 

Total comprehensive income for tbe year 

Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. to each) 

Basic earnings per share 

Diluted earnings per share 

Significant accounting policies 

Notes to the financial statements 

The notes referred to above fonn an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For Krishan K. Gupta &. Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Finn Reg. No. : 000009N 

Krishan K. Gllpta 
Proprietor 
M.No.:008311 

Place - New Delh i 

Date: 31 st August, 2023 

For year ended For year ended Note 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

15 1,438.20 

16 2,166.40 2.545.43 

2,1 66.40 3,983.62 

17 1,24 1.87 
18 11.99 
19 11.05 12.20 
20 122.95 126.98 
21 66.83 204.8 1 

212.81 1,585.86 

1,953.59 2.397.76 

22 
525.96 642.19 

(34.1 1) 

(11.58) 

1,427.63 1,801.27 

1,358.27 

(219.66) 

1,138.6 1 

1,138.61 

1,427.63 2,939.88 

23 

14,276.28 18,01 2.66 

14,276.28 18,0 12.66 

2·50 

For and on behalf of the board of directors of 


Delite Infrastructure Private Limited 


C. M. Chbabra S. K. Murgai 

Director Director 
DIN No. : 03593180 DIN No. : 00040348 
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DELITE INFRASTRUcrURE PRIVATE LIMITED 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

(a) Eql!ity share capital 

As at 31 March 2023 

Number of Shares Amount 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Changes in equity share capital during the year 

10,000 1.00 

Balance at the end of the year 10,001) 1.00 

(b) Other equity 

Reserves and Surplus Other equity 
Equity 

instruments 
Particulars designated 

Retained Earnings 
throgh other 
comprehesive 

in come 

Balance at 1 April 2021 9,989.19 (267.83) 

Profit for the year 1,801.27 
Provision for earlier year 
Other comp rehensive income (net of tax) 

- Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations 
- Equity instruments designated throuRh other comprehensive income \,138.61 

Transfer from/to other reserves 870.78 870.78 
Total comprehensive income 2672.05 267.83 

Balance at 31 March 2022 12 661.24 

Profit. for the year 1,427.63 

Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 

- Remeasurements of post employment benefit ohligations 

- Equity instruments designated through other comprehens ive income 

Total comprehensive income 1427.63 

Balance at 31 March 2023 14,088.87I 
Nature and purpose of reserves 

i) Retained earninl!:s 
Retained earnings comprises of undistributed earnings after taxes. 

As per our report of even date attached. 

For Krishan K. Gupta & Co. 
Chartered Accou ntants 
Firm Rl):g, NQ,: 000009N 

Krishan K. Gupta 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 008311 

Place - New Delhi 
Date: 31 sl AUjI;llst, 2023 

As at 31 March 2022 


Number of Shares Amount 


10,000 1.00 

10,000 1.00 

Total other equity 

9,721.36 

1,801.27 

1,13R.61 

2939.88 

12661.24 

1.427.63 

1 427.63 

14,088.87 

For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Delite Infr astructure Private Limiled 

C. M. Chhabra S. K. Murgai 
Director Director 
DIN No. : 035931 SO DIN No. : 00040)48 
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DELITE INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(Currency : Indian Rupees in LakJts) 

Particulars 

A. Cash now from operating actil' ities 
Net Profit before extraordinary items and tax 

Adjustments for: 

Interest received 
Dividend income 

Profit on sale of investments designated through fair value through profit 

and loss (FVTPL) 

Rent received 

Inte rest paid 

Depreciation and amortisation 

OperatiD~ profit before workin~ capital changes 

[:hanges ill worki/Ig capital 


Decrease I (Increase) in inventories 

Decrease ! (Increase) in other current financi al asse ts 

Decrease/(Incrcase) in other current assets 

Increase / (Decrease) in other non-current· finan cial liabilities 

Increase / {Decrease) in trade payab\es 

Increase in other current financ ial liabilities 

(Decrease) nncrease in other current liabilities 

Increase in current provisions 


Cash generated from operations 

Net income tax (paid) 

Net cash flow f!cnerated fr om operatin!! activities 


B. Cash flow fro m invcstinf! activities 

Bank deposits placed during the year 

Purchase of non current investments 

Proceeds from sale of investments 

Dividend received 

Rent received 

Interest received 

Net cash flow (used in) investing activities 


c. Cash now from fin ancin~ activities 

Long-tenn borrowings (repaid) during the year 

(Repayment) / Proceeds of short-term borrowings (net) 

Interest paid 

Net cash now (used in) financi ng activities 


Net (dec.-ease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+8+C) 

Effect of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency Cash and 


cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

C ash lind cash equivalen ts at the end of the vea.­

Notes to cash flow statement 

For the year ended 

3 l March 2023 


1,953.59 

(2,089.53) 

(75.23) 

11.05 

122.95 

(2030.7. 
(77.17) 

(37,584.42) 
(0.26) 

(0.01) 
5.98 

(0.81) 

(37,57952 
(37,656.69) 

(379. 13) 

38035.82 

75.23 
2089_53 

2 164.76 

( 11 05 
33922.77 

(1,948,30) 

2003.34 
55.04 

For the year ended 

31 Ma.-ch 2022 


2,397. 76 

(1,640.57) 
(49.78) 

(9.69) 

(47,42) 

12.20 

126.98 

1608.28 
789.48 

(8.77) 


10,042.03 

(4.27) 

24.00 
(4.47) 

0.09 
(33 .76) 

10 014.85 

1O(~~~ ..:; 
10 096.99 

9,924.76 
(13,256.31 ) 
21,166.37 

49.78 
47.42 

1,64057 f----c1"'9-=S7"'"'92,S"..j

(27, 807.37) 

12.20 
27 819.56 

1,850.01 

153.32 
2003.34 

( i) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect method set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 on Statement of Cash Flows. 
(ii) Prior year comparatives have been reclassified to conform with current year's presentation, where applicable. 
(iii) For the purpose of cash now, Cash and cash equivalents comprise 

Cash on Hand ( Refer Note 5) 

Balances with bank 

- Currept accounts 


As per our repolt attached of even date 

For Krishan K. Gupta & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn Reg. No.: 000009N 

Krishan K. Gupta 
Proprietor 
Membership No. : 008311 

Place - New Delhi 
Date: 31 st August, 2023 

0.02 

SS .D1 
55.04 

For and on bebalf of the board of directors of 
Octite Infrastructure Private Limited 

C. M. Chbabra 
Director 
DIN No. : 03593180 

2,003 .3 1 
2,003.34 

s. K. Mur~ai 
Director 
DrN No, : 00040348 
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Delite Infrastructure Private Limited 
Notes to the fmancial statements for the year ended 3 1 March 2023 

Summary of significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial statements 

I. Significant accounting policies 

1.1. Basis of preparation of financial statements: 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act') read with rule 3 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards), Rules, 201 5 and relevant amendment rules issued 
thereafter. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 " August 2023 

Functional and Presentation Currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company's functional 
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest in Lakhs, as per the requirements of 

Schedule III of the Act, unless otherwise stated. 


1.2, Basis of measurement 


The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 


• certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fai r 
value; and 

• net defined benefit (asset) / liability that are measured at fair value of plan assets less present value 
of defmed benefit obligations. 

1.3. Use of judgements estimates and assumptions. 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, 
current assets, non-current assets, current liabilities, non-current liabilities, and disclosure of the 
contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. Such estimates are on a reasonable and 
prudent basis considering all available information, however, due to uncertainties about these 
judgments, estimates and assumptions, actual results could differ from estimates. Information about 
each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes. 

Jndgements 

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant 
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes: 

Note 30 - classification of financial assets : assessment of business model within which the assets 
are held and assessment ' of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in 
a material adjustment is included in the following notes: 
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Delite Infrastructure Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

Note 24 - Recognition of contingencies, key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of 

outflow of resources. 

Note 22 - Recognition of tax expense including deferred tax. 


1.4. Current and nou-current c1assificatiou of assets aud liabilities 

The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-{;urrent 
classification. 

An asset is classified as current when it is: 

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 

Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

Cash or cash equivalent 'unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when it is: 

Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 

Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period 

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in 
cash and cash equivalents. Based on the nature of products/services and the time between acquisition 
of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the company has identified 
twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current / non - current classification of assets 
and liability. 

1.5. Property, plant and equipment: 

• Recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, 
if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including 
import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing 
the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in 
arriving at the purchase price. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the constiuction of a qualifYing 
asset are capitalised as part of the cost. The company identifies and determines cost of each 
component! part of the asset separately, if the component! part has a cost which is significant to the 
total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset. 
These components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are 
depreciated over the life ofthe principal asset. 
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Delite Infrastructure Private Limited 
Notes to the fmancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

• Subsequent costs 

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying 
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will 
flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part 
is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipmen t are recognised 
in the statement ofprofit and loss as incurred. 

• Disposal 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecogni sed upon disposal or when no future benefits 
are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and 
equipment are detennined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of 
property, plant and equipment, and are recognised net within other incomel expenses in the statement 
of profit and loss. 

• Depreciation 

Depreciation for assets purchased 1 sold during a year is proportionately charged. D epreciation is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss on basis of the estimated useful lives as per Schedule II 
of the Companies Act, 2013, of each significant part of an item of property, plant and equipment. 
Individual assets costing less than Rs. 5,0001- are depreciated in full in the year of acquisition. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed at regular intervals and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

1.6. Investment property 

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not 
occupied by the company, is classified as investment property. Investment property is measured 
initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will fl ow to the company and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. 
When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognised. 

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-l ine method over their estimated useful lives. 

1.7. Intangible assets: 

• Recognition and measurement 

Intangible assets are recognised when the asset is identifi able, is within the control of the Company, it 
is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the 
Company and cost of the asset can be reliably measured. 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets 
acquired by the Company that have fini te useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are 
not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating 
unit level. 
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Detite Infrastructure Private Limited 
Notes to the fmancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. 
Development expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product 
or process is technically and conunercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable and the 
Company intends to complete development and to use or sell the asset. 

o Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied 
in the specific asset to which it relates: 

o Amortisation 

Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost. 
Amortisation is recognised in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated 
useful lives of intangible assets from the date that they are available for use. 

o Disposal 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the 
statement ofprofit and loss when the asset is derecognized. 

1.8. Borrowing costs: 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an 
adjustment to the borrowing costs . 

B.orrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised 
during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. 
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

1.9. Inventories: 

Inventories comprising of traded items are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, les's estimated 
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

1.10. Revenue recognition: 

Sales are recognised when substantial control of the products has been transferred to the customer, 
being when the products are delivered to the customer or its authorised representative and there is no 
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer's acceptance oflhe products. Revenue from these 
sales is recognised based on the price specified in the sales order, net of the estimated discounts, 
rebates, returns and goods and service tax. A receivable is recognised when the goods arc delivered as 
this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is 
required before the payment is due. Sales revenues of products are disclosed at net of tax. 

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised over the period of time. 

Revenue from trading in futures is recognised at point in time on net basis after deducting the 
purchase prices . 

Revenue from trading in options is recognised at point in time on gross basis and the relevant costs 
are recognised as expenditure in cost of materials consumed. 
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Delite Infrastructure Private Limited 
Notes to the fInancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

Recognition of dividend income, interest income: 

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The 'effective 
interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the 
expected life of the financial instrument to: 

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or 

- the amortised cost of the financial liability. 

Dividends are recognised in the statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is 
established, and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the 
Company and that the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. 

1.11. Income taxes: 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profIt and 
loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognised directly in equity 
or in other comprehensive income (OC!) . 

• Current tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to 
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are 
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates and 
generates taxable income. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally 
enforceable right to set it off the recognised amounts and it is intended to realise the asset and settle 
the liability on a net basis or simultaneously . . 

• Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax 
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the 
reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

- When the cleferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability 
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither 
the "ccOllnting profit nor taxable profit or loss; 

- Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and 
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses (including unabsorbed depreciation) can 
be utilised, except: 

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time 
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent lhat it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of 
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Delite Infrastructure Private Limited 
Notes to the fmancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Uruecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting 
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow 
the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enaCted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 
and the same taxation authority. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. 
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly 
in equity. 

1.12. Earnings per share (EPS): 

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the 
Company by the weighted llverage number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, 
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares. 
Diluted EPS adjust the figures used in the determination of basic EPS to consider: 

- The after-income tax effect of interest and other financ ing costs associated with dilutive potential 
equity shares, and 

- The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding 
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

1.13. Provision and contingent liabilities / assets: 

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructiv€) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax 
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost in the statement of 
profit and loss. 

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of: 

- a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation. 

- present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible 
- a possible obligation arising from past events where the probability of outflow of resources is not 

remote. 

Contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements. A contingent asset is disclosed, where 
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 
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Delite Infrastructure Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3 1 March 2023 

1.14. Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term 
deposits with an original maturity. of not more than three months, which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value. 

1.15. Cash flow statement: 

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net Profit before tax is a djusted for the 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, such as deferrals or accruals of past or future operating 
cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing 
cash flows. For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, bank overdrafts are 
considered to be part of cash and cash equivalents. 

1.16. Leases 

At inception of a contract, the company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract 
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an identified asset, the company assesses whether: 

the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or implicitly 
and should be physically distinct or represent substantially .all of the capacity of a physically 
distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified. 
the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the 
asset throughout the period of use; and 
the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has 
the decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset 
is used. lu rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is 
predetermined, the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset if either: 

the Company has the right to operate the asset; or 
the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it, will 
be used. 

At inception or on reassessment of a contract t.f-tat contains a lease component, the Company allocates 
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone 
prices. 

Company as a lessor 

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless the payments to the lessor are structured 
to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary 
cost increases or another systematic basis is available. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and 
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over 
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the 
period in which they are earned. 

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 
transfer from the company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded 
as receivables at the company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to 
accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in 
respect of the lease. 
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Delite Infrastructure Private Limited 

Notes to the fmancial statements for the year ended 3 1 March'2023 


1.17. Fair value measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transier a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based 
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of 
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A 
fair value measurement of a non-financial asset considers a market participant' s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

• Level I - Quoted (unadj usted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 
Company determi~es whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities 
based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value 
hierarchy as explained above. 

1.16. Financial instruments 

1.16.1. Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts 
such as foreign currency foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and currency 
options; and embedded derivatives in the host contract. All financial assets are recognised initially at 
fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in one of the three categories: 

a) At amortised cost 

b) At fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (,FVTOCI') 
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c) At fair value through profit or loss ('FVTPL') 

(a) Financial assets classified as measured at amortised cost 

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold fmancial assets in 
order to collect contractual cash flows and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments ofprincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate ('EIR') method, less impainnent charge. Amortised cost is calculated by 
considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance expense! (income) in the statement of profit and 
loss. The losses arising from impainnent are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This 
category generally applies to trade receivables, security and other deposits receivable by the 
Company. 

(b) Financial assets classified as measured at FVTOCI 

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the fmancial assets, where 
the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. 
Movements in the caITY.ing amOlmt are taken through OCl, except for the recognition of impairment 
gair,s or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit 
and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised 
in OCI is reclassified from equity to retained earnings. Interest income from these financial assets is 
included in other income using the effective interest rate method. 

(c) Financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL 

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through 
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through 
profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net 
in the statement of profit and loss within other gains!(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest 
income from these financial assets is included in other income. 

De-recognition of financial asset 

The Company derecognises a linancial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in 
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in 
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but 
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred 
assets are not derecognised. 

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for 
measurement and recognition of impainnent loss on the following financial assets and credit risk 
exposure: 
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Delite Infrastructure Private Limited 
Notes to the fmancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised Cost e.g., loans, deposits 
and bank balanccs. 

Trade receivables. 

The Company follows ' simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade 
receivables. 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. 
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right 
from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company 
detennines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. 
If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. 

1.18.2. Employee benefits: 

• Short-term employee benefits 

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as 
short-term employee benefits. The undiscounted amotmt of short-term employee benefits expected to 
be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognized during the year. 

• Other long-term employee benefits 

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of 
the reporting period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured 
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by 
employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method as detennined 
by actuarial valuation. The benefi ts are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting 
period that have terms approximating the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result 
of experience adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity 
does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting 
period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur. 

1.18.3. Financialliabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised 
initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable 
and incremental transaction cost. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The ErR amortisation is included as finance costs in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 
designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if 
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes 
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derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging 
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss . 

Financial liabilities designated as such upon initial recognition at the initial date of recognition if the 
criteria in Ind AS J09 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains! losses 
attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognised in OCr. These gains! losses are not 
subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the 
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss. 

(a) Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

This is the most relevant category to the Company. The Company generally classifies interest bearing 
borrowings as financial liabilities carried at amortised cost. After initial recognition, these instruments 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and 
losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well 
as through the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

De-recognition of financial liability 

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from the balance sheet when, 
and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or 
cancelled or expired. 

When an existing fi nancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new 
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss . 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet 
jf lhere js a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Derivative financial instruments 

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are 
measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss. 
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1.18.4. Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing 
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 
March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by 
issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 
1,2023, as below: 

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements 

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their 
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information, is 
material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general­
purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant 
impact in its financial statements. 

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes 

The amendments narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it no longer applies 
to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and offsetting temporary 
differences. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its 
financial statements. 

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

The defmition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting 
estimates and includes amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting 
policies from changes in accounting estimates. The Company does not expect this amendment to have 
any significant impact in its financial statements. 
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DELITE INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

Investment p.roperty 

A. RetoDciliation of carryio2 amount 

Particulars Investment Property Total 
Buildine 

Gross block 

Balance at I April 2021 4,332.55 4,332.55 
Additions duri ng the year 

Disposals 

Closing gross block 4,332.55 4,332.55 

Accumulated depreci ation 

Balance at I Ap ril 202 1 326.98 326.98 
Deprec iation duri ng the year 126.98 126.98 
Deducti on 

Closing accumulate d depreciation 453.95 453.95 

Gross block 
Balance at 1 April 2022 4,332.55 4,332.55 
Additions during the year 
Disposals 

Closing 2ross block 4332.55 4,332.55 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance at 1April 2022 453.95 453 .95 
Depreciation during the year 122.95 122 .95 
Disposals 

Closing accumulated depreciation 576.91 576.91 

Net block as on 31 March 2023 3 755.64 3,755.64 

Net block as on 31 March 2022 3,878.59 3,878.59 

Fair value Amount 
As at 31 March 2023 4182. 10 
As at 3 I March 2022 4 182.10 

B. Amounts re~ogn ised in profit or l o~" 
Rental incQme recogni&ed by the compnny during 31 March 2023 was Rs. 75.23 lakh (3 1 Mall;h 2022; Rs. 47.42 lakh) and was included in 'other 
income'. The company has incurred the following expenses for maintenance of the said properties. 

Particulars 31 March 23 31 March 22 

Property tax 1.29 25.81 

Electricity, water and gas expenses 1.25 J.03 

Maintenance and electricity expenses 12.46 16.67 

Total 15.00 43.51 

C. Measurement of fa ir values 

Fair value hierarchy 
Investment property comprised of buildings owned by the entity and leased out for the purpose of earning rental income. 

The fair value of investment property has been detennined by an external independent registered valuer, having appropriate recognised professional 

quali fications and experience in the location and category of property being valued. The fair value measurement for the inveshnent property bas been 

categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used. 


Valuation technique 
The valuation is based on government rates, market research, market trend and comparable values as considered appropnate. 
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DELITE INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

3 	 Non-c urrent investments 

Investments designated at rair value through other comprehensive 

income (FYTOCn 

Investment in equity shares - Uoquoted 

3,742 (3 1 March 2022 3,742) equity shares of Gooded Technologies 
Private Limited ofRs. 10 each fu llv oaid-uo 

(a) Amegate amount of quoted investments 
(b) Awegate market value of quoted investments 
(c) Aggregate amount of un quoted investments 
(d) Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 

4 	 Inventories 

(valued at cost or NRV, whichever is lower) 


Finished goods 

5 	 Cash and <:ash equivalents 

Cashiphand 


Balances with banks 


In currellt account 


(i 	 Otbercurrentfinancialasse.1s 

Amounts recoverable 


Advaoces repayable on demand 


Sccuritydeposits 


7 	 O tber current assets 

Balance with government au thorities 

3 1 Marcb 2023 31 Marcb21t2Z 

20.02 20.02 

20.02 20.02 

20.02 20.02 

20.02 20.02 

31 Marc b 2023 31 March 2022 

22.88 22.88 

22.88 22 .88 

31 Marcb2023 31 Marcb2022 

0.02 0.02 

55.01 2,003.31 

55.04 2,003.34 

31 Marcb2023 31 Marcb 2022 

0.0 1 0.01 

46,986.59 9,402.16 

0.15 0, 15 

46,98(1.74 9,402.3 2 

31 Man:h2023 31 Marcb2022 

14.95 14.69 

14,95 14,69 
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DELITE lNFRASTRUcrURE PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to the financia l statements (continued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

8 Share capital 

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 


Authorised: 


10,000 (3 1 March 2022 : 10,000) equity shares ofRs.IO each. 1.00 1.00 


TOTAL 1.00 1.00 


Issued, subscribed and paid up: 


10,000 (31 March 2022: 10,000) equity shares ofRs.10 each. 1.00 1.00 


1.00 1.00 

Reconciliation of number or sbares outstanding at the beginning aod eod of the year: 

Equity share: 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Number of Shares Numberor Shares 

Outstandin~ at the beginnin~ of the year 10,000 10,000 
Equity shares issued during the year 

Outstanding at the end of the year 10,000 10,000 

The Company has only one class ofshares referred to as equity shares having a par value ofRs. 10/- each, Each Holder of equity share is entitled to vote. There are no rights, 
preferences and restrictions attached to any share 

Shareholders holdio2 more tban 5% shares in the ComplIll)' is set out below: 

Equity shares of as. 10 each fully paid . 31 Marcb 2023 31 March 2022 

Number of Shares % of Tolal shares Number of Shares % ofTOlal sbares 

Martin & Harris Laboratories Limited 10,000 100.00% 10,000 100.00% 

Shares held by Promoters allhe end of Ihe year are set out below: 

Promoter Name 31 March 2023 
. Number of Shares 0/. of Total shares Num

31 M .... ch2022 
berorSbares 0/. of Total shares % Chanees 

the year 
during 

Martin & Harris Laboratories Limited 10,000 100% 10,000 100% 0.00% 

9 Olherequity 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

A. Retained earnings 14,088.87 12,661.24 

B. Equity instruments deslgnaled Ibrogb olher comprebesive Income 

14,088.87 12,661.24 

31 March 2023 31 Msrcb2022 

Retained earnings 

Opening balance 12,661.24 9,989.19 

Profit for the year 1,427.63 1,801.27 
Appropriations 

Transfer from I (to) other reserves 870.78 

Closing balance 14 088.87 12 661.2:4 


Equity instruments desi2l\s ted Ihroeb olher comprebesive income 

Openin~balance (267.83) 

Chan~es during the year (net ofta:<) 1,138.61 

Transfer from 1(to) other reserves (870.78) 


Closing balance 
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DELITE INFRASTRUCTURE PRfVATE LIMITED 
Noles 10 Ihe financial st lltements (continued) 
(Currrney: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

10 Non-current financial liabilities - borrowines 

Unsecured 

Borrowings from related parties· 

· Refer note 27 for rela ted pUTty transactions 

II OUter non-current finaociallillbilities 

Securi ty deposits 

12 Trade payables 

Total outstanding dues to micro enterpr ises and small enterprises 

Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Trade Payable ageing for the year ended 31 March 2023 

Pa rticulars 

MSME 

Others 


Disputed dues MSME 

Disputed dues - Others 


Trade Pay·able ageing for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Particulars 

MSME 


Others 


Disputed dues - MS11E 

Disputed dues - Others 

13 Other curreut fina ncial liabilities 

Payable for expenses 

Payable for Employees 


14 Other current liabilities 

Statutory dues payable 

31 Marcb 2023 31 March 2022 

36,712.58 2,778.77 

36,712.58 2,778.77 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

24.00 24.00 

24.00 24.00 

31 March 2023 31 Marcb2022 

0.01 

0.01 

Outstanding for follOwin g periods from due date of payment 
More 

L~s;;:;n 1-2 years 2-3 years than 3 Total 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

More 

than 3 Total 


0.01 0.01 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

4.86 0.24 
1.37 
6.23 0.24 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

1.2] 2.04 
1.23 2.04 
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DELITE INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements (conti nued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakbs) 

15 Revenue from operations 

Sales of options derivative funds 

16 Other income 

Rent income 

Interest received 

Profit on future derivative 

Dividend income 

Profit on sale of investments designated through fair value through profit and 

loss (FVTPL) 


Discount received 


Other Income 


For year ended For year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

1,438.20 

1,438.20 

For year ended For year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

75.23 47.42 

2,089. 53 1,640.57 

795.17 

49.78 

9.69 

2.17 

1. 64 0.63 

2,166.40 2,545.43 
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DELITE INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakbs) 

17 Cost of materials consumed 

Purchase of futures and options derivative account 

Opening inventory 

Option purchase 

Other purchase 

Closing inventory 

18 Employees Benefits Expenses 

Salaries & other benefits 

19 Finance costs 

Interest on loan 

20 Depreciation and amortisation expenses 

Depreciation on investment property 

21 Otber expenses 

Building Repair & Maintenance 

Brokerage 

Consultancy charges 

Welfare Expenses 

CSR Expenses 

Donation 

Electricity, water and gas expenses 

Mamtenance and electricity expenses 

Filing fee 

Other Maitenance Expenses 

Miscellaneous expenses 

Interest and penalty 

Legal and professional fee 

Property tax 

Postage and Stamps 

Telephone expenses 

Subscription 

Audit fee 

Foryear ended For year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022" 

22.88 14.11 

1,239.70 

10.95 

(22.88) (22.88) 

1,241.87 

For year ended For year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

11.99 

11.99 

For year !!nded. For year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

11.05 12.20 

11.05 12,20 

122.95 126.98 

122.95 126.98 

For year ended For year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

19.89 

7.08 

25.00 24.50 

8. 31 

18.08 4.62 

100.00 

1.25 1.03 

7.72 H. 
0.03 0.05 

4.74 8.81 

0.00 0.02 

0.00 0.01 

0.14 2.21 

1.29 25.81 

0.65 

0.08 0.07 

2.00 

0.20 0.20 

66.83 204.81 
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DUITE INFRASTRUCruRE PRIVATE I..IM1TED 
NOI., to the finaoclal U.lltmenD (conllnutdl 
(CW"rtocv:lndianRupe",inLal<hl) 

22 TUell 

a) St.ltemeDlofprofit or 105\ 

Particuhrs Ye.o.rended YU. fnded 
31M.o.rch20lJ JIMarch2022 

Currentt.....: 
Curr~1 i!\COme tax ChaT!'!" 642.19 
TaxprO\lsionWith'.-spa:ttO t;:l rlicr ( 11.58) 

Deferred tax (includi ng MAT credit (34.11) 
entitlement) 

IJlCtIme laJ<expeD!lerr~rtedinlbe 525.96 

~t"frofitorlo5.' 


bl Other comprehensive income (OCI) 
T ~xt:s Td atedlo itcm."recO!!Jliscdin OC!dUfinginlbeVClII 

Putkulirs Ytartndcd YI.'lI.ended 
11 March 2023 31 Marcb2022 

Currentta..: 
Taxes on equity instnu·ncnt<; through (219.66) 
othl:l"cOlll(lTcht:QSi~cinCQmc 

Deferred Ia.. (Including MAT credit 

eDtitlelMlI1) 

RcmeasuremenlS g;'Iins and loss"" Ilfl post 


CII!D1ovrnc:I11benctilS 

Ta~es on equity instrommts through 

othefcOIJ\l)[ehensive income 


,Income tax rK~ inOCI 

NOII- cunentlaX assclS 
Current tax a!.SdS 

Total tn ustt. 

Partkubrs 


lrooome tax (netof provi~ion) 


Neldderr""bI~lbbllllks/ (as.Itt) 

Partkulm 

Oe!ffrt.rl ta.~ ~abililY(DTL) 
Dd"=cd tax asset T A 
NddeferRdtJlIUa II 

dl Defundt.I 
Year ended Ytar elWled 

11 MaKh1023 1 Match 1022 
Deferred 1..-.: Inbllltv IDTL) 

SecurilVdeposilS 

Mul\lal Ji.mdsdesignated at fair va lue 
lhfoutZhnTofilmdloss 

Provision for emolovoe bc:nefit.< 
MAT credit tntitlemeut 
Dq""ciition on inVtstmentpropto1y 

Equity sharcs dcsignatedat fair value 
tluotlgbothcrco!1lpTeh=i~~ 
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D[L1TE INFRASTRUCTURE PRlVATE UMlnD 
NOWi loIMII"~ I\l1CIIIf!IQ: rC\llltlallfdl 
(CUI1'eIKV:IlIdiJon R_ ioLakbsl 

e\ 	 Recondlbllon of In uptMe ud lbe ItcOlllltIac ,rolll llBlltiplkd by iDdlI'J domrotit tn 


fill. rn II Mm!! l lln·.... " M'....l!?lln· 


Yurendro 
lM,.,-ch2022 


AttoonTirn'. oro6t before tax 1.953.59 2.397.76 


Tuuptr ITActon abon@lS.17% 491.6g 698.23 

Wrtv. ~fflr-29.12'Y.) fA) 


Tu.~ 

(i)Currrnltax 525.96 641. 19 


(ii)Def((Tollax 04.111 

(iii)T3J(.rioninrt$pe.:t ofeartier~ (1 1.58) 


(8) 	 596.49 

(34.1S) 

TurecollcillllooD 

Adiuumcnll: 

Tilxal ioo in r~pect of oar lier (109.70) 


~usin<:sslo:l.'ofl'reviousyt::lrs) 

TIXll iooin mlo.ct of.a:r lieryears (11.58) 

Prnna.nenTdi\.aliowaoc", 40. 19 57.70 

SL,ndard dcducTion(H.P) (59 1) (4.03) 


("34.11) 

Implcl as a r",",ult ofI. x rate change 


n&rred lllxtlJ)lroco)!nistd 

Other> 


f) l'tIonllltnl in TempOnlnl dilfcrcnces: 
Rec0gni5ro ioprofitor Recoglll..d in Prfit or R"'ogllisffllnOCI Reco-gnisedin Reco~ni'edin Recllgllufdio 31 M,.,-cb2D2J 

lo\>' duriJIg ross duriogthe during profilorlo... Prfit o rl~sd\lriDg OClduriDg 

tht)"elIJ )"oarOClduring I""year during th' )"e>lrOCI tbt)"ear 
during 


Deferred TO hbilit\l roTl) 

MATcrtditentille:meut (9l.J41 125.26 (J411) 


EquiTysh.>resdesigrntttdalfa ir VJlue (35.31) 

thnlligilolll<! wmprehcruiveincorn.l 

m6.451 12S.16 (H.1Jl 	 0.00 

The Company ulTs cts lax "-'!<CIS and li.bilil;'" if and only ifi l has ~ I. gally enforootble rigbl 10 :let offcurrcnlTM assets and currern 1M liabililia; and the de rated ax a...,c,; and deferred tu li l bil iTies lelaTe 10 income ta>:es levied by the same tax 

IlUlhority 
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DELITE lNFRASTRUcnJRE PRIVATE LIMJ:rED 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in La khs) 

23 Earnings Per Share 

Particulars 

Profit I (loss) attributable to equity shareholders 


Basic Earnings Per Share 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 


Basic Ers fRs. 

Diluted Earn ings Per Share 

Weighted average number of equit shares outstanding for di luted Ers 

Diluted EPS (Rs.) 


24 Contingent liabili ties: 

Particulars 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 

25 Disclosures required undcr Section 22 oftbe M icro, Small and Medium Entcrprises Development Act., 2006 

Particulars 

Tbe amount remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of each accounting year 

- Principal 

-Interest 

The amount of interest paid by the buyer ·in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act 2006 
The amount of payment made to micro and small supplier beyond the appointed day during each 
accounting year 
The amount of interest due and payable for period of delay in making payment (which have 
been paid but beyond tbe appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest 
specified under MSMED Act 2006 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year. 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding year, until 
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises for the 
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006. 

26 Leases 

A. Impacts on fin ancial statements 

Year ended Yea r ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

1,427.63 1,801.27 

10,000 10,000 

14276.28 18012.66 

10,000 10,000 
14276.28 18,012.66 

Year ended Year ended 
31 Marcil 2023 31 March 2022 

Ye ar ended Year ended 
31 March 2023 31 Ma rch 2022 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

Ni l Ni l 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

The Company leases out its office premises and flats . The company has classified tbese leases as operating leases, because they do not transfer substantially all of the risks 

and rewards incidental to the ownership of the assets. 


Rental inconle recognised by the company during 31 March 2023 was Rs. 75.23 lakh (31 March 2022 Rs. 47.42 lakh) and was included in ' other income' 


Tbe following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease payments, showing the undiscounted lease payments to be received after the reporting dale. 


Maturity analysis 

Receivable in less than one year 

Receivable between one and five years 

Receivable after more than five years 

Total 

Year ended Year ended 
31 M arch 2023 31 M arcb2022 

78.60 74.85 

187.40 266.00 

266.00 340.85 
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DEI..ITE INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOCuCothelinucbIICa CtJDC'III1 « oatlAlItd) 

(Currenev:lodiaoRullcu ;nL.:akhl ) 

27 RelaCedPartvDi lc1o.uru 

(a) LiuofRebled :'p:tiesand ducr;lltion ofN:lotionshill: 

lIoldio~ eomp&nv 

I Marti n & Harris Labo ratori.sL!d 

K~v M.nae~mePl Perlonnel (KJ\-W) 

Satish Kumar Mutgai 


lndu Shekhar Tripalhi 


Chandra Mohan Chhabr:a 


OCher rm lHi pa rlies: 

Enlilies in w hic h Kt)' M.llt~emelll Persoo nel and I Or Iheir relal;,'es u:trdst significant in nUtote and wilh whom l ..oU<tiO'1IS wert carried ou' during the yur ­

(b) Rebledp~rtvlrl n5acllons: 

Sr. N~cureorTTDn.<aelion VurcDd~dJI March 2023 VtarelKle-d31 Mlrch2022 
Key M.n~gemeol Entitit.! wher~ Key Holding Company Key Managemenl EDtities whut Key Halding Company Tou l 

Persoonel M.o.gtn~nt PenanDel Management 
(KMP)IRtlall.-eof Penonnel'Rel.tive (KM P)lRebtiveof PertDnnellRelati,. e 
Key Ma nage ment of Key Key Management or Key 

PHIIO""el Ma nagemeo t Ptnonnel Ml llagemtnt 

Ptrsll nnd l\.u 
l ignifin ot 1ignifk.nt 

LO'tn& Advanc:cs Ulken/Recci,"c.:I 36.881.8 1 40.02781 112.0t 3.344.63 ).456,65 
w.nPaidllriven (2.948,00) (6.559,17) (112,01l 01.1 52.00) (31.264 .01) 

465.17) 

re) Balances ou.standin~u!htcndoftbcyr.r: . 

V~ar~ndtd Yurtndrd 


31 M.rcb202J 31 Marc hZ022 


~ . FinaodaILiabW!tes- Borrowil\2s 

Manin& Hanis LaboraloriesLrd 36.7 12.58 2.778.77 


b . Flnlllci. l .usd,· Ollt~ r Flnancbl Au.to 

Bervin Investment and L.easing Ltd 
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DELITE INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes 10 Ihe rlOallcialstalemenls (couliuued) 
(C ur rencv; Indian Rnr .... ~ in I.akh~l 

Z8 Fiuaocialri$kmanallement 

The Compa[Jy's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment aod oversight of the Company's risk managemetlt framework_ The board of directors is respo[Jsible for 
developing and monitoring the Compa[Jy's risk management policies. The board regularly meets to decide its risk management activities 

The Company's risk management policies· are established to identifY and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and cO[Jtrols to monitor risks 8[Jd 
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company. through its 
training and management standards and procedures. aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations 
The Company'S management ITKJnitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures. and reviews the adequacy of the risk ~anagement framework in 
relatioo to the risks faced by the Company. 

The Company has ellposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments 

- credit risk - see note (a) below 

-liquidityrisk - see nOle (b) below 


market risk-see nOle(c) below 

(a) C redit r isk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 10 the Company if a customer or counterparty 10 a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. and arises principally from the 
Company's receivables from customers. 

The Company's ellposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics ofeacb customer. However. management also considers the factors that may influence the 
credit risk of its customer base. including the default risk associ atedwiththeindusrryandcountryinwhichcuslomersoperate 

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals. establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring tbe creditwonhiness of customers to which the Company grants credit tenus in 
the normal coltrse of business. On account of adoption ofInd AS 109, the Company uses expected credi t loss model to assess impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a matrix to 
compute the ellpected credit loss allowance for trade receivables_ The provision matrix takes into account available external and in ternal credit risk factors and Company's histori~al 
ellperience forcustomers 

(b) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are se ttled by delivering cash or another 
financia l asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to cnsurc, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when tbey are duc, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. 
The Company's treasury department is responSible for liquidity and fUnding_ In addition policies and procedures relating to such risks are overseen by the management. 
The Company's principal sources ofliql.lidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow tbat is generated from operations 

As st Al a I 
Partiellla rs 

31 MarcilZOZ3 31 Ms rch ZOZZ 

Total current assets (A) 47.079.62 11.568.69 

Total current liabilities B 28.83 2_29 


Worldn ca hal A-B 47,050.79 11 ,566.40 


Following is the Company's n posure 10 finsnc ialll:lbilities based on the contractual ma turity as at r eporting dale 

A~ 1I. 131 MarchZOZ] 

ContTaclual cash Oows 

Ca rryin va lue Leu than I Mor e than 1 year Tolal 
Borrowings 36.712.5~ I 1 36,712.5~ I 36,712.58 

Tradepayables 

Other liabili ties 30 . 2~ I 6.;3 1 24.00 I 30.23 


Asal 31Mar cb ZOZZ 

Coutraetual ca~hnows 

Cnrry inj! ' · ... luo Less tb ... nl 'ear More than I 'cor Totul 

Borrowings 2,778.77
2.778.7; 1 1 2,778.~7 1I 

Tradepayables 0.01 

Other1iabilitie~ 2~:~~ 1 ~:~~ 1 HOO I 2:1.25 


(c) LVlarketrisk 

Market nsk is the risk that changes with market prices - such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates. will affect the Company's income or tbe value of its holdings of financia l 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk ellposures within acceptable parameters. while optimising the return. The compatly is tlot 
exposed to atly market risk as it does tlot have any balances outstanding in foreign currency as on thebalance sheet dates. 

29 Capital management 

The Company's capital comprises equity share capital, surplu~ in the statement of profit and loss and other equity attributable to equity holders 

The Company's objectives when managing·capital are to 

- safeguard their abi lity to conrioue as a goingconcem. so tbatthey cancontinuetoprovidereturnsforshareboldersandbenefitsforotherstakeholders,and 

-maintain ao optima! capital structure to reduce the cost of capital 


The Company monitors capital using debl--equity ratio. wbich is net debt divided by total equity. These ratios are illustrated below 

Particula rs 

Net debt 

Total ui 

Debt-e ui utio 
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DELITE lNFRASTRUcrURE PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to Ihe fiDaDclal stattments (coDtinued) 
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakbs) 

30 Fair value measuremeDts 
(.) Ca(.....oriesor finaDciallnstruments~ 

Particulars Year ended 31 M arch 2023 Yeareoded 31 March 2022 
FVTOCI FVTOCI Amortised cost FVTQCI FVTOCI Amortised cost 

Calef!orv Levell Level 3 Level 2 Levell Level 3 Level 2 
FinaDcialassets 

Invesunent in equity shares Unquot~d 20.02 20.02 
Cash and cash~quivalents 55.04 2,003.34 
Other rmancial assets 46,986.74 9,402.32 

Total fioaocial assets 20.02 47,041.78 20.02 11,405.66 

Financialliabilitie.~ 

Borrowings 36,712.58 2,778.77 
Trade payables 0.01 
OtherflIlancial liabilities 30.23 24.25 

Total financialliabilitics 36,742.81 2,803.03 

(b) Fair value hierarcby: 

As per Ind AS 107 "Financial Instnunent: Disclosure". fair value disclosures are not required wh en the carrying amounts reasonably approximate the fair value. As illustrated above, all 
fwancial instruments of the company which are carried at amortised cost approximates the fair value. Accordingly fair value disclosures have not been made for these fmaocial instruments. 
Investments in equity shares which are classified as FVTOCf are at fair value. 

128 



DELITE INFRASTRUCTURE PRlVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

31 Revenue from contracts with customers 

A. Revenue streams 

Particulars 


Revenue from operations 


Sales of options derivative funds 

Particulars 


Timing of revenue recognition 


At a point in time 


Over period of time 

Total revenue 

Year ended Year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

1,438.20 

- 1,438,20 

Year ended Year eoded 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

1,438.20 

-
- 1,438,20 
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32 DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING RATIOS 

Particulars Numera tor Denominator 
As on 
31st 

As on 
31st 

Variance 

March'23 March'22 ~ 

a Current Ratio· Current assets Current liabilities 1633.1 1 5042.19 67 .61 
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio·* Total debt Shareholder's 2.6 1 0.22 1,087.3 1 

equity 

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio·" Earnings available for Debt Services 0.06 0.91 (93. 77) 
debt service 

(d) RetWTl on Equity Ratio: (ROE) ***· Net profits after taxes Average 0.107 0 .161 (3 3.71) 
shareholder's equity 

e Inventorv turnover ratio·"" Cost ofGoods Sold Average Inventory 0.00 0.12 100.00 
(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio Revenue Average trade N.A N.A N.A 

Receivable 
(g) Trade payables turnover ratio****** Purchases of goods Average trade N.A 88.27 N. A 

and other exoenses avables 
h Net caoital turnover ratio Revenue Working capital N.A 0.12 N.A 

(i) Net profit ratio""'**·* Net Profit Revenue(fncluding 65.90 45.22 45.74 
other income) 

U) Return on Capital employed : (ROCE)******"'· Earning before Capital employed 0. 14 0.1 9 (26.74) 
interest and taxes 

(k) Return on investmentu ******* Income generated Cost of 0.00 70.33 N.A 
from investments Investment 

• Due to significant increase in current liabilities in F.Y 2022-23 
** Due to increased in borrowed funds in F.Y 2022-23 
*u Debt service ratio improved due to increase in operating profit in F. Y 2022-23 
***. Due to decline in Net profit compared to previous year and increase in average shareholder equity in F.Y 2022-23 
***** Due to Nil raw material consumed in F.Y 2022-23 
***..* uncomparable Due to Trade payable is Nil in F.Y 2022-23 
h"*** Due to significant increase in net profit in F.Y 2022-23 
******** Due to significant increment of capital employed.in F.Y 2022-23 
********* Uncomparable due to rerum on investment is nil in F.Y 2022-23 

33 The company does not have any immovable property whose title deeds are not held in the name of the company. 

34 	The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nahlre of loans to promoters, directors and KMPs, either severally or jointly with any other 
person. 

35 	The company docs not have any bOiTowings from banks and financial institutions which was not used for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the 
balance sheet date. 

36 The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. 

37 The Company does not have any Intangible Assets 

38 	The Company does not have any scheme of anangements which has been approved by the ct?mpetent authority in tenns of sections 230 to 237 of the 
companies act, 2013 

39 	The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of 
Layers) Rules, 2017. 

40 No proceeding have been initiated or pending against the Company under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, "1988 (45 of 1988) and the Rules 
made thereunder. 

41 	The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits from banks or financia l instihltions during any point of time of the year on the basis of security 
of current assets. 

42 The Company has not been declared wilful defau lter by any bank or financial institution or government or any other government authorities. 

43 Relationship with Struck off Companies - The Company does not have any transactions and balances with companies which are struck otT . 

44 The company had no charge pending registration or satisfaction with regristrar of companies. 

45 	No funds have been advanced or loaned or .invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to 
or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Intennediary shaU, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfof the 
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the U1timate Beneficiaries. 
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Further, no funds have been received by the Compaoy from any person(s) or entity(ies), including fore ign entities ("Fundi ng Parties"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
iJ t:ulifict! iii dUy lHal\!lcr wh at soever t)y of on b~ha.lf of llie i'unamg pany C'Ulhmate JjcnetlClaneS" ) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries . 

46 The Company does not have any transactioo which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year 
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or'survey or any other relevant provisions oftbe Income Tax Act, 196 1). 

47 The Company has not traded or invested in cljpto currency or virtual currency during the financial year 

48 Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, Rule 2014). The details are 
as un der: 
ParticuJars Amount 

(a) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 18.08 
(b) Amount ofexpenditurc incurred 18.08 
(c) Shortfall at the end of the year Nil 
(d) Total of previous years shortfall Nil 
(e) Reason of shortfall Nil 
(f) Nature ofCSR activities Education, Health 

and Environment 
(g) Details of related party transactions NA 
(b) Where a provision is made with respect to a liabili ty incurred by entering into a NA 

contractual obligation 
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DELITE INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes to the financial statements (continucd) 

(Currcncy: [ndian Rupees in LBkbs) 

49 	 operating segment 

A. Description of segments and principal activities 

The business activities of the Company from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses; whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief 
opemting decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its perfonnance, a nd for which discrete financial 
information is avai lable involve predominantly one segment, i.e. Futures and Option Segment. 

50 	 The company has prepared these financial statement~, as per the fonnat, prescribed by schedule ill of the Companies Act, 201 3 (the 

sch edule), issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. All the fi gures are in Jakh and number of shares are in absolute number. 
Previous year figures have been recast/restated and reclassified, wherever necessary to confi rm the classification oftbe current year. 

For Krisban K. Gupta & Co. For and on behalf of the board of directors of 

Chartered Accountants Delite Infrastructure Private Limited 

Firm Reg. No.: 000009N 

Krisban K. Gupta C. M . Chhabra S. K. Murgai 
Proprietor Director Director 

Membership No. : 00 8311 DIN No. :03593180 DIN No. : 00040348 

Place - New OeUli 

Date: 31 st August, 2023 
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Krishan K. Gupta &Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

As on 31-03-2023 


To the Members of 
MARTIN & HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED, 
Gurgaon, Haryana 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated IND AS financial 
statements of MARTIN & HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED, ("the 
Company"), and its subsidiary Delite Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd., which 
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31s t March 2023, and the 
consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, consolidated statement of 
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, including a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us , the aforesaid consolidated financial statements 
give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company a s at 
March 31 , 2023 and profit, changes in consolidated equity and its cash 
flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Stanciarcill on AudIting 
(SAs) specified under section H3(1O) or the Companies Act , 2013. Our 
responsibilitks under those Standards are furtbpr de:;crlbed m the 
Auditor's Responsibilitie!': for the AudIt of the Consolidated Financial 
Statcnwnts section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, 
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the fmancial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. 

. •... .. 2 

·VARDAN-A-11247. SaIdaljung Enclave , New Oelhi - 110029 (India) 

Tel.: +91-11-49950420,49935822 


E·m~il. • peed.x3@gmall~. kkgtJpta2503@gmallrom 

Webs"e: WIOW.l<rishanl<guplaco.lca•• org.ln 


mailto:peed.x3@gmall


Krishan K. GuPta & Co. 
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COl1td. Cona. Audit Report MARTIN & HARRIS LAB. LTD. 

-:2:­

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and 
Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of 
the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report 
including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, 
Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of 
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is no 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Manae:ement and Those Charged With 
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated 
in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to 
the preparation of these t:onsolillated fmnnr.ial stFltr:ments that give a 
tnlF. and fair view of the fmancial position, financial performance, 
changes in equity and cash flows of Ille Company in Clcr.ordancF. with the 
accouIiting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for· preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement , whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the 
Company's financial reporting procest:J4 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

Our objectives a re to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists . 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements . 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We 
also: 

• IdentifY a nd assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in 
order. to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we 
HI " 81so responsible [Ul t.:.x.pre::lsing our opinion on whether th~ r.ompany 
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operatmg effectiveness of such Conlrols. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast Significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modifY our opinion. Our conclusions are based · on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated 
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit 
work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the 
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit [mdings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we 
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report u nless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by the Companies (J\uditor's Report) Ordcr, 2016 ("thc 
Order"), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub­
section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, we report, to the 
extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) 	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations 
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit. 

b) 	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have 
been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books 

c) 	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss, consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and 
the consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account. 

. .... .. 5 
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d) 	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read 
with Rule 7 ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e) 	On the basis of the written representations received from the 
directors as on 31st March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the' directors is disqu alified as on 31 s t March, 
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) 
of the Act. 

D With respect to the adequacy of the internal financi81 controls over 
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A". Our 
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting. 

g) 	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's 
Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197( 16) of 
the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to u s, the remuneration paid by the 
Company to its directors during the year is in a ccordance with the 
provisions of section 197 of the Act . 

h) 	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's 
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and accorrling to the exphmRtions given to us : 

i. 	 The Company hU3 made provision a::; required Ul1I1..,r the 
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable 
losses, if any, in respect of long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts. 

ii. 	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Compa ny . 

(K.K. GUPTA) 
Prop. 
M. No. 0083 11 
For and on behalf of 
KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 000009N 
UDIN: 2300831IBGVFQX1745 

Pla ce: New Delhi 
Dated: 01 , t September, 2023 137 



Krishan K. Gupta &Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Annexure A referred to in Paragraph (II) (1) under the heading of 
"Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" of our report 
of even date 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 
3 of Section 143 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
consolidated MARTIN & HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED ("the 
Company") as of March 31st , 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the 
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

A. Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on "the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAl)". These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
budness, including adhcrcncc to compuny's polirip.s, the sHfegllarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the at'ClllJ III i fig I ecords, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

B. Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an OpInIOn on the Company's internal 
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over fmancial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects........ 2 
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about 
th e adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's 
internal [mancial controls system over financial reporting. 

C. Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of [mancial repOlting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that: 

a) 	 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the Company; 

b) provide reasonable assurance that transaction!> ArP. rf'C'orded as 
necessaJY lo permit preparation of consolidated tinancial statements 
in accOrdilnCp. with generally acccptcd accounting principle:;, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only 
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of 
the Company; and 

c) 	 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely ' 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

D. Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal [mancial controls over 
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on "the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
issued by the ICAl". 

(K.K. GUPTA) 
Prop. 
M. No. 8311 
For and on behalf of 
KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN:000009N 
UDIN: 2300831lBGVFQX1745 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 01" September, 2023 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Consolidated balance sheet as on 31"March 2023 
(Currencv: IndiaD Rupees in Lakhs) 

I. ASSETS 

Non-current assets 
(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Capital work-ill-progress 
(e) Investment property 
(d) Financial assets 

(i) Investment 

(e)Defened tax assets (net) 

Total nOD-current assets 

Current asseb 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) lnvestmenlS 
(ii) Trade receivables 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iv) Bank balances other than (in above 
(v) Loans 
(vi) Other financial assets 

(e) Current tax assets (net) 
(d) Other current assets 

Total current assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIE S 

Equity 
(a) EQuity share capital 
(b) Other equity 


Total equity 


Non-currcnt liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Other financial liabilities 
(b) Provisions 
(e) Other non-current liabi lities 
(d) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 


Total non~current liabilities 


Current liabilities 

(al Financial liabilities 


iI'I ROITOwingS 

(ii) Trade payables 

a) total outstandin~ dues ofmicro entellJrises and small enterorises 
b) lotal oUlStandlng dues ot credItors other th:ln mkro enterpri&es and 
small enterprises 

(iii) Other financialliabillties 
(b) Othcr current liabilities 
(c) Provisions 
(d) Income tax liabilities (net) 

Total current liabilities 


Total liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Significant accounting policies 
Notes to the financial statemenl~ 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN, 000009N 

K.K. GUPTA 
Proprietor 

M.No.8311 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: Olst September, 2023 
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As at Asat 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

U53.3 1 
340.65 

3,755.64 

1,29Q.62 
39.74 

3,878.59 

2,462.52 1,673 .73 

31 1.09 

8,11 3,20 6,891 .67 

1,880.88 2,411.48 

31,793 .30 
136.91 
82.47 2,1 32.95 

\0 6.30 6.30 
II 3,009.46 
12 47,031.60 9,568.52 
31 124.83 267.76 
13 1,080.56 1,184.38 

53,353.02 47,364.70 

61,466.23 54,256.37 

14 399.60 399.60 
15 58929.10 52332.96 

59,328,70 52,732.57 

16 24.00 24.00 
17 68.32 65.32 
18 15 ,1 6 17.48 
31 15.38 

107.48 122.18 

19 418.68 J~j .~4 

20 

972.69 :> 14 .~4 

21 430.77 2 12.59 
22 169.69 101.76 
23 38.22 23.93 
31 154.45 

21°30.04 11401.62 

2,137.53 11523.80 

61z466.23 541256.37 

2-62 

For and on behalf of the board of directors of 
Martin And Harris Laboratories Limited 

NASIMUDDIN S.L. LAAD 
Director Director 

DIN,09670604 DIN: 00105650 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

Income 
Revenue from operations 

Other income 

Tofallncome 

Expenses 
Cost ofmaterial, operation and incidental cost 
Employee benefits expen~es 
Finance costs 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 

Other expenses 

Total cYpenses 

Profit before tas: 

Tu expense: 
Current tax 

Deferred tax 

Tax in respect ofearlier years 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

RemeasuremenlS ofdefined benefit liability / (asset) 

Income tax on'remeasurements of defined ) cnefit liz.oility I (assel) 


Equity instruments designated through other comprehensive income 
Income tax related to equity instruments designated through other comprehensive 
income 

Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

E arnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10 each) 

Basic earnings per share 

Diluted earnings per share 

Significant accounting policies 

Notes to tbe financial statements 

The notes referred to above form an integral part oftbe financ ial statements 

As per our report ofeven date attached 

For KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 000009N 

K .K.GUPTA 
Proprietor 
M.No.S3 I l 

Place: New Delhi 

Dated: Olst September, 2023 

Note 
For year ended 
31 March 2023 

24 

25 

20,51 6.48 

2,408.13 

22,9Z4.61 

26 

27 
28 

29 

30 

4,713.88 
2,474.97 

2 1.60 

392.85 

6,112.63 

13,715.92 

9.208.69 

31 
2,414.5 1 

(1 6.59) 

3.89 

6,806.88 

3.27 
(0.82) 

(6.10) 

0.70 

(2.95) 

(2.95) 

6,803.93 

rlU.~4 

170.34 

2-62 

For and on bebalf of the board of dir~tors of 


Martin And Harris Laboratories L imited 


S.L. LAAD 
Director Director 
DIN: 09670604 DIN: 00105650 

NASIM UDDIN 

For year ended 
31 March 2022 

18,630.94 

2,578.52 

21,209.46 

4,995.54 
1,864.49 

15.78 

344.80 

4,647. 14 

11,867.75 

9,341.71 

2,442 .62 

(105.12) 

( 11.60) 

7,015.81 

(7 .34) 

1.85 

1,537.05 
(240. 12) 

1,291.45 

l,291.45 

8,307.26 

r/".J.jl 

175.57 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 

Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the yea r ended 31 March 2023 
(Currency: Indi an Rupees in lakhs) 

(a) Equity share capital 

ru"131 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 

Number of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount 

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 39,96,040 399.60 39.96,040 39%0 
Changes in eqltity sbare capital during the year 

Balance at the end oftbe reporting year 39,96,040 399.60 39,96,040 399,60 

(b) OlhereQuity 

Equity InstrumentsReserves and Surplus 
designated through Total other Particulars 

Securities other compreb.eru:ive equity 
Retained Earnings General reserve incomeP remium 

Bailiner at 1 April 2021 43,985.41 4.75 410.05 (238.64) 44,161.57 

Tolal comprehensive income ror the vear ended 31 March 2022 

Addl(Less): 

Profit for the year 7,015.81 7,015.81 

Other comprehensive income (!let of tax) 


- Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations (5.49) (549) 
. Equity instruments designated throu.clJ. other comprehensive income 1,296.94 1.296,94 

Tax on dividend paid 890.42 (890.42) 
Dividend Paid 135 .87 --~ Total comprehensive income 7764.87 406.52 

Balance at 31 March 2022 51750.18 4.75 410.05 ]67.88 52332.96 

Total comprebensiw income for tbe year ended 31 March 2023 

Add/(Less): 

Profit for the year 6,806.88 6,806.88 

Other comprehensive income (net of tax:) 


- Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations 2.45 ;) 2.45 
- f!(!uity instruments designated tbroulol:b other compreheruive income (5.40) (5.40) 

Dividend Paid 207.79 207.79 
1.'01&1 comprehensh'e income 6601.54 5.40 6596.13 

Balance at 31 March 2023 ' 9,38 1. 11.3 ' .7l 41 0.05 - 1(;2.48 511,929.10 

Nature and purpose of reserves 

i) Securities premium 

Securities premium account is used to record the premium on issue ofshares 


ii) Retained earnings 

Retained earnings wmprises of 1Uldistributed eamings after taxes. 


ill) General reserve 

it is created by setting aside amount from the retained earnings oftbe group for general purposes which is freely available for distribution. 


iv) FVOCI equity investmeots 

The group ~ tkcted to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprebensive income. These challges are accumulated within the FVOCI equity 
investments reserve within equity. The group transfers amounts fr(lOO this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are derecogrused. 

"'or KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO. For and on behalf of the board of direcion of 

Chartered Accountants Martia And Ha rris Laboratories Limi ted 

FRN: 0OOOO9N 


K.K. GUPTA NASIM UDDlN SoL. LAAD 

Proprietor Director Director 

M.No.8311 DIN: 09670604 DIN: 00105650 


Place: New Delhi 

Dated: Olst September. 2023 
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TED 
31 March 2013 

For the Jear e- !"orthf 

__---=c31:..:':.::""'''::'".::.20:::'''-3----1-- ___3_1_M . 

9,208.69 

(2,217.97) 
(1,6.4J .. 33)1(-19.78) 

(2.32) 	 (2..12) 
(75.23) 	 (4742) 
(77.13) 	 (25.09) 
11.05 	 12.20 

3-'" '0 

b<!fore working capital "~ 

"Ell2i1J!L 

Decrease/'h' ,,'lmlnventones 
"'> m trade receivables 

(Increase) in CUTTen! financial loans 
Decrease I (Increase) in other current financial assets 
Decrease in other current assets 
(Increase)./ Decrease in other non-current financial liabilities 
Increase in nOll-current provisions 

3.Dn 

---!(~;:~:~~t~~~:'!!:)t----__+-__--"-''"){' '557 

2,429.09) 
(34401.83 15218.67 

(824.50) 
<213.85) 

Proceeds he'll] sak of investments 
Dividend received 
Rent received 75.23 
lnterestreceived 	 2,Z17.97 FNet cash flow (used in) investing activities 13 49.49 

C. C~5h flow from financing activities 
Long-term borrowings (repaJd) during the rear 
(P'-r~ynlfnt) I rrnr~*~f!thqtU.NtthPttilwinHn (nen 14.74 i 

01.05)

~:e:~~~l~:nd paid (20':'9)1 
Tar.Ulhh"J U It p,1I~y 
Net cash !!U\t (US( d m) financmll aetivlti{" 

:1 
Net (deere !',() w t ash and casb eqmvaltnts (A+B+C) 1,90l.H4 
Effectofe K 11Iffertm;I:l;Ullft.'ilall;;!!ll It offOlt:lgllcut1'enl:Y Cashaud 

231.91 
______L-____ 2,132.95~~l_____ 

'l,·k- indirect method set out in indian Accounting Standard (fnd AS) 7 on S H.,,:1:C1" cfCi!sh 
Flows 

2.02 1.63 
BJlanccs with bank 
- Current accounts 80.45 

2,132.95 

As per our report attached of even date 

For KRISE,.".:'1 K. GaPtA & CO. Forand n (",., board of directors of 
(J1'1 ,:,<:<1 Accountants 

<)()li009N 

!\:\!;IM: S.L.LAAD 
j)~l'<;ctor Director 
DIN' 09670604 DIN: 00105650 

_atm"" 
Chan,,~es i' 

3.00 
457.74 
218.18 
67.93 
16.74 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: Dis' ~."1)tember, 2023 
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Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

Summary of significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the consolidated financial 
st3t~m"nts. 

1. Significant accounting policies 

1.1. Basis of preparation of financial statements: 

The financi al statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016 (as amended) notified under section 133 of the C ompanies Act, 
2013, (the 'Act') and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 0I " September 2023 

Functioual and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Group 's functional currency. 
All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest in Lakhs, as per the requirements of Schedule III of 
the Act, unless otherwise stated. 

1.2. Basis of measurement 

The fmancial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 

• certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair 
value; and 

• net defined benefit (asset) / liability that are measured at fair value of plan assets less present value 
of defined benefit obligations. 

1.3. Use of judgements estimates and assumptions. 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to 
make jllciements, ~stimates and assumptionR th~t 3ffect the rcportad amounts of revenue, o ....!'"""",, 
current assets, non-current assets, current liabilities, non-current liabilities, and disclosure of the 
contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period. Such estimates are on a reasonable and 
prudent basis considering all available intormation, however, due to uncertainties about these 
judgments, estimates and assumptions, actual results could differ from estimates. Information about 
each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes. 

Judgements 

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant 
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes: 

Note 39 ~ classification of financial assets: assessment of business model within which the assets 
are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely 
payments ofprincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in 
a material adjustment is included in the fo llowing notes: 
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Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023 

Note 2 - Useful life of depreciable assets - Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Note 33 - Recognition of contingencies, key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of 

outflow of resources. 


• Note 31 - Recognition of tax expense including deferred tax. 

1.4. Current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities 

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-current 
classification. 

An asset is classified as current when it is: 

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in nonnal operating cycle 

Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current whcn it is: 

Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 

Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period 

The group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferrerl t,x ,,"etR anrlliahilities are classified as non-Collrrent assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in 
cash and cw<h cyuivuluuls . Baaed on the nature ofproductg/scrviccs nnd the time h"tween acquisition 
of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents , the group has identified 
twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current / non - current classification of assets 
and liability. 

1.5. Principles of consolidation 

The consolidated flJlancial statements comprise the financial statements of the company and its 
subsidiaries as at3l March 2023. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rig.ljts, to 
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to a ffect those returns 
through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the 
Group has: 

Power over the investee (i .e. existing rights that give it the current abil ity to direct the relevant 

activities of the investee), 

Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and 

The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its retwns. 


Consolidated financial statements are prepared using unifonn accounting policies for like 
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting ' 
policies other than those adopted in the consolidated flJlancial statements for like transactions and 
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Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited 
Notes to the consolidated fmancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group member' s financial 
statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group' s 
accounting policies. 

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same 
reporting date as that of the holding company. The subsidiaries considered in the consolidated 
financial statements are summarized below. 

Sr. No. Name of the Company Country of I Proportion of 
Incorporation I Ownership 

-Interest ! 
I. Delite Infrastructure Private Limited India 

I 100% I 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Group has used the following key 
consolidation procedures: 
Combi~e like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the holding 
company with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are 
based on the amounts of assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the 
acquisition date. 
Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the holding company's investment in each subsidiary and 
the holding company' s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains 
accounting for any related goodwill. 

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to 
transactions between entities of the group. Profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that 
are recognised in assets, such as inventory and property, plant and equipment, are eliminated in full. 
However, intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated 
financial statements. Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the 
elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions. 

Profit and loss 'and each component of other comprehensive income ('ocr') are attributed to the 
equity holders of the holding company of the group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this 
rowltc in tho non ounltulliug iutl:w,t, huving a deficit balance. 

A change in th" u wu"J"lti ~ iutc""l uf u ~ubsidiary, withollt a 10 s of cUlluul, is a~l:UUIlted for as an 
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it deconsolidates the subsidiary from 
the date it ceases control. 

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown ~eparately in the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and 
Balance Sheet respectively. 

Investments in associates arc accounted for using the equity mdhud uf a~l:Uunling, after initially 
being recognised at cost. Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are adjusted 
thereafter to recognise the Company's share of the post-acl[uisiliun profits or losses of the investee 
in profit and loss, and the Company's share of other comprehensive income of the investee in 
other comprehensive income. . 

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and 
tax bases of investments in subsidiaries where the Company is able to control the timing of the 
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future. 
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Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

1.6. Property, plant and equipment: 

• Recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, 
if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including 
import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing 
the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in 
arriving at the purchase price. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction of a qualifYing 
asset are capitalised as part of the cost. The group identifies and determines cost of each component! 
part of the asset separately, if the component! part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of 
the asset and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset. These 
components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are 
depreciated over the life ofthe principal asset. 

• Subsequent costs 

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying 
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will 
flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised 
in the statement ofprofit and loss as incurred. 

• Disposal 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future benefits 
are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and 
equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of 
property, plant and equipment, and are recognised net within other incomel expense~ in the statement 
of profit and loss. 

• Depreciation 

Depreciation for assets purchased 1 sold during a year is proportionately charged. Depreciation is 
recoV'iReci in the statement of profit and loss on written down val\le over the estimated lIspfilllivps as 
per Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, of each significant part of an item of property, plant and 
equipment. Individual assets costing less than Rs. 5,0001- are depreciated in full in the year of 
acquisition. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed at regular intervals and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

1.7. Investment property 

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not 
occupied by the group, is classified as investment property. Investment property is measured initially 
at its cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable bmTowing costs. Subsequent 
expenditure is capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the gronp and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of 
an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. 
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Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

1.8. Borrowing costs: 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the 
bonuwiug uf flimb. BUlluwiug ~us l "Isu iuduucs cAdlallgc Jiffelellces lo the eXlenl regarded as an 
adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

Borrowing cost~ directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised 
during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. 
All other borrowing costs are expensed in tlle period in which they are incurred. 

1.9. Inventories: 

Inventories comprising oftraded items are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated 
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

1.10. Revenue recognition: 

Sales are recognised when substantial control of the products has been transferred to the customer, 
being when the products are delivered to the customer or its authorised representative and there is no 
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer's acceptance of the products. Revenue from these 
sales is recognised based on the price specified in the sales order, net of the estimated discounts, 
rebates, returns and goods and service tax. A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as 
this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is 
required before the payment is due. Sales revenues of products are disclosed at net of tax. 

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised over the period of time. 

Revenue from trading in futures is recognised at point in time on net basis after deducting the 
purchase prices. 

Revenue from trading in options is recognised at point in time on gross basis and the relevant costs 
are recognised as expenditure in cost of materials consumed. 

Rccognition of dividcnd income, intcrest income: 

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The 'effective 
interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the 
expected life of the financial instrument to: 

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or 

- the amortised cost of the financial liability. 

Dividends are recognised in the statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is 
established, and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the 
Group and that the amount of the dividend cau be measured reliably. 

1.11. Foreign currency transactions: 

Transactions in foreign currency ar> recorded at exchange rates prevailing at the date of lTansactions. 
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss of the year. 
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Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies which are outstanding, as at the 
reporting period are translated at the closing exchange rates and the resultant exchange differences are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Non-monetarY assets and liabi lities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured in terms of 
historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in Ii 
foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined. 

1.12. Employee benefits: 

• Short-term employee benefits 

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as 
short-term employee benefi ts. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to 
be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognized during the year . 

• Post-employment benefits 

Defined contribution plans 

Contributions to the provident fund which is defined contribution scheme, are recognised as an 
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the contribution is 
due. Contributions are made in accordance with the rules of the statute and are recognised as expenses 
when employees render service entitling them to the contributions. 

If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds 
the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after 
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due 
for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent 
that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund. 

Defined benefit plans 

The employees' gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of the obligation under 
such defined benefit plans is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit 
mcthod, which rccogniscs cach pcriod of scrvicc as giving risc to additional unit of cmploycc bcncfit 
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. 

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates 
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the 
market yields on goverrnnent securities as at the reporting date, having maturity periods 
approximating to the terms of related obligations. 

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding 
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets 
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised 
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through 
other comprehensive income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not 
reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods. 

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the planned assets is reduced from the gross obligation under 
the defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on net basis. 
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When the benefits of the plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in henefits 
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the 
statement of profit and loss. Net interest is calculated by applying the discotmt rate to the net defined 
benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises gains/losses on settlement of a defined plan when the 
settlement occurs. 

• Other long-term employee benefits 

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of 
the reporting period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured 
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by 
employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method as determined 
by actuarial valuation. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting 
period that have terms approximating the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result 
of experience adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity 
does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for ·at least twelve months after the reporting 
period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur. 

1.13. Income taxes: 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognised directly in equity 
or in other comprehensive income (OCI). 

• Current tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to 
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are 
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Group operates and 
generates taxable income. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally 
enforceable right to set it off the recognised amounts and it is intended to realise the asset and settle 
the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. 

• Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax 
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the 
reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability 
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither 
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; 

- Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition ofgoodwill. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and 
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses (including unabsorbed depreciation) can 
be utilised, except: 
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- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial 
re~ognitioll of an asset Of liability in a transa~tion that is not a business combination and, at the time 
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed · at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to a llow all or part of 
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Umecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting 
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow 
the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax law s) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and th'e deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 
and the same taxation authority. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. 
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly 
in equity. 

1.14. Earnings per sbare (EPS): 

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Group 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for 
honus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares. 
Diluted EPS adjust the figures used in the determination of basic EPS to consider 

- The after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential 
equity shares, and 

- The ;"'eighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding 
assummg the conversIon of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

1.15. Provision and contingent liabilities / assets: 

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constmctivc) as a rcsult 
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax 
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost in the statement of 
profit and loss .. 

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of: 

- a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation. 

- present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible 
- a possible obligation arising from past events where the probability of outflow of resources is not 

remote. 
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Contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements. A contingent asset is disclosed, where 
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 

1.1 6. Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term 
deposi ts with an original maturity of not more than three months, which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value. 

1.17. Cash flow statement: 

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net Profit before tax is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, such as deferrals or accruals of past or future operating 
cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or fmancing 
cash flows. For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, bank overdrafts are 
considered to be part of cash and cash equivalents. 

1.18. Leases 

At inception of a contract, the group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, 
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a 
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an identified asset, the group assesses whether: 

the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or implicitly 
and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically 
distinct asset. Jfthe supplier has a substantive substitntion right, then the asset is not identified. 

• 	 the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset 
throughout the period of use; and 
the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Group has this right when it has the 
decision-making rights that are mnst rel~v~nt to changing how and for" whal pU1"po~e tlt~ U""ct is 
used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is 
predetermined. the Group has th~ riCht to direct the \!Se of the assct if either: 

the Group has the right to operate the asset; or 
the Group designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be 
used. 

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains·a lease component, the Group allocates the 
con.sideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices. 

Group as a lessee 

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The 
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount oftheJlease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct 
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the 
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of 
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as 
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those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impailJl1ent losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at 
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate impl icit in the lease or, if that rate cannot 
be readily determined, the Group' s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its 
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate . 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: 
fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments. 
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or 
rate as at the commencement date. 
amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and 
the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease 
payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension 
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to 
terminate early. 

The lease liabili ty is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured 
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a 
change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value 
guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or 
termination option. 

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss ifthe carrying amount of the right-of­
use asset has been reduced to zero. 

Group as a lessor 

Leases in which the gro up does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an 
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight­
line basis over the tcrm of the relevnnt le"p.e nnl eRR the payments to the le~~or are stnlctllTen to 
increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor' s expected inflationary 

' COgt increases or another ~y~tomotic bo&i& i& av"i hhle. Tnilial direct costs incurred in negoti~tinB "n{j 
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over 
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the 
period in which they are earned. 

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 
transfer from the group to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as 
receivables at the group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to 
accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in 
respect of the lease. 

Short-term leases and leases oflow-value assets 

The group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases 
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The group recognises the 
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
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1.19. Fair value measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to .sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based 
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
- In tbe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an 
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing 
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value 
measurement of a non-financial asset considers a market participant's ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another. 

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

• Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has detenninerl daRSes of ".'sets a'nd liabilities 
based on the nature, characteris li~s and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value 
hierarchy as explained above. 

1.20. Financial instruments 

1.20.1. Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
.liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts 
such as foreign currency foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and currency 
options; and embedded derivatives in the host contract. All financial assets are recognised initially at 
fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, fmancial assets are classified in one of the three categories: 

a) At amortised cost 

b) At fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (,FVTOCI') 

c) At fair value through profit or loss (' FVTPL') 


155 



Martin and Harris Laboratories Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(a) Financial assets classified as measured at amortised cost 

A financ ial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the fo llowing conditions are met: 

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in 
order to collect contractual cash flows and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments ofprincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate ('EIR') method, less impairment charge. Amortised cost is calculated by 
considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance expense! (income) in the statement of profit and 
loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This 
category generally applies to trade receivables, security and other deposits receivable by the Group. 

(b) Financial assets classified as measured at FVTOCI 

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where 
the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. 
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment 
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit 
and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised 
in OCI is reclassified from equity to retained earnings. Interest income from these financial assets is 
included in other income using the effective interest rate method. 

(c) Financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL 

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through 
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through 
profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net 
in tb.c stntement of profit nnd lOG a within nthAr c'inR/(ln"AR) in the perind in which it. arises. Interest 
income from these fmancial assets is included in other income. 

De-recognition of financial asset 

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
fmancial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in 
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the tinancial asset are transferred or in 
which the Group neither transfers nor retain~ substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 
and does not retain control of the fmancial asset. 

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but 
retains either all or suhstantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred 
assets are not derecognised . 

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECLl .model for measurement 
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, deposits 
and bank balances. 
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- Trade receivables. 

The Group fo llows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade 
receivables. 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. 
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right 
from its initial recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines 
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit 
risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. 

1.20.2. Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as fmancial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All fHlancial liabilities are recognised 
initially at fair value and, in the case ofloans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable 
and incremental transaction cost. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is included as fmance costs in the 
statement ofprofi t and loss. 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabili ties held for t rading and financial liabilities 
designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if 
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes 
derivative fmancial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging 
inslrun1ents in hedge relationships as defined by [nd AS 109. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Financial liabilities designated as such upon initial recognition at the initial date of recognition if the 
criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses 
attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognised in OCI. These gains/ losses are not 
subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss. However, the Group may transfer the 
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss. 

(a) Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

This is the most relevant category to the Group. The Group generally classifies interest bearing 
borrowings as financial liabilities carried at amortised cost. After initial recognition, these instruments 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and 
losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well 
as through the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisi tion and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the 
statement ofprofit and loss. 
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De-reco~nition of financial liability 

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from the balance sheet when, 
and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or 
cancelled or expired. 

When an existing financ ial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new 
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement ofprofit and 
loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet 
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Derivative financial instruments 

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are 
measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss. 

1.21. Operating Segment 

Identification of segments 

The group's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of 
products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers 
different products and serves different markets . Operating segments are reported in a manner 
consistent with the reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. 

Inter-segment transfers 

The group generally accounts for intersegment sales and transfers at cost plus appropriate margins. 

Allocation of common costs 

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each 
segment to the total common costs. 

Unallocated items 

Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items which are not allocated to any 
business segment. 

Segment accounting policies 

The group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for 
preparing and presenting the financial statements of the group as a whole. 
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1.21.1. Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing 
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 
March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by 
issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 , applicable from April 
1,2023, as below: 

lnd AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements 

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their 
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information, is 
material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general­
purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant 
impact in its fmancial statements. 

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes 

The amendments narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it no longer applies 
to transactions thaI, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and offsetting temporary 
differences. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its 
financial statements. 

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Cbanges in Accounting Estimates and E rrors 

The definition of a change in accounting estimates has. been replaced with a definition of accmmting 
estimates and includes amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting 
policies from changes in accounting estimates. The Company does not expect this amendment to have 
any significant impact in its financial statements. 
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aalan""B~al I April 2022 247.30 766,69 46.47 
Dcpteciationfot tbeyear 20.78 
Depn:dationon dispoSll ls 31.76 
Balan",,",, )lMarcb 2021 247.80 408:16 

12S.S7 1059.21 86.22 75.04 
45.77 876.51 95.28 64.83 

llescriplioD Software l.a bEquipmen! 

Ba1an""as",! April202! 

AdditiOOI 

capitali...Jdurin~ lhcycar 

Balanceasat31 March20n 17.94 


Balanceas at j April20n 17.94 
11.85 

Capitalised durinl\ Ihe year 

Balllncea' 3131 March 202) 


a) CWIPAeeine scbeduleaJoo)hl March20B 

Projeclsinprogress 

Projects temporarily 

CWIP Aet ine scheduJe u on 3hl l\-larch 2022 

Amount inCWIP for a period of Total 

Projects in progress 

Projects tempora ri ly 
"" I'~ t"I~,1 

b) There IS no Capital-Work- in Progress, whose complel ion is ove rdueor has el(ceeded itscostcompared lo its onginai pian 

o m "e Le.nbold 
equiPTneni Improvemtnt 

CO ml'uler 

12.38 2,699.91 
0.38 174.11 

2,8 74.0 1 
532.33 
42.50) 

3 3.84 

77.03 LW 1.356.58 
9.06 5 .16 

1 574.40 

86.10 21.51 1.574.40 
12.68 2.95 8.88 269.90 

33.7 
I Sill ,S) 

),82 
653 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued) 
(Curren~: Indian Rupees in Lakbs) 

Investment properly 

A. 	 Keconciliation of carryio!!: a mount 

Particul ars Investment Property Total 
Buildin 

Gross block 

Ba lance at 1 April 202 I 4,332.55 4,332.55 
Additions dW"ing the year 

Disposals 

Clos ing gross block 4,332.55 4,332.55 

Accumulated deprecintion 

Balance at I April 2021 326.98 326.98 

Depreciation during the year 126.9 8 12698 
Deduction 

Closing accumulated depreciAtion 453,95 453.95 

Gross block 
Balance at 31 March 2022 4,332.55 4,332.55 
Additions during the year 
Disposals 

Closin~ ~ross block 4332.55 4332.55 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance at 31 March 2022 453 .95 453.95 
Depreciation during the year 122.95 122 .95 
Disposals 

Closing accumulated depreciation 576.91 576.91 

Net block as on 31 March 2023 3755.64 3755.64 

Net block as on 31 March 2022 3,878.59 3,878.59 

Fair value Amount 
As at 31 March 2023 4182.10 
As at 31 March 2022 4182.10 

B. 	 Amounts recocnised in profit or loss 
Rental income recognised by the company during 31 March 2023 was Rs. 75.23 Lakh (31 March 2022: Rs. 47 .41 Lakh) and w~s inc.hl'; rc! in 'other 
W.... UlllC·. Tilc yuup 1m:; im:urrcJ me foUowlng expenses tor mamtenance of the ~ai,; prflpf':rt1('s. 

31 Much.l.J 31 MHl""ch 22 

Property tax 1.29 25.81 

Electricity. water and gas expenses 1.25 1.03 

Maintenance and electricity expenses 12.46 16.67 

Total 15.00 43.51 

C. 	 Measurement of fair values 

Fair value hierarchy 
Investment property comprised of buildings owned by the entity and leased out for the purpose of earning rental income. 
The fair value of investment property has been detennined by an external iudependent registered valuer, having appropriate recognised professional 
qualifications and experience in the location and category of property being valued. The fair value measurement for the investment property has been 
categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used. 

Valuation technique 
The valuation is based on government rates, market research, market trend and comparable values as considered appropriate 
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MARTIN ANI> IIARRlS LA.80RATORl F.S LlMlTED 
Nates lo l lie consolidated fin ilndai statements (continucd) 
(Currencv: IndiAn Ruoees ill Lakbs) 

Non-<urrclltinvestme nts 
In1'C5tIm1nt~ in CQuitv (oml'llnent of cnmpnund financial instrument, 

I, I S,OO,OOO (J 1 M3rch 2022 : 1. 15,00,000) Non-Cumulative Optionally 
Converlible Prderence Shares of ASG Biochem Priva te Limited 

75,00,000 (3 1March 2022 ;Nil) Non-Cumulative Optionally Convertible 
Preference Shares of ASG Biochem Priva te limited 

in l'estmcnts carried at fllir VlIluc through other comprehem iv t income (FVTOCI) 

Inve5lmentincQuitv slia r t s- Ouoted 

5,81 ,000 (31 March 2022 : 5,81,0(0) FuUy Paid &juit}' Shares ofRs, 101­
each ofBervln Inves tmeot & u asioj;! Limited 

Inve~truentincQuitv sbares- UnQuoted 

1,8 10 (3 1 March 2022 : I,S1 0;Fully raid Equity Shares ofRs. 10i- each of 
Anee iav Stya Educa tion Foundation Private Limited 

3,742 (3 1 March 2022: 3,742) equity shms ofGooded Technologies 
Private Limited ofRs.IO eacb fuUvoaid-uD 

2,50,000 (3 1March 2022 : 2,50,000) Fully Paid Equity Shares oCRs. 10t­
eachofWaviu India Limited 

Investment in Drefercllce shares - UnQuoled 

219 Compliisorily Convertible Preference Shan~s of Honsr Technologies 
PIIt Ltd (r.Y 1% CompulsoryCotlvertible Non-Cumulative Preferenc~ 
Shares ofRs. lOt- each of Stayabode Ventures Private Limited.) 

InvestmenlllcarriedalarnortiJcdcost 

Investment in IIreferellce shares - UnQuoted 

1,15,00,00001 March 2022 :1 ,15,00,000) Non-Cumulative Optionally 
Co nvertible Prefer~nce Share, of ASG Biochem Private Limited (Face 
value Rs. 10t- and PremiulilofRs, 6/- oer~har~ , Fullvpaid up) 

75.00,00 0 (3 J March 2022 :Nil) N(ln-Ctlmulatiw Opt iolJal lyConverti blc 
Preference Shares of ASG Biochem Private Limited (Face value Rs. 101­
and Premium ofRs. 6t- oer share oartlv naid Rs 41-) 

fa) Aggregate amount of Quoted investments 
(b) AI!!!l"tlO!atemarkelvalue O!Quo !e(]rnvestment~ 
(a) Aggrellateamount of un Quoted investments 
(b) Agwegate amount of impaimlent in value ofinve,tmeulS 

31 Marth 2023 31 March 2012 

t,262.85 95 1.54 

209.91 

1472.76 951.54 

20 9.1 6 215.26 

209.16 215.26 

0.18 0,1 ~ 

20 m 20 ,02 

25,70 25.70 

20.00 20.00 

65,90 65_90 

624.40 441.03 

90. 29 

714,69 441.03 

1,1I1J.7J 

209.16 21 5.26 
JOP.I~ ~ 1~ H. 

2,2~j.3o L458.47 
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--------------- ------------------------ --------

MARTIN, AND HARRIS LABORATORIES L1 M1TED 
Notu to tbe tOD~olidlled finllnci.lll stl tfmrDLs (continued) 
(Currencv: Indi an Rupecs in LIIkhsl 

6 	 Inventories 

fini~he~ e:oods 

Sll>ck-in-hand 


7 	 Currcntillvcstmenls 

Investmrnts carritd al rair va lul" tbroDeh profit and Ion (FVTPL) 

Inwstmcnt in Murual rund.s - Quoted 


Nil (31 March 2022 : 3,94,51,1 78.94) unitsofJ.lC Mutual fund saving 
fu,d 
Nil (31 March 2022 . 17,30,536.06) units of J.re Mutual Fund overnight 
fimd 

8 rraderNeiv.bles 

(Un.'ecured, considered good) 


Trade receivables 

T rade R«eivables ageirtg for tbe finullci~1 year 2022-23 

Trade Rc(civables ageing for the financial yeu 2021-22 

Less than 6_ 
l\lorelbao 3years Total

montbs 


UlldisputcdTradereceivables-consideredgood 


Uudisputcd Tflide Receivables - considered doubtful 


Disputed Trade Receivables considered good 


DispuledTradcReceivablescoDsidereddl>ubtful 


9 	 Cuh and cuh equivalents 

CasiliniJand 


!:Ialanceswftbbaulo.!, 


!ncurrcntaccouill 


HI 	 Othcr bank balanees 

Fixed deposits with banks 

11 	 Current finI.oc~1 assets - loans 

Loans 

12 	 OlilcT(nrrtnlfillllllcial ancts 

Budgetarysupportreceivahle 


lntercst acc ru~d 


Advances repay"dble on demaod 


LoallS tnslaff 


Securitydeposils 


13 	 Othercurreal l.ssets 

Balance witb governroent authorities 


Advancetnsupplicrs 


Advanccstoslaff 


31 March 2023 )1 Marcb 2022 

I,R:>W~8 2.411 .48 

~~:d",gJ88~O'il!'8b 2411.48 

31 March 202) )1 Marcb2022 

12,792.36 

[9,000.94 

31793.3(1 

31 March 202) 31 March 2022 

136 .91 

Outstanding for fnllov.ing periods from due date of~ 

·Morethan3ytars Total 

136.91 

Outstandin!U!!Lfnllnv.ing periods from due date of payment 

31 March 2023 31 Marcb2022 

2.02 1.63 

82.47 2,132.95 

31 Marcb. 2023 JJ Marcb2022 

6.30 6-30 

6,30 6.30 

31 :'\o1ar(b.2023 31 Marcb2022 

3,009.46 

3,009.46 

31 Ma rch 2023 31 March 2022 

D8.72 

0.77 0-35 

46,986.59 9,402.16 

0.01 0.01 

44.25 27.29 

47,031,60 91568.52 

3J l\fa rch2!J23 31 i'tfarrh2022 

182.50 157.88 

887.76 1,0 16.65 

10.30 9.84 

=_.~-.!0.56 = _ 1,184.38 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORAT ORIES LIMITED 
Notes t o the consolidated fina ncial statements (continued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

14 Share capital 

Particulars 31 Ma rch 2023 31 March 2022 

Authorl$ed : 

50,00,000 (3 1 March 2022 . 50,00,000) equity shares ofRs.IO each. 500.00 500.00 


TOTAL 500.00 500.00 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up : 


39,96,040 (31 March 2022 : 39,96,040) equity shares ofRs .IO each fully paid-up 
 399.60 399.60 

399.60 399.60 

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 101- each. each holder of equity share is entitled to vote 

There arc no rights, preferencts and restrict ions anached to any share. 

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at thl' beginning and end of the year: 

Equity shares: 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Number qf Shares Number of Sha res 

OutstandinR at the beginning of the year 39.96.040 39.96,040 
Equity shares issued during the year 

Outstanding at the end of the year 39,96,040 39,96,040 

Shareholders holdine more than 5% shares in tbe Companv is set out below: 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fuUy paid 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Number of Shares % of Total shares Number of Shares % or Tota) shares 

Chang Investchem Private Limited 14,99,800 37.53% 14,99,800 37.53% 

Aessen Private Limited 8,19,400 20.5 1% 8, 19,400 20.51% 

Acme Network S.A. 8,02,200 20.07% 8,02,200 20.07% 

Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year are set out below: 
PlUUlvlm N.unv JI Murch 1013 ]1 1\1<\1\.11 IU22 

Number of Shares % of Total shares Number of Shares % of Total shares % Changes during 
the year 

Shanker Laxman Laad 20 0.0005% 20 0.0005% 0.00% 
Praful Kalidas Gohi! 20 0.0005 % 20 0.0005% 0.00% 
Rajendra Bramhadeo Melge 20 0.0005% 20 0.0005% 0.00% 
S. Veeraraghavan 20 0.0005% 20 0.0005% 0.00% 
T. C. Prabhakaran 20 0.0005% 20 0.(X)()5% 0.00% 
MustufeY. 20 0.0005% 20 0,0005% 0.00% 
Pandit Dal!adu adhav 20 0.0005% 20 0.0005% 0.00% 

15 O thcr equity 31 M arch 2023 31 March 2022 

A. Retained earnings 58,35 1.82 51.750.28 

B. Securities premium 4.75 4.75 

C. General reserve 410.05 410.05 

D. Equity instruments desil!.nated throul!h other comprehensive income 162.48 167.88 
58,929.10 52332,96 
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MARTIN AND IIARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupees iD Lakhs) 

Retoincd "!lInings 


0 pening balance 


Addl(Lc~~): 

Profit for the war 

App ropriations 

Dividend Paid 

Tax on dividend paid 

Tra nsfer from I (to) other reserves 

Transfer from/to ot her rescrves 

Remeasuremcnts of deli ned benefit liabililv (assct) 


Closing balance 

Securities premium 

Opening balance 

ChanQes during the year 

Closing balance 


General Rescrve 

Openin~ balance 


ChanQes during the year 

Closing balance 


Equity instruments dcsienaled tllroueh other compreh('nsiv(' income 
Opening balance 
Add!(less): 

Fair value chan~cs during the y~"r (net O[ I"X) 

Transfer from { (to) otht:r reserves 

Closint: Balance 


31 Mnrch 2023 31 March lO22 

51.750.28 43,985.41 

6.1\06 .88 7,0 15 81 

(207.79) (135.87) 

890.4 2 

2 .45 (5.49) 

58.351.82 51 750.28 

4 .75 4.75 

4.75 4. 75 

4 10.05 410. 05 

410.05 410.05 

167.88 (238.64) 

(5 .40) \.296 .94 
(8 90.42) 

162.48 167.88 
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MARTIN AND tlARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Noles lu Ille con~olidlt~d financia l sta leIDCnts (conlinued) 
(Currency: Indian Rupees In lJI khs) 

16 Otbtrnon-turrcntfinonciolli,.l1ililin 31 March 2023 31 March 1022 

Securil;' DeDosit Rent 24,00-~ 
)4.00 24.00 

17 Pro\' jsiOlls-Non-cnrrcllt 31 Murch 2023 31 March 2022 

58.28 54,67 
10 .D4 10.65 
68.32 65.32 

18 Othernou-current liabilities J I Mucll202J 31 Marcb2022 

Govemment grants 15 .16 17.48 

15.16 17.48 

19 Borrowines- Curren! 31 March 20B 31 March 2022 

Secured 
Ca~h-cred i t from bank· 4 18.68 393.94 

418.68 39J.94 

"Refer note 36 for related party transactions 

T erms and conditions 


"Cash-credit from bank is secured against hypothecation offin ished goods, raw material, packing materia l, work-in-progress, book debts aod colla terally secured by cqll itable mortgage ofproperty, plant 
and equipment. 

··Borrowings from related parties is for a short teno and is unsecured in nature 

ZO Tradepa)'ables 31 March202J 31 MArch 2022 

TOlal outstandiogdllestomkro enterprises and small euterprises 

Total outstanding dues to creditorsotherthao micro enterprises a nd small enterprises 972.69 514.94 

~~~9;;,72:;:.6o;",9 514.94 

Trade Payable ageing for tbe financial year 2022-23 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of paymenl 


Particulars Morethan3

Less than I year 1-2years 2-3 years Tolal 

MS ME 


Others 972.69 


Disputed dues MS ME 


Disputed dues Others 

Tull.. ""YA M" ~efine for the financial year 2021-22 

Oulfilanding forfollol'lioll pe riod~ fro m IIII~ d fltfi llfpaymenl 
Particu.ian M(lrellian 3 

Lesstban 1 yea r 1-2 yea rs 2-3 yean Total 

MSME 
Other;; 51 2.36 2.59 514,94 

Disputed dues MSME 

~ed dues Others 

21 OthercurrentfinanctailiabiHtie5 JI Mardl 2023 31 March 2022 

SecuritydellOsi ls 56.22 11.39 
EJ(pensespayable 374.55 201.21 

430.77 212.59 

22 Otbercurrenlliabililies 311\-1aTch2023 31 Marcb2022 

128.68 79.60 
38,70 19,84 
2.32 2.3 2 

169.69 101.76 

23 Provisions-Currerll 31 Marcb202l 31 Marcb2022 

Provision forRJ"atu ity 32.55 20.5 5 
Provision for leave encashment 5,67 338 

38.22 23.93 

Goveru men t 9Jants 
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MARTIN AND IiARRlS LADORATORIES LIMITED 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued} 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

24 Revenue from operations 

Manufacturing 


Futures and Options (Derivative) 


25 Other income 

Interest on fi xed deposits 

Interest received - others 


Interest received - loans 


Capita! gain - others 


Rentallncome 


Dividend received 


Fair value gain through FVTPL 


Gain on sale of Mutual fund 

Income on U1vestments carried at amortised cost 

Grant written back 

Mlscetlaneous income 

Profit on future derivative 

Discount received 

For year ended For year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

. 20.5 16.48 17.19274 

1.438.20 

20,516.48 \8,630.94 

For year ended For year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

0.43 0.08 
1.78 1,643.25 

2 ,2 15.75 

0.36 

75.23 47.42 
49 .78 

(0.30) 0.30 

77.63 24 .79 

34.89 12 .57 

2.12 2 .32 

0.Q3 0.68 

795.17 

2.1 7 

2,408. 13 2,578.52 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

30 Other expenses 

Manufacturing Expenses 
loading and unloading 
Repai rs and maintenance 

Plant and machinery 
Computer 
Buildmg 

Freight and car1age 
Power and fll CI 
Research and development 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Selling and Distribution Expenses 
Selling expenses 

l:i:stablishmcnt Expenses 
Ren! 

lnsurance 

Printi ng and stationery 

Trave lli ng and conveyance 
VehICle nmni ng expenses 
Postage. telegram and telephone 
Rates and laxes 
Royalty and trademark expenses 
Other expenses 
Contribution towards CSR expenses 
Charity and donation 
Exchange Loss 
Fil ing fee 
Legal and profess ional fec 
Consu ltancy charges 
Welfare Expenses 
Brokerage 
Membership and subscnption 
Water & Electricity Expenses 
Inll!rc~l il nn Pennlty 
Mainlenanee and Elcetrlc!ty Expenses 
Payme nt to auditors 

Audit fee 
Tax audit 

For year ended For year ended 
31 March 2023 ~ I Marrh 2022 

0.02 0. 18 

41.45 20.1 9 
572.97 425.29 
203.91 116.31 
35.57 21.24 
65.57 35 .83 
69.66 48.65 

0. 02 

1,389.84 1,01 4.51 

43.69 24.82 
33.24 22.66 
34.3 1 81.42 

313 .96 145.78 
25 .56 20.72 
14.72 13.06 
1608 41. 83 

870.00 795.00 
14.66 9.77 

151.24 124.47 
17.00 	 125.80 
172 
0.03 0.05 

508.12 292.62 
1,651.86 1,209.48 

8.3 1 

7.08 
11.98 28.82 

1.25 1.03 
0.01 040 

12.46 16.67 

2. 20 2.20 
1.25 1.25 

6,112,63 4,647.14 
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31 

I...BORATORlES LL\lrI 
lancisl statements (conti! 
ll.akh,) 

PartiCUlars 

Curftatta£ 
Current income ta:\ cha,g~ 

Tax in respect of earlier veJr~ 

YtlU'fllll'i," 

.Jl Mnrcli 2022 

2,44).67 

h) ,;....~ _~_. __-"h.. incrmw (Oen 

Ta:\es related 10 items r,,,"ogni<;ea H OCI tiunn;e: In the year 

c) Balance sheet 
raxasseb 

gMATcredit 

1.85L :J
(0.13)1 (2)8.27) 

Particulars 
Deferred ta:\ asset (UTA I 
Deferred ta:\ liability(DTL) 
Total Deferred tax liabilities 

1<.Ii.;. .:.i;.;",;,c." '-'. c"llity ~bare~ 
Security deposit 

Mutual funds designated at fau' v~be 
through profit and los\ 

Deferred ta:tMkHD'tA) 
c" .~.~'. 'cnt 

":ityshares 

'''stment property 

h~ 
15.83 



MAL,1:: .~j{U ;;lARRlSLA~~\;i_ ';itTlESLIMtn',~ 
Nf)fes to Ibe com.oUdatedh'!1-~bl "l:i~,'~(\lGii&,'ed) 
{Cllfrt'IKI': Im!~:)tt-it_t. L~!;h~l 

f Movernellti:lil'I:'p',!i:rydifferell£C' 
\pri12J "'~~ ~ ·:tecoguisedi " ~ ~i~ed in 

prolil or ImiS during lilltlilg Baia"c~ .itt,,' profit or los~ (J(.j durinr: 
tbeyear the year du.ring the)'ear 

thcvcar 

8295 (67,\\) (11.3 49 

0.08 ',; 00 

/9114) 125.26 
(3 1.2~J)Fair \a\u,,1I0D ofequ.ity$hre, 5J21 11.93 10,70) 

(13.94)Gratuity 
D~r,.~c;"ti", ,- > ' l~ntf1mf1~rty 

(lIS) (I ~5) (3 l~' (0.82\ 

~ 
(/71) 

(56.14) 51.38 '~',ji LU~ 

IU.~ 

~< ----.U.2.L 
\,93) 

: . m! 

T~r ",-nllp "ff~l\t~ I~x ~.'iS<:I, "r_rlll~liilities Wand OI:lv If It Ila, a legallv enlorccalltc rli!;ht to set ott':UfTeilt 1~\ "sselS and CUITelll L"~ lii,l>i1iLil::> aUlll1t~ tJd ILd ["" ~5eb Mid dC1d.~d bi;': lIAbllrtle!I'tIi:'~ 
10 'nCOITItta);esleviedb:,j;esamc taxauthonty 



MARn~A\ .TORIES U:\f1TED 

:-';uk~ W ~ht ,'I .tal('liH'fll' (crmtiflu('d 

(Currtncy: In ;) 

aded fi'(tr tbes:eat 
lOa 31 Mar( 

·'c: •. t I {Loss}aUributablc ti' (,SQ? 


: Eatnings Per Shar.e 

,f eLj\lIty ~ilal'''~ outstan. 


'1[ equity shares OLllslan 

t= 
~"malllmg to iJ..; <':XCCllll_' r~\i!Ous WeIr R~ 460.00 


Share' 

Note 

3.4 Disci r Section 2Z of tlw :\li 

'cuteR 

I I'il:,: :unount remaining unpaId to mIcro i1nJ ,-;IT_dl suppliels as at the end of ead 

- ?-;n.cipal 


- Interest 


L 
Vor Y€:lr t'l endedi 
31 :\Iareh ~ h 2022 

Cros: i)t~ spent by the group 

\mol ,(lard to be spent duril ~ 
24471 

, lIi)t speDt during the y 

Ia. Construction! acquisition of any asset 


'II purposes other than (a) abo'.'" 


'lit ofriilaW party tra '~"" 
-----'---­

.ointed day during each 

ment (which hav," beer 

nder 1-1SMED Ad 2001 

(Irate- :soobJ mpenslb-, 

Parti 



MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LlJ'olln:D 
Not .. to tht consolidated finand~llialement~ (contin ped) 
ICPTrtncv: Indi. n Run~es l n l.&klul 

36 ReialcdPlI rT1IDl'c]o!ure. 

(a) Lisl o f Related Parties and d ..criDrion ofnbtiolllih.in: 

Kev M'DII~'meDt Per,onnd (KMP)/Dincton 
ShwcrLudLax msn 

H.trnam Thakur Singh 

Satish KutUa rMurgai 

Indu .shei<barTripathi 

Chaoo"'Mohan Chh~b", 

Other rrlaled partic", 


Entit ies in whic b Key Management Penoonel and I or their ...,Ialives' nonis• • ignilkant innucnc£ I nd wilh wbom 

lunsaelionswercurricdoulduringlheyear_ 


Bervi nln~ cstlIl<nt &Le.isingLtd 

(b) Rela ted partv transllclion." 

Sr. NaIUr" DrTranUCIi~""~----];;;;:;'~'"?'Y¥. 3~1M~'~"b 2023~;;;=+';;;;;:;F~"~"b~.~y,g"~"~d'¥d3~1M~'~"}hZ~"iz:Z::;;;:=1"2'""'~'d~ ~~
Key Managemenl Enlilie. wbere Key Key Management Entitie.l where Ke)· 

Personnel Man. gement Penonnel Managemenl 
(KMPYRelative of Per!onnc tiRelatin (KMP)IReldlive of PnsonneVRelllttve 
Key M~nal!cmcnl "rKey Key Managem.nt of Key 

hrsonnel MaQ~gtme1lt PcuOflnel Manal!~rueDI 

Penonnelhas Penonnelh~s 

significant signifIcant 

I Loan&Ad vilDCC$ tal<enlReceivoo 3.1 46.00 3.146.00 11 2.0 1 

~~iv"" 3.611 .!7l 112.0ll 

(c) Bal~ DCI'$ outuandin£ at tbe end oftbf yoar:­

a_Fi.oBlldalA\5.u- O!berFilUlotiaI Asset~ 

Bervin InvestlTh!nt & Leasing Ud 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORJES LIMlTED 
rl .. tUl to th, tlDuli • • ,1d fi n'Tlrhl."'t"I!l!'Tltf. (~flnti"'H'rI) 

(Currency: Indillu Rupen Iu Lakhs) 

37 Financilll ri.'lk mllnagemeut 

The Group's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversIght 01 the Group 's risk managemem framework . The board of (hrectors IS responsIble tor 
developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies. The board regularly meets to decide its risk management activities. 
The Group's risk management policies are established to identity and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropria te risk limits and Controls to monitor risks and adherence tu 
limits. Ri~k management policie. and sym·ms ~re revie-wl)tj r~en l~rly tn rdl.-:"t dmnee~ in market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, throua-h its training ~nd managem~nt 
standards and procedures, aims [0 maintain a disciplined and construc tive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations 
The Group's management monitors compliance with the Group's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the 
ri$h f~rl'.cI hy rhe Group. The Board is also assisted bv internal audit Internal audit undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of 
which are reported to the Board of directors. 

The Group has el(posure to thP. following risks ariSing from finaocial instruments: 
- credit risk- see note (a) below 
-liquidity risk - see note (b) below 
- market risk, see note (c) below 

(a) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a fmancial instntment fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's 
reuivablesfromcustomers 

The Group' s el(posure to credit risk is influenced mainly by th e individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit 
risk of its customer base, induding the default risk associateil with the industry aud country in which customers operate. 

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit lerms in the 
normal course of business. On account of adoption oflnd AS 109, the Group uses el(pected credit loss mod el to assess impairment loss or gain. 

(b) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter' difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its finaucialliabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another fmancial 
asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is (0 "nsure, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stresso:d conditions, 
wilhout incurring unacc"!'table losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation 
The Group's treasury department is responsible for liquidity and funding. In addition policies and procedures relating to such risks are oVers"ea by the management 
The Group's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash eqll ivalents and the cash Ilow that is generated from operations 

Asat As at
Particuilin 

31 March 2023 31 Marcil 2022 

Total current assets (A) 53,353.02 47,364.70 
Total current liabilities B 2030.04 \,401.62 
Workin ea ital A-B 51322.98 45963.08 

FoUowing is the Group's exposure to financiallillbilities ba~ed on the contractual maturity liS at reporting date. 

IParticulars As at31 March 2023 

Contractual ca~b flows 
Carrying v:lilue Less than I vear More than 1 ear Total 

Borrowings 
Tradepayablcs 

41S.611
972.69 

41.8.68: 1 
972.69 

418.68 

972.69 
()rhnrlinh iliti~ il 'i 4 77 ,no 77 4~4,77 

Particulars Asat 31 Marc il 2022 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Not" 10 the CORMllht. t...t fi l!lIncilllfilemcntl (rontinutd) 
(Cumocy: Iodiln Rupees in Lakhs) 

(e) 	 Inlerea-I l"lfe ri~" l 

The company does not face any interest rate risk as all the borrowings of the company have a fixed interest rate 

(d) 	 Market ri'ik 

Marl::el risk is the risk that changes with market prices - such as foreign c)(change rateS and interest rates, will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings offtnancial 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk e)(posures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return 

(i) Fonign curreocy ullhedged np05ure : 

Finllucial lSseq Asat31 March 2023 Asat3! March 2022 
Foreign currency Equivalent amount Foreign cumncy Equivalent amount in 

in rupees rupees 

usn 

Fioancia1lillbilities As aUI March 2023 A~ at 31 March 2022 

Trade a abies 

usn 1.63 133.29 0.50 38.22 


1.63 133.29 0.50 38.22 

Currency wise oet exposure (assets­ Asat31Marcb2023 Asal31 Marcb2022 

liabilities 


Particulars Foreign currency j EqUi;na~eun:e:~unt Foreign currency j EqUiVa~n;e:ount in 


USD 1.63 133. 29 0.50 38.22 

Total . (1.63 (133.29) 0.50 38.22 


Sensitivity aoalysis 

Currency Amount in INR Seositivitv% 

31 March 2023 31 Marcb 2022 


INR 133.29 31L22 1.00% 


133.29 38.22 

ho acton rofitle IIi (J%stren thenin·) 1m acton rofiUe uitv(l%weakenin) 
Amount in f Amount in t 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

INR 1.33 0.38 1.33 0.38 

Total 1.33 0.38 1.33 0.38 

The exchange rate used bytbe Company is that notifted bythc Reserve Bank of India 


38 	 Capital management 

The Company's capital comprises equity share capital, surplus in the statement of profit and loss and other equ ity attributable 10 equity holders 

'rne C01np~ny'.'i n'Vl':(".ti v~.< whl''' m~n~R;nR "llrit31 m to ; 


• nfeguml t11Cir ability to continue (II) It going concem, lv thill Ul\oy "dB \.-Ullt illU<: \JJ jJl!..wld~ r~lums for ~hareholders and benehts tor other stakeholders, and 
- maintain an optimal capital structw-e to reduce the cost of capital 

Particulan 
As at 

31 March 2023 
Asat 

31 Marcb2022 

Net debt 418.68 393.94 

Total equity 59,328.70 52732.S7 

Debt-e uity ra tio 0.01 0.01 

175 



MARTI N AI'm HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITE D 
NOle! lo tb, co1Uolidatedfin.ncial l hll~_nt$(coolinued) 

(Currene},: Indiiln Rupl'ts in Lakh..,) 

39 	 Fair valne meuuremClIl1 

(a) 	 Cat ori<"!offiuanci:l.llnstru.rncnls ­
A~ .t31March2023 Asal3lMu ch2022 


FVrPL 	 FVTOCI FVTOCI Amorti,edcost FVTOC I FVTOCI 

Level 2 Level 1 Lev~11 

209. 16 2,187 .46 1 	 215.26 1,392.57 
31,7933°1 T rade recc:ivwles 	 136.91I 

Cash aw ash cquiv::llents 	 ~2.47 2,132.95 
6.30 6"'0 

1A= 
Ot.llcrfiuancial assc!s 	 47,031.60 9568.52 

Totailloanclal lllicis 269.16 49444.75 31793.30 215.26 13,100.34 

Borruwing9 

Tra<kpa)lllbl/:$ 5 14.94 
Olh.:rfmancialliabiliti"", 454.77 236.59 

Tol.ollfiwoDcialli.biliti~ 1846.13 

(b) 	 Faio" value trlenU"ch},: 
As per 100 AS 107 "Finaociallnst.rument Disdosur.", mir Vlllue disclosures are nol required whm u.. carrying amoUDts tea'OIlably approJ(lmate the fair value, As illustrated above, a ll financial inStrumcnl' of 

the group whicb 8fe carried at amomw;i COS I approltimates tbe fair value. Accordingly fair valu~ disclosures have oot b=J OllIde for loese fmaocial instruments. lnvestrnenl' in equity shlUes at>d mutual fund, 
wruch are de:signated at FVTPL & investOletlt in equity sh~rc; which arc cl~.. jtled as FVTOCI arc ~l fair value 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 
Notes to the consolidillcd fin anci al statements (continued) 
(Cu rrency: Indian Rupee~ In Lakhs) 

40 	 Post-employment benefit plans 
As per Indian Accounting Standard 19" Employee Benefi ts" , the disclosures as defined are given below-

A, Defi ned Con tribution Plans 
Contribution to defined contribution plans, recognised as expense for the year is as under 

Particulars 

Employer's contribution to provident fund 

Group 's contrihution paid/payable during the year to provident fund arc recogn ised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

8. Defined Benefit Plung 

Gratuity 

The Group has defmed benefit gratui ty plan, Thc gratuity plan is govcrncd by the 

service is entitled to specific benefit. T he level of benefi ts provided depends on the member 's 
IIIsurance company 

Liability Risks 
!. Asset-Liability mismatch risk- Risk which arises if there is a mismatch in the durll tion of the assets relative to the liabilities. By matching duration wi th the defme d benefit 
liabilities, the company is successfully able to neutralize valuation swings caused by interest rate movements. Hence compa nies are encouraged to adopt assct-liability 
management 

2. Discount rate risk- Variations in the discount rate used to compute the present value of the liabilit ies may seem small , but in pract ise can have a significant impact on the 
defined benefit liabi lities. 

3. Future salary escalation and inflation r isk - Sim:c price inflation and salary growth are linked economica lly, they arc combined fo!' disclosure purposes. Rising salaries will 
often resul t in higher future defined benefi t payments reSU lt ing in II higher prese nt va lue of liabilities especia lly unexpected salary increases provided at management's 
discretion may lead to uncertamties in estimating this increasing risk . 

4. Unfunded Plan Risk - This represents unmanaged risk and a growin g liabi lity. There is an inherent risk here that the company may default on paying the benefit, in adverse 
c irc umstances. Fund ing the plan removes volatility in company's financials and a lso benefit risk th rough return on the funds made available for the p lan 

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense reeognis~d in the statement of profit and loss, the funded status and amounts recognised in 
balance sheet for the plan. 

Net I'm lovee benefit ex ense on account ofeTatuit · recOl'mis ed in em 10 'ee benefit ex enses 

A s at Asat 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Current scrvicc cost 13.70 11 .06 
Net interest (Income)! Ex ens~ 5.36 3.7 0 
Net benefit ex ense 19.07 14.76 

C hanges in the present value of the defined benefit obli ation are ali follows: 

Particulars As at 
31 Mareh :2 0B 

As a~l 
31 March 2022 

P rojected benefit obligation afthe beginning of the year 75.22 5537 
Tnt~rr. 1t ()1l.1t ,UO .UU 
Cu rrtml ~nviciO w~l 
Actuar ia l (gaia)! lo ss on ob ligat ion s 

13 .70 
(3.27) lLO~~ 17.34 

\) fnll fit& p ;tid «(II') :u:. 
1'1 eU1l1 value of obli atirm at the elld of the Cal 90.83 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIM ITED 
Notes to the consolidated nnutial statements (contiuued) 
(Cun-ency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

Cbant1:es in tbe fair value of lao assets are as foll ows: 

Particulars 

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning oftbe year 

Interest income 

Contributions 

Mortality charges and taxes 

Benefits paid 
Return on plan assets excludin amount recognized in Interest Income Gain I (Loss) 
Fair value of Plan assets at end oftbe ear 
Actual return 00 Ian assets 

Re-m!1asurements for tbe 'ear Actuarial (~ajn I loss 

Particulars 

Experience adjustments gain I (loss) on plan liabilities 

Demographic assumptions gain I (loss) on plan liabilities 

Financial assumptions gaio I (loss) on plan liabilities 

Experience (gain) I loss on plan assets 

Financial(~in)/losson (an assets 


Amount recol!nised in tbe statement of other comprebensive income 

Particulars 

Re-measurement for the year - obligation (gain) I loss 
Re-measurement for tbe year - plan assets '(gaU;) I loss 
Total re-measur,ements cost I (credit) for tbe year reco nised in otber com rehensive income 

Net Defined Benefit Liablli I Asset for tbe ear 

Particnlars 

De fined benefit obligation 

Fair value of lao assets 

Closin net defined benefit liabili I asset 


As.t 
31 Marc:h 2023 

"H'31 March 2023 

(2.09) 

(U9) 

"H' 31 March 2023 

(3.27) 

(3.2 

As at 
31 March 2022 

"u' 
31 Marcb 2022 

9.36 

(2.02) 

"",
31 Marcb2022 

7.34 

7.34 

Current 32.55 20.55 

Non-Current 58.28 54.67 


The rna ·or cate ories of Ian assets as a ercenta e of the fa ir value of total lao assets are as foll oVl'S: 

Natu reof IBn assets 
Funds man a edb insurer 

The printipal assumptions used in detcrmining gratuity obligations for tbe Group's plan are shown below: 

Assumptions 
As at As at 

31 Marcb 2023 31 Marcb 2022 
Particulars 

% 
MurUllhywblu IALM (2012 1·1) I;\U,·I (20 12 ,-I) 
Ulscouutrate 7.37% 7.13% 
Rate of increase in compensation levels 5.00% 5.00% 
fl:rp{rtrdr~fr r. frr tllm ....np".n ft H r.h O.OO~-~ O . OO~-~ 

Withdrawal rate # 
Age upto 30 years 0.10% 0.10% 
Age31-44years 0.30% 0.30% 
Age above 44 ears 0.60% 0.60% 

IExpected average remaining working lives ofemploxees (in years) 13.911 14 .881 
.. It is actuarially calculated teon of the liability using probabilities of death, withdrawal and retirement. 
# Assumption bas been revised by the Group based on their past experience and future expectations 

A quantitative sensitivity analysis fo r si nifieant assumption as at 31 March 2023 is as sbown below: 
Defined benefit obli ation 

Assumptions 

"' .. 
31 Marcb2023 

"' ..
31 Marcb 2022 

Increase bySO Decrease by50 Increase by SO basis Decrease by 50 basis 
basis points basis points oints points 

Discount Rate 
Discount Rate 7.87% 6.87% 7.63% 6.63% 
Amount (2.44) 2.60 (2.23) 2.39 
Salary increment rate 
Salary incrt:ment rate 5.50% 4.50% 5.50% 4.50% 
Amount 2.65 (2.50 2.42 (2 29) 

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of cbange due to these not calculated. 

Sensitivities as rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable 




MARTIN AND IlARRIS LABORATORIES LIl\UTED 
Notes to the consolidated financl~ statements (continned) 
(Currency: Indian RUpees in Lakhs) 

Sensitivity analysis indicates the influence of a reasonable change in certain significant assumptions on the outcome of the Present value of obligati.on and aids in understanding 
the uncertainty of reported amounts. Sensitivity analysis is done by varying one parameter at a time and studying its impact 

Elpected contribution for the nelt Annual reportin~ period. 

Particulars 
Service Cost 
Net Interest Cost 

Expected Expense for the next 
annual re onio eriod 

Expected future benefit payments 
The following benefit pa}TIlents, for each of the next five years and the aggregate five years thereafter, are expected to be paid: 

EXpected benefit 
Year ending31 March 2023 payment rounded ofto 

nearest thousand 

0101 Year 32.55 

1 t02 Year 5. 19 

2t03 Year 0.23 

3 t04 Year 4.37 

4105 Year 7.14 

5t06Year 1.47 


6 Year onwards 39,87 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued) 

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

41 Revenue from contracts with customers 

A. Re:venue streams 

Particulars 

Revenue from operations 

Manufacturing 
Futures and Options (Derivative) 

Particulars 

Timing of revenue recognition 


At point in time 


Over the period in time 


Total revenue 


For year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

20,516.48 17,192.74 

1,438.20 

20,516.48 18,630.94 

For year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

20,516.48 18,630.94 

-

20,516.48 18,630.94 
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MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LL\1ITED 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (c on tinued) 
(Currency: Indian Rupces in Ll1khs) 

42 Leases 

A. Asalesst!t! 

As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as operating or fmance leases based on its lIssessment of whether the lease transferred significantly a ll of the risks and rewards 
incideotal to ownership of the underlying asset to the Group . Uoder Ind AS 116, the Group recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most leases - i.e. these leases are 
on-ba laneeshect 
The Group decided to apply recognition exemptions to shon-term leases . For leases of other assets, which wele classified as operating under AS 19, the Group recognised right-of­
use assets and lease liabi li ties 

B. As II lessor 
The Group is not required to make any adjustments on transi tion to Ind AS 116 for leases in which it acts as a lessor, except for a sub-lease. The Group accounted for its leases in 
accordancewith lndAS 116 from the date of ini tia l application 

C.lmpac.t.'lonfinanciaistatcmcnts 

On transition to I.nd AS r 16 - Leases, the GrollP has not recognised any right-of-use asset and lease liabilities. 1$ all the leases are in the nature of short- term lea'.;:s 


Expcnses on short-term leases I low value assets 

Short-term lease 
Low va lu e assets 

Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flow 

Total cash outflow for leases 

As II Lessor 

Rental income recognised by the company during 31 March 2023 was Rs. 75.23 Lakh (31 Mar<:h 2022 Rs. 47.4 1 Lakh) and was included in 'other income' 

The fo llowing table sets out a maturity analysis of lease payments, showing the undiscounted lease paymen ts to be received after the reporting date 

Asat Asat 
Maturltvanalsis 3! March2023 31 March 2022 

Receivable in less than one year 78.60 74 .85 
Receivable between one and five years 187.40 266.00 
Receivable after more than five ears 
Total 266.00 340.85 
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MART IN AND HARRIS LABORATO RIES LIMITED 
Notes to tbe consolidated rinaneial statemenu (continued) 
(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakbs) 

43 T he group does not have any immovable propeny whose title deeds are not held in the name oftbe company. 

44 The group has no t granted any 10M S or advance~ in the nature of loans to promoters, directors and KMPs, either severally or jointly wi th any other person 

45 	The group does not have any borrowings from banks and financial institutions which was not used for the ~pecific purpose for which it was taken at the 

balance sheet date 

46 The group has not revalued its Propeny, Plant and &juipment during the year 

47 ThejIJoup does not have any Lntangib!e assets underdeve!opment. 

48 	The group does not have any Scheme of Arrangements which has been approved by the Competent Authority in term.~ of sections 230 to 237 orlbe 


Companies Act, 2013 


49 The group hps complied with tbe nwnber of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of 


Layers) Rules, 2017. 


50 	No proceeding have been initiated or pending against the group under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of I 988) and the Rules made 

thereunder 

51 	The Parent f;;ompany has borrowings from the bank on the basis ofsecurity of current assets . 

Tbe Parent company filed monthly and quarterly statements which are in agreeement with the books of accounts 


52 The group has not heen dedared wi lful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any other government authorities 

53 R elationship with Struck off Companies - The group does no t have any transactions and balances wi th companies which are struck ofT 

S4 	Tbe Parent company does not have any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with registrar ofcompanies beyond the statutory period 

The wholly owned subsidiary had no charge pending registration with regristrar ofcompanies or otherwise however satisfaction ofcharge against one 
encumbrances worth Rs. 60 crore in favour orbanl< are still pending despite cessation of the pledge. Additionallyno dues confirmation has already been 
obtained from the bank though relinquishment of charge is pending due to teclwical glitches inherent in MCA portal oftbe day, which we are trying to 

5S No funds have been advanced or loaned or inve~ted (either from borrowed funds or share premium orany other sources or kind offunds) by the group to or 
in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries") , with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever byor on behalf of the group 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the lik e on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

Further, no funds have been received by the group from allY person(s) or elllity{ies),including foreigo entilies ("FundingParties"),with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otberwise, that the group shall,whether, directly or indirec tly, lend or invest in olherpersons or entities identified inany 
manner whatsoever by or on behalfofthe Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries 

:Ill t he group does Dot have any tran~actlon wblch Is not recorded In th e books of accounts U13I has been surrendered or disclosed as Income during the year III 
the tID; assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or surveyor any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961) 

57 Tbe group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year 

S8 Advances Recoverable in cash or in kind, Include Rs. 87.81 Lakh due from Rahane Endcon Pvt Ltd against which maner is pending for arbilTation 

59 Pursuant to Section 135 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Pol icy. Rule 2014). The details are 
asunder: 
Particulars Amount 

(a) Amount req uired to be spent by the company during the year 151.23 
(b) Amount of expenditure incurred 	 151.24 
(c) Shortfall at the end nftheyear 	 Nil 
(d) TotalofpreviousyearsshortfaH 	 Ni l 
(f) Reason ofshortfall 	 Ni l 
(f) 	NatureofCSR activities &iueation, Health 


and Envirorunent 

(g) Details of related party transactions 	 NA 
(h) Where a provision is made with respect 10 a liability incurred by enlering into a NA 


conlTactualobligation 




MARTIN AND HARRIS LABORATORIES LIMITED 

Notnloth<eo""oI1d.!t.dnua""iol.tatem.~!s«o.lIaped) 

(C1&r"""y: Ind.i.oo RIlp«S to l-alLM) 

60 Addilio.ollnformlli"" !>unulntTo Po .. lof GouT.1 h ..tr""lIa.. for the PTeparalionofC<>rqolidot«l Fiu""i.l Stottm.~" 
FV 2012·10U 

(Net AMeU), i.c~ lotlll 
SbJonin ((Irolil) oTlon 

AS 'Y. of 

AI%of cOlllotid.ltd 
<onwUdaled cOMllUdaled 

(pTofillorloss comprebe1lJlve compnh<n.ivt 

illcome 

Nam e ofSllbiidiory 

1 Marlin AIldHarri. laOOmloriesLimiled 5,379.25 (2.95) 7~.0211. 5,376.30 

Woolly Owned Subsidiary Company 

1 ~lilel nfr"!ruOture Privale Limited 14,088.81 20.97% 1,427.63 1,427.63 

59,328.70 6,8tl6.88 (2.95) J OO.OOo~ 

Adjn.tmentsariringoutofconmUdJlllon 

59,328.70 6,806.88 12.95 6,803.93 

(NetAII'b),i••" 101. 1 
Sbare in (profit) or 101$ 

Sure in 10,. 1 
comprcbcnrivolncome compretlflLdveincoroe 

A$ 'Yo or 
A.% of conwlid.!ed consolidolled 

consolid.ttd <omaUd.led olber lOl l ] R •. Millions 
(proDI) or loA compTclM:llIivc 

Nome ors..bsidiary 

PUtlll Comp~ny 

1 MminAnd II ams Laboratories Limited 40,071.33 5,214.55 64.61 % 5,367.38 

Wholly Owned Subsidiary Comp~ny 

12,661 24 1,80127 88.1 1% 1.138.6 1 2,939.88 

52,732.57 7,015.81 1,291.45 8,307.26 

Adju.lmenlS~ r"ing ootofcon<olid.tion 

52,732.57 1,291.45 8,307.26 
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MARTIN AND RARRlS LA BORATORJES LIMITED 

Notes to the consolidated financia l statements (continued) 

(C urrency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs) 

6 1 Operating Segment 

A. Description orscgments and principal activities 

The business activities of the Group from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses; whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the 
decision maker to make decisions about resources 10 be allocated to the segment and assess its perfonnance, and for which discrete finan cial infonnation 
available involve predominantly two segments . 

The follo wing summary descrihes the operations in each of the Group's reportable segments: 

Reportable segments Operations 

l. Pharmaceuticals Consists of manufacturing of phatmaceuticaLs, medicinal chemical & botanical products 

2. Derivatives (F&O, ::. onsists of management of its funds through investment in different avenues 

B. Basis of identifying operating segments, reportable segments and segment profit 

(i) Basis of identifying operati ng segments 

Operating segments are identified as those components of the Group (a) that engage in business activities to earn reven ues and incur expenses (including 
transactions with any of the Group's other components; (b) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Group' s C hief Operating Decis ion Maker 
(CODM) to make decisions about resource allocation and perfonnance assessment and (c) for which discrete fmanc ial information is available. 
The Group has two rcportable segments as described under 'Description of segments and principal activities' ahove. The nature of products and services offered by 
these businesses arc different and are managed separ.\tely. 

(ii) Reportable segments: 

An operating segment is classi fie.d a~ reportab le segment if reported revenue (including inter-segment revenue) or absolute amount of resu lt or assets exceed 10% 
or more of the combined total of all the operating segments 

(iii) Segment profil: 

Performance of a segment is measured based on segment profit (before interest and tax), as included in the internal managemc t repo rts that are [·eviewed by the 
Group's CODM. 

Segments have been identifi ed and reported taking into account nature of products & servi ces and differing risks and rewards from them. The accounting poli cies 
adopted for segment reporting m·e in line with tbe accounting policy ofthe Group with following additional policies: 

C. Information about reportable segments 

Pharmaceut ica ls Der ivatives (F&0) Total 
t'artlculars Fflr yp. rtr pnd..1t For YPll f f:nltf:1t ,"'fi r year ended " 'fIT y",ar ended "or year ended t'or year ended 

3J March 2023 3 1 March 2022 31 Ma rch 2023 31 March 2022 3 1 March 2023 3 I March 2022 
Seamenl r l'vpnllP 20 "i ltiAR 17,192 .74 1.438 .20 20,51ti.48 18,630,94 

~egment expe nses (13,492.56) (1 0,266.10) (13,492 .56) (10.266 .10) 

Other unaUocabJe expenses (201.77) (1,585 .86) 
Segment r esult befo re intercst & 7,023.92 6,926.64 1,438.20 6,822.16 6,778,98 

taxes 

Less : Finance costs (2\.60) (15.78) (2\60) (1 5.7 8) 

Add : Oth~r income 252.78 33,09 252.78 33.09 

Add: Other income unallocab le 2,155 .35 2,545.43 

Profit before tax 7,255.10 6,943.95 1,438.20 9,208.69 9,341.71 

Exceptional items 

Tax provision (2,40\.81) (2,32 5.90) 

Profit J (Loss) after tax 7,255.10 6,943 .95 1,438.20 6,806.88 7,015.81 

Othcr l nformation 

Segment assets 47,345 .90 41 ,568.84 47,345.90 4 1, 568,84 

Unallocable assets 14,120.33 12,687 .5 3 

Segment liabil it ies 2, 106.06 1,497.51 2,106 .06 1,497.51 

Unal locable liabilities 31.46 26,30 

Geographical segment: The activities of the company are restricted to only one geographical segment. i.e. India. Hence the geographical segment disclosures are 
not applicable 

D. Information about major customers 
Revenues from Olle customer of the Group's pharmaceutica l segments represen ted approximately Rs . 4 ,107.53 Lakh(31 March 2022: Rs. 3,443. 10 Lakh) of the 
Group's total revenues. 
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62 	The company has prepared tbese financial statements , as per the fonnat, prescribed by schedule 1lI of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
schedule), issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 
Previous year figures have been recast/restated and reclassified, wherever necessary to confinn the classification of the current year. 

For KRISHAN K. GUPTA & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 000009N 

K.K. GUPTA 

Proprietor 

M.No.83l] 

Place: New Delhi 

Dated: Olst September, 2023 

For and on behalf of the board of directors of 

Martin And Harris Laboratories Limited 

NASIM UDDIN S.L. LAAD 

Director Director 

DIN: 09670604 DIN: 001 05650 
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